
High Peak Borough Council

THE EXECUTIVE AGENDA

Date: Thursday, 3 December 2020

Time: 6.00 pm

Venue: Virtual Meeting

You can view the 
agenda online by using 
a smart phone camera 
and scanning the code 
below:

25 November 2020

PART 1
1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 
i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
ii) Other Interests

3. To approve the minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

4. Wildfire Public Spaces Protection Order (Pages 9 - 20)

5. Community Trigger (Pages 21 - 82)

6. Trans Pennine Upgrade A57 Link Road (Pages 83 - 106)

7. Annual Report 2019/20 (Pages 107 - 176)

8. Second Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 2020/21 (Pages 
177 - 228)

9. Medium Term Financial Plan Update (Pages 229 - 260)

10. Information Governance Update (Pages 261 - 264)

11. Vision Derbyshire (Pages 265 - 298)

12. To resolve that the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 

PART 2
13. To approve the exempt minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 299 - 300)

(Paragraph 3, 5 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of 

Public Document Pack



any particular person (including the authority holding that information) 
Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings. )

14. Application for write off of non-recoverable debts (Pages 301 - 304)
(Paragraph 7 - Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in 
connection with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. )

MARK TRILLO
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER

Membership of The Executive
Councillor A McKeown (Chair) Councillor D Greenhalgh (Vice-Chair)
Councillor A Barrow Councillor F Sloman
Councillor J Todd



THE EXECUTIVE

Meeting: Thursday, 8 October 2020 at 6.00 pm in Virtual Meeting

Present: Councillor A McKeown (Chair) 

Councillors A Barrow, D Greenhalgh, F Sloman and J Todd

Councillors T Ashton, J Collins, R Quinn, E Thrane and S Young were also in 
attendance.

20/72 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
(Agenda Item 2)

Councillor Greenhalgh declared an other interest – Item 5 (Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2020/21 - 2023/24 – Update) – employer receives grant from 
the Borough Council.

Councillor Todd declared an other interest – Item 8 (Buxton Neighbourhood 
Plan) member of Buxton Neighbourhood Forum.

20/73 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 3)

RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 6 August 2020 be 
approved as a correct record.  The minutes of the Corporate Select 
Committee held on 28 September would be considered at the next meeting 
of the Executive.

20/74 FIRST QUARTER PERFORMANCE, PROCUREMENT AND FINANCIAL 
REVIEW 2020/21
(Agenda Item 4)

The purpose of the report was to inform members of the Council’s overall 
performance and financial position for the period ended 30th June (“First 
Quarter 2020/21”) The report was considered by the Corporate Select 
Committee on 28 September 2020.  The position was summarised as 
follows:

Subject Headline Reference
Finance The Finance headlines for the First Quarter were:

Performance against Budget
 At the First Quarter stage the General Fund projected 

outturn for 2020/21 was an overspend of £459,580.  

Efficiency Programme
 At Quarter One no savings had been taken against the 

Appendix 
A

High Peak Borough Council

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



The Executive
Thursday, 8 October 2020

2020/21 revised efficiency target of £257,000 (General 
Fund).  

Housing Revenue Account
 The Housing Revenue Account was predicted to be in 

surplus (against budget) by £749,030 at the Quarter One 
stage.

Capital Programme
 The General Fund Capital Programme budget for 2020/21 

as revised was £5.05 million.  The projected outturn was 
£3.19 million, representing an underspend of £1.86 million – 
mostly in respect of programme slippage due to Covid19.

 The HRA Programme for 2020/21 as revised was £5.4 
million.  The projected outturn was £4.6 million which 
represented a £0.8 million underspend - mostly in respect of 
programme slippage.

Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 30 June 2020 totalled £27.4 

million.
 Council borrowing at 30 June 2020 totalled £66.8 million.
 The Council’s net interest costs are forecast to be as 

budgeted for the HRA and £61,280 over for the general 
fund.

Revenue Collection
 28.47% of Council Tax was collected by 30 June 2020, 

compared to 29.64% for the same period last year.
 22.51% of Business Rates was collected by 30 June 2020 

compared with 30.01% for the same period last year.
 At the end of Quarter Oner the value of sundry debt over 60 

days old was £270,240 which compares to £178,520 at 30 
June 2020

Procurement The Procurement headlines for the First Quarter were:
 27 procurement activities had been completed 
 The Procurement forward plan included 66 procurement activities for 

completion/start in 2020/21 (either HPBC only or joint)
 At the 30 June 2020, 97% of procurement activity undertaken was on 

the forward plan and the Council paid 97% of its invoices within 30 
days

Appendix 
B 

Performance The Performance headlines for the First Quarter were:
 59% of the key performance indicators were on track, with 

49% better than target
 The Council received 8 complaints and 44 compliments in the 

First Quarter.
 15 projects were on track, 18 not yet commenced, 1 

completed.

Appendix C

Page 4



The Executive
Thursday, 8 October 2020

Options considered:

Detailed Analysis was contained within the appendices to the report.

RESOLVED:

That the first quarter 2020/21 financial, procurement and performance 
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of the 
covering report be noted.

20/75 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2020/21 - 2023/24 - UPDATE
(Agenda Item 5)

The purpose of the report was to present an updated summary version of 
the Medium-Term Financial Plan 2020/21 – 2023/24, forecasting the longer 
term impact the Coronavirus pandemic had had on the financial position of 
the Authority. The report was considered by the Corporate Select 
Committee on 28 September 2020.  The Committee expressed that 
consideration needed to be given to the funding arrangements around 
priority projects to ensure that reserves can be re-established at the end of 
the period.  Particular reference was made to the Future High Streets Fund, 
Glossop Town Halls and Climate Change Emergency projects. 

Options considered:

There were no options to consider at this stage.

RESOLVED:

That the forecast updated Medium Term Financial Plan position be noted.

20/76 REVISED PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2020/21 DUE TO THE IMPACT 
OF COVID-19
(Agenda Item 6)

The report provided information on the proposed amendments to 
performance targets for 2020/21, which had been made necessary due to 
the effects of the coronavirus pandemic on the Council’s ability to meet its 
previously agreed targets. The report was considered by the Corporate 
Select Committee on 28 September 2020.

Options considered:

This report was for information only and therefore no alternatives had been 
presented. However, if the target review had not taken place the 2020/21 Q4 report 
would no doubt show a higher than usual proportion of ‘off track’ measures due to 
lockdown and on-going coronavirus restrictions, which were outside the Council’s 
control.

RESOLVED:

That the proposed amendments be noted.

Page 5



The Executive
Thursday, 8 October 2020

20/77 AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT UPDATE ON THE AQAP WOODHEAD 
ROAD (A628) TINTWISTLE
(Agenda Item 7)

The report updated the Executive on the progress of the Air Quality Action 
Plan for the Air Quality Management Area (1) Woodhead Road (A628) 
Tintwistle, attached at Appendix 1 and on the proposed steps the Council 
was taking to address the air quality issues across the Borough.  The report 
was considered by the Community Select Committee on 23 September 
2020.

Options considered:

There were no alternative options to consider, the Council was required by 
law to produce an action plan once an Air Quality Management Area had 
been declared. 

RESOLVED:

That the contents of the report be noted and approved.

20/78 BUXTON NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN
(Agenda Item 8)

The report considered an application made by ‘The Buxton Neighbourhood 
Forum Community Interest Company (CIC)’ to designate a neighbourhood 
area and neighbourhood forum for Buxton under section 61G of the Town 
and Country Planning Act 1990.  The report was considered by the 
Economy and Growth Select Committee on 7 October 2020 which 
requested that the report be considered by the Committee prior a further 
decision by the Executive.

Options considered:

Option 1 (recommended) that the Council agreed to the recommendations 
as set out in section 2 of the report. This would enable the community to 
comment on the applications prior to the Council making a final decision. 
The process for the consideration of such applications was established 
through the regulations

Option 2 (not recommended) that the Council does not support consultation 
on the applications. There was no sound basis not to allow the applications 
to be subject to consultation. Local planning authorities were required to 
enable the preparation of neighbourhood plans and applications for 
neighbourhood areas and forums must be subject to consultation. 

RESOLVED:

1. That the consultation on the applications for the designation of a 
neighbourhood area and neighbourhood forum for Buxton be approved.  

2. That the responses to the consultation be considered at a future meeting 
of the Economy and Growth Select Committee prior the Executive in 
order to meet the 13 week deadline specified in the regulations.Page 6



The Executive
Thursday, 8 October 2020

20/79 RECENT CHANGES TO THE PLANNING SYSTEM AND  THE PLANNING 
WHITE PAPER 2020
(Agenda Item 9)

The report appraised the Executive of proposed changes as set out in the 
White Paper “Planning for the Future” which was published for consultation 
by Government on 6th August 2020.  The report was considered by the 
Economy and Growth Select Committee on 7 October 2020.  A training 
session for councillors in the proposed changes would take place on 12 
October 2020.

Options considered:

As detailed in the report.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted and that comments be provided for inclusion in the 
Council’s response to Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local 
Government before the end of the consultation period.

20/80 HIF PROGRAMME FAIRFIELD ROUNDABOUT: PROJECT AND COSTS 
REVIEW
(Agenda Item 10)

The report provided members with an overview and project update on 
progress in delivering the Homes England funded Fairfield Roundabout and 
sought approval for progressing the project as outlined in the report. The 
project was considered by the Economy and Growth Select Committee on 7 
October 2020.

Options considered:

Two options were detailed in section 5 of the report.

RESOLVED:

1. That the progress on delivering the Homes England funded Fairfield 
roundabout be noted.

2. That the revised construction costs for delivery of the roundabout as set 
out in Appendix 2 (Part 2 of the report) be noted.

3. That the Executive Director (Place) be authorised to proceed to  
producing detailed design drawings for the roundabout and related 
tender documentation and report back to the Executive with results of 
the procurement exercise and seek approval to draw down HIF funding 
for construction of the roundabout.

4. That the advanced payment offer from Homes England of up to 
£500,000 to allow the project to proceed and meet the grant funding 
deadline be accepted. Page 7



The Executive
Thursday, 8 October 2020

5. That the updated project risks and mitigation as set out in the report and 
Appendix 3 be noted and accepted.

20/81 TO RESOLVE THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM 
THE MEETING FOR THE FOLLOWING ITEMS BECAUSE THERE MAY BE 
DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED IN 
PART 1 OF SCHEDULE 12A OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972.
(Agenda Item 11)

RESOLVED:

That the public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items because there may be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

20/82 TO APPROVE THE EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
(Agenda Item 12)

RESOLVED:

That the exempt minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 6 August 
2020 be approved as a correct record.

20/83 HIF PROGRAMME FAIRFIELD ROUNDABOUT: PROJECT AND COSTS 
REVIEW - APPENDIX 2
(Agenda Item 13)

The Executive approved a report with regards the progression and delivery 
of the project.

20/84 DISPOSAL OF LAND AT HOGSHAW, BUXTON
(Agenda Item 14)

The Executive approved an interim report with regards to the disposal of 
land assets at Hogshaw, Buxton.

The meeting concluded at 6.56 pm

CHAIRMAN

Page 8



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

The Executive

3 December 2020

TITLE: Wildfire Public Spaces Protection Order

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Jean Todd - Executive Councillor 
for Climate Change, Environment and 
Community Safety

CONTACT OFFICER: David Smith - Principal Officer Communities 
& Partnerships

WARDS INVOLVED: All wards

Appendices Attached –  Draft Public Spaces Protection Order

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To introduce measures to reduce the risk of wildfires in high risk areas of the 
Borough.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Executive agrees to carry out the necessary consultation, 
publication and notification in relation to the draft Order appended to this 
report.

2.2 That the Executive subsequently approves the draft Order by Individual 
Executive Decision unless the responses from the consultation 
necessitate material changes to the draft Order.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 gives local authorities 
the power to introduce a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) to control 
behaviours in a public place, which have caused or may cause a detrimental 
effect on the quality of life of those in the locality and are likely to be of a 
continuing or persistent nature and are therefore unreasonable.

3.2 Moorlands fires or wildfires can have a range of impacts including loss of life 
and property, damage to wildlife and biodiversity, carbon loss, loss of grazing 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



land, and damage to water catchments and supplies. The financial cost of 
wildfires can also be substantial.

3.3 The introduction of a PSPO by the Borough Council could help to reduce the 
occurrence of wildfires by prohibiting the lighting of fires, barbecues, fireworks 
and Chinese (sky) lanterns. In addition , the Council could work with partners 
to raise awareness of the risks of wildfires and to encourage people to behave 
responsibly.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 Aim 1: Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner High 
Peak

4.2 Aim 4: Protect and improve the environment including responding to the 
climate emergency.

  
5. Alternative Options

5.1 The Council could work with partners to raise awareness of the risks of wildfires 
and to encourage people to behave responsibly without introducing new 
enforcement powers. 

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

The Order will assist to reduce arson, environmental crime and 
anti-social behaviour.

6.2 Workforce

Council enforcement officers will not carry out regular patrols but 
may take part in targeted campaigns with other key agencies at 
specific times of the year. 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

None

6.4 Financial Considerations

Costs would be incurred in erecting signage within the proposed 
exclusion zone to make the public aware of the prohibitions 
contained within the order.

Legal

The draft Order has been reviewed by Legal Services. 

Page 10



Page 11



6.6 Climate Change

The proposed PSPO could assist in preventing carbon loss as a 
result of wildfires in moorland areas and thus assist in reducing 
climate change.

6.7 Consultation

Under section 72 of the Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and Policing 
Act 2014, the Council is required to carry out “necessary” 
consultation, publicity and notification prior to introducing (or 
extending) an Order.

Necessary consultation means consulting with:
(a) the chief officer of police, and the local policing body, for the 
police area that includes the restricted area;
(b) whatever community representatives the local authority thinks it 
appropriate to consult; and
(c) the owner or occupier of land within the restricted area.

Necessary publicity means publishing the text of the proposed 
Order.

Necessary notification means notifying any parish or community 
councils, and the County Council.

The requirement to consult with the owner or occupier of land 
within the restricted area does not apply to land that is owned and 
occupied by the local authority; and applies only to the extent that it 
is reasonably practicable to consult the owner or occupier of the 
land.

6.8 Risk Assessment

None

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

6.4

Page 12



Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Albertson, K., et al 2010 Climate change and 
the future occurrence of moorland wildfires in 
the Peak District of the UK, Climate Research 
Specal 24.

https://www.peakdistrict.gov.uk/looking-
after/projects-and-
partnerships/fireoperationsgroup/moorlandfires

David Smith
Principal Officer Communities & Partnerships
david.smith@highpeak.gov.uk

7. Detail

7.1 The Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014 gives local authorities 
the power to introduce a Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) to control 
behaviours in a public place, which have caused or may cause a detrimental 
effect on the quality of life of those in the locality and are likely to be of a 
continuing or persistent nature and are therefore unreasonable.

7.2 The introduction of a PSPO to help prevent wildfires was considered in 
response to a sky lantern festival that was advertised, but subsequently 
cancelled, on the edges of Buxton in 2018. The possibility of introducing a 
PSPO was raised again by High Peak Councillors in 2020. Derbyshire 
Constabulary, Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service, and the Peak District 
National Park Authority have also approached the Borough Council to discuss 
options for preventing wildfires. In part, this was a response to the large 
numbers of people visiting the Peak District after the restrictions introduced to 
prevent the spread of coronavirus were lifted in the summer of 2020. As noted 
below, a number of wildfires occurred during this period.

7.3 The Borough Council could introduce a PSPO to help to reduce the 
occurrence of wildfires by prohibiting the lighting of fires, barbecues, fireworks 
and Chinese (sky) lanterns. The introduction of a PSPO could be supported by 
a publicity campaign to raise awareness of the dangers of wildfires and 
encourage people to behave responsibly. It is suggested that this could be 
developed with partners working together as members of the High Peak 
Community Safety Partnership.

7.4 Moorlands fires or wildfires can have a range of impacts including loss of life 
and property, damage to wildlife and biodiversity, loss of grazing land, and 
damage to water catchments and supplies. The impacts can be far-reaching 
with, for example, the 2018 wildfires at Saddleworth Moor and Winter Hill 
causing poor air quality up to 50 miles away with five million people being 
exposed to levels of dangerous particulates.

7.5 Wildfires can also result in substantial carbon loss and contribute to climate 
change. Peatlands represent a significant store of carbon with approximately 20 
million tonnes estimated locked up within the Active Blanket Bog (ABB) habitats 
of the Peak District National Park. 

Page 13

https://www.peakdistrict.gov.uk/looking-after/projects-and-partnerships/fireoperationsgroup/moorlandfires
https://www.peakdistrict.gov.uk/looking-after/projects-and-partnerships/fireoperationsgroup/moorlandfires
https://www.peakdistrict.gov.uk/looking-after/projects-and-partnerships/fireoperationsgroup/moorlandfires


7.6 Fighting wildfires can be costly and difficult particularly in more remote areas. 
Consequential costs including restoring burnt areas, increased costs of water 
treatment, loss of production from the land, and loss of tourism can also be 
substantial. The economic impact of the Saddleworth Moor and Winter Hill fires 
was estimated to have been £21.1M. The cost of restoring half of the Bleaklow 
2003 fire site (4.3km2) was £1,235,000 with the cost of suppressing the fire 
being estimated at £550,000 with an estimated cost to the local economy of 
£500,000.

7.7 The Peak District National Park Authority suggest that accidental summer fires 
are the single biggest threat to the fragile ecosystem of the Peak District 
moors. Since 1976 there have been over 350 reported incidents of 'wildfires' in 
the Peak District with the majority being started by arson, discarded cigarettes, 
barbeques and campfires.

7.8 Derbyshire Constabulary received reports of 95 incidents involving barbecues 
from across the High Peak between 1 April 2020 and 4 September 2020. At 
least 10 incidents involved the use of disposal barbecues.

7.9 Figures provided by Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service (DFRS) show that 
they attended 25 healthland/moorland firesin the High Peak between 21 March 
and 23 August 2020.

7.10 Examples of moorlands fires in the High Peak include:

6 May 2018

7.11 Five members of the Peak District Moorland Group and 30 firefighters fought a 
blaze near Derbyshire Bridge, Goyt Valley which is believed to have been 
started deliberately. The wild fire scorched an area of moorlands around the 
size of six football pitches and resulted in the loss of curlew, grouse, pipit, 
short-eared owl, duck, Canadian goose and mallard nests. Curlews are on the 
red data list for the British Isles (birds of the highest conservation concern).

25 June 2018

7.12 A wildfire on Arnfield Moor approximately one kilometre in size lasted four 
weeks with the fire continuing to burn deep in the peat bogs after the visible 
flames were extinguished. The fire was declared a major incident and 
around 200 fire engines and over 1,000 Firefighters from Derbyshire were 
deployed/redeployed over the course of the four weeks. The fire was one of 
six moorlands fires that were burning in close proximity at the time.

10 April 2020

7.13 Glossop firefighters attended two moorland fires: one on land off the A628 at 
Woodhead and the other at Torside, Didsbury intake. The fire at Woodhead is 
thought to have been caused by a barbecue which got out of control.

Page 14



23 April 2020

7.14 A moorland fire burned for more than 7 days and covered an area of about four 
sq miles at Rakes Moss between Crowden and Glossop. Fire crews from across 
Derbyshire were supported by officers from Greater Manchester Fire and 
Rescue Service, United Utilities staff, Peak Park Rangers, the RSPB and the 
Salvation Army. The response involved more than 50 firefighters, eight fire 
appliances, two helicopters and specialist moorlands equipment. The site of the 
fire was inaccessible for most vehicles and fire crews had to make the final part 
of the journey on foot (around a 50 minute walk whilst carrying equipment and 
supplies).

7.15 The fire created large volumes of smoke, with residents many miles away in 
Manchester reporting they could smell burning last week and local residents and 
those in Stalybridge were told to keep their windows and doors closed. The 
Royal Society for the Protection of Birds (RSPB) reported that the fire destroyed 
about £40,000 worth of its restoration work. 

30 May 2020

7.16 Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service responded to a fire affecting 
approximately 300 x 170 meters of grass and moorland at Bamford. The 
response involved five fire appliances and two water carriers. It is believed that 
the fire was caused by a barbecue that was left in the area. 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC SPACES PROTECTION ORDER (Wildfires) 2020

Section 59 Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014

The High Peak Borough Council hereby makes the following Order:

1. This Order comes into force on XXXX and will last for a period of three years.

2. This Order applies to the land specified in the Schedule (the “Restricted Area”).

Purpose

3. The Order is intended is to help to stop or reduce activities that have had a 

detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality namely the starting of 

fires in grass and moorland areas. Such fires can contribute to climate change and 

result in risk to life; damage to biodiversity, habitats and property; and loss of income 

from tourism and other land uses.

Offence

4. Under the terms and restrictions of the Public Spaces Protection Order the 

following is prohibited:

a) Lighting a fire of any type or size in the Restricted Area without the prior written 

consent of the Borough Council.

b) Using any article or object which causes a naked flame and thereby poses a risk 

of fire without the prior written consent of the Borough Council.

c) Possessing or lighting a barbecue in the Restricted Area without the prior 

written consent of the Borough Council.

Page 17



d) Possessing, lighting or releasing a firework in the Restricted Area without the 

prior written consent of the Borough Council.

e) Possessing, lighting or releasing a Chinese/sky lantern or other open flame 

heat-source lantern in the Restricted Area without the prior written consent of 

the Borough Council.

5. A person or persons are required to surrender anything in their possession which a 

constable or authorised person has reasonable suspicion to be an article that has 

been used OR is likely to be used in conjunction with the prohibited activities referred 

to in this Order.

6. The restrictions in Article 4 to this Order shall not apply to any police, ambulance, 

fire service or Peak District National Park Authority personnel acting in pursuance of 

statutory powers or duties.

Offence of Failing to Comply with Order

7. Under Section 67 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, it is an 

offence for a person without reasonable excuse to:

(a) do anything that the person is prohibited from doing by this Order, or

(b) fail to comply with a requirement to which the person is subject under this Order.

8. A person who is guilty of an offence shall be liable on summary conviction to a fine 

not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale.

Challenging the Validity of the Order

9. If any interested person desires to question the validity of this Order on the 

grounds that the Council has no power to make it or that any requirement of the Act 

has not been complied with in relation to this Order, he or she may apply to the High 

Court within six weeks from the date on which this order is made.

IN WITNESS whereof the COMMON SEAL 

of the HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL was hereunto affixed this 

Page 18



          day of          two thousand and twenty in

the presence of 

Executive Director

SCHEDULE

This Order applies to all parts of the borough of High Peak that:

(i) lie within the boundary of the Peak District National Park, are open to the air, and 

to which the public are entitled or permitted to have access (with or without 

payment); AND

(ii) are owned by High Peak Borough Council, are open to the air, and to which the 

public are entitled or permitted to have access (with or without payment.

This INCLUDES access land as defined in Section 1 of the Countryside and Rights of 

Way Act 2000 but EXCLUDES any licensed campsites or caravan sites, or land which 

is occupied by an organisation which holds a valid certificate of exemption granted 

under paragraph 12 of Schedule 1 of the Caravan Sites and Control of Development 

Act 1960 or under section 269(6) of the Public Health Act 1936.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

The Executive

3 December 2020

TITLE: Community Trigger

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Todd - Executive Councillor for 
Climate Change, Environment and 
Community Safety

CONTACT OFFICER: David Smith - Principal Officer Communities 
& Partnerships

WARDS INVOLVED: All

Appendices Attached – Appendix A: Derbyshire Community Trigger 
Practitioner Guidance

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To agree revised procedures for the statutory ASB Review (Community 
Trigger) process.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Executive agree to:

1. Adopt the revised Derbyshire Community Trigger Practitioner Guidance
2. Commit to the ASB Help pledge.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 introduced a 
requirement for the Borough Council in conjunction with other relevant bodies 
to carry out a review of the response to a complaint about anti-social 
behaviour in certain circumstances.

3.2 Derbyshire County Council developed a countywide ‘Derbyshire Community 
Trigger Practitioner Guidance’ in 2014 which was subsequently adopted by the 
Borough Council. This guidance has been updated to reflect the findings of 
national reviews into the community trigger process and amendments to the 
statutory guidance.

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 Aim 1: Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner High 
Peak

5. Alternative Options

5.1 The Council could seek to negotiate local arrangements with partners (not 
recommended).

5.2 The Council could elect not to commit to the ASB Help pledge (not 
recommended).

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)

The guidance will assist in improving the response to victims of 
anti-social behaviour.

6.2 Workforce

Council officers will be required to implement the revised process 
and procedures along with partner organisations.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment

None

6.4 Financial Considerations

None

6.5 Legal

Adoption of the revised local guidance would ensure that the 
Council is compliant with the requirements of the Anti-Social 
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 and accompanying 
statutory guidance.

6.6 Climate Change

None

6.7 Consultation

Draft guidance was reviewed by ASB Help in December 2019 and 
considered by Data Protection Officers from Derbyshire Police, 
Derbyshire County Council and the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner (OPCC). 

Page 22



It was circulated to county community safety partners for a period 
of consultation in May 2020. 

The draft guidance has subsequently been approved by Derby and 
Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group, the Derbyshire County 
ASB Sub-Group, and the Derbyshire Safer Communities Board.

6.8 Risk Assessment

N/A

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/anti-social-behaviour-asb-
case-review-also-known-as-the-community-trigger

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/anti-social-
behaviour-crime-and-policing-bill-anti-social-behaviour

https://asbhelp.co.uk/community-trigger/the-asb-pledge/

https://asbhelp.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/ASB-
Help-The-Community-Trigger.-Where-We-Are-
Today.pdf

https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/victcomm2-prod-
storage-119w3o4kq2z48/uploads/2019/04/ASB-
report.pdf

David Smith
Principal Officer Communities & Partnerships
david.smith@highpeak.gov.uk

7. Detail

7.1 The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 20141 introduced a 
requirement for relevant bodies to carry out a review of the response to a 
complaint about anti-social behaviour in certain circumstances. Home Office 
guidance states that the ASB Case Review (or Community Trigger) was 
introduced to “give victims of persistent anti-social behaviour the ability to 
demand a formal case review where the locally defined threshold is met, in 
order to determine whether there is further action that can be taken”.

7.2 The Borough Council has received two Community Trigger applications (which 
met the threshold) in the past 3 years.

7.3 The relevant bodies for the purposes of the Act are the Borough Council, the 
chief officer of Derbyshire Constabulary, the North Derbyshire and Tameside 
and Glossop Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs), and any co-opted local 
providers of social housing. The Home Office also recommends that the youth 
offending team should be invited to attend any review where the perpetrator is 
under the age of 18.

1 Sections 104 and 105, and Schedule 4.

6.4

Page 23

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/anti-social-behaviour-asb-case-review-also-known-as-the-community-trigger
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/anti-social-behaviour-asb-case-review-also-known-as-the-community-trigger
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/anti-social-behaviour-crime-and-policing-bill-anti-social-behaviour
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/anti-social-behaviour-crime-and-policing-bill-anti-social-behaviour
https://asbhelp.co.uk/community-trigger/the-asb-pledge/
https://asbhelp.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/ASB-Help-The-Community-Trigger.-Where-We-Are-Today.pdf
https://asbhelp.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/ASB-Help-The-Community-Trigger.-Where-We-Are-Today.pdf
https://asbhelp.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/ASB-Help-The-Community-Trigger.-Where-We-Are-Today.pdf
https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/victcomm2-prod-storage-119w3o4kq2z48/uploads/2019/04/ASB-report.pdf
https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/victcomm2-prod-storage-119w3o4kq2z48/uploads/2019/04/ASB-report.pdf
https://s3-eu-west-2.amazonaws.com/victcomm2-prod-storage-119w3o4kq2z48/uploads/2019/04/ASB-report.pdf


7.4 The relevant bodies listed above must:

 set the local threshold for triggering ASB case reviews;

 establish and publish arrangements for conducting these reviews; and

 undertake a formal Case Review where an application is made and the 
local threshold is met.

7.5 Derbyshire County Council developed a countywide ‘Derbyshire Community 
Trigger Practitioner Guidance’ in 2014 which was subsequently adopted by the 
Borough Council. Details of how to invoke the ‘community trigger’ are shown on 
the Council’s website (www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1222/Community-trigger).

7.6 In April 2019, two national reports about the use and accessibility of the 
Community Trigger were published:

 ASB Help2, The Community Trigger Where We Are Today; and

 Victims’ Commissioner for England and Wales, Anti-Social Behaviour: 
Living A Nightmare.

7.7 In July 2020, the statutory guidance which accompanies the ASB Act was 
updated with a link to new guidance on the Community Trigger. 

7.8 In response to these events, the countywide guidance has been updated to 
reflect the changes. The key changes to the practitioner guidance are:

 Removal of a requirement for complaints to be received from five 
households as part of the threshold requirements.

 Victims to be invited to attend the Case Review meeting.

 Clarification of information sharing and consent arrangements to comply 
with GDPR.

 Additional templates created - ASB Case Review Agenda, Action Plan and 
a Perpetrator Proportionality Assessment.

 Inclusion of the option for partners to activate the Community Trigger, 
which would be subject to same application form and processes as for 
victims or other advocates.

 Clarification of the role of the Chair of the ASB Case Review Meeting.

 Annual monitoring information to be published on Safer Derbyshire and 
OPCC websites, as well as district/borough/city council website.

7.9 The revised guidance also contains a commitment to the ASB Help Pledge. The 
pledge is designed to help organisations to incorporate ASB Help’s best practice 
guidance into local community trigger policies and procedures. The pledge is as 
follows:

2 ASB Help is a registered charity in England and Wales set up to provide advice and support to 
victims of anti-social behaviour

Page 24

http://www.highpeak.gov.uk/article/1222/Community-trigger


1. Promote awareness: Actively encourage the use of the community trigger 
to residents and partner agencies.

2. Legality: Confirm your organisation is legally compliant and embracing 
the spirit of the community trigger.

3. Ensure accessibility: Publicise the community trigger so the most 
vulnerable know what it is and how to invoke it.

4. Develop your process: Embrace the full potential of the community 
trigger by continually reviewing and learning from best practice.

5. Generate inclusivity: Use community trigger review meetings to work 
collaboratively and strategically, formulating solutions to end the anti-
social behaviour.

6. Establish a precedent of using the community trigger to put victims first 
and deter perpetrators.

7.10 ASB Help attended the Derbyshire ASB Sub-Group meeting in December 2019 
and undertook a review of the draft revised guidance. The suggested changes 
have been incorporated with the revised guidance to allow organisations within 
Derbyshire to sign up to the pledge.

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

1 
 

Derbyshire  
Community Trigger /  

Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) 
Case Review 

 
Practitioner Guidance  

 
 

September 2020 
 

Version 2.0 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      
 

Page 27



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

2 
 

Contents 
INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................. 6 

Review of the Community Trigger Guidance ..................................................................... 6 

BACKGROUND .................................................................................................................... 7 

Legislation ......................................................................................................................... 7 

Definitions ......................................................................................................................... 7 

What is the Community Trigger? .................................................................................................... 7 

What is Anti-Social Behaviour? ....................................................................................................... 7 

Which Agencies are involved in the Community Trigger Process? ................................................. 7 

APPLICATION FOR THE COMMUNITY TRIGGER .............................................................. 8 

Who can use the Community Trigger? ............................................................................... 8 

What is the Threshold? ...................................................................................................... 8 

What if the Community Trigger Threshold is not met? ....................................................... 9 

How can an application for the Community Trigger be made? ........................................... 9 

Vexatious Complaints ........................................................................................................ 9 

Consent ........................................................................................................................... 10 

COMMUNITY TRIGGER PROCESS .................................................................................. 10 

Receipt of Community Trigger Application ....................................................................... 10 

Receipt of Third Party Community Trigger Application ..................................................... 11 

Assessing the Community Trigger Application ................................................................. 11 

Threshold Not Met ........................................................................................................... 11 

Threshold Met ................................................................................................................. 12 

Information Sharing ......................................................................................................... 12 

ASB Case Review Meeting .............................................................................................. 13 

Format ........................................................................................................................................... 13 

Attendance .................................................................................................................................... 14 

Chair .............................................................................................................................................. 14 

Purpose ......................................................................................................................................... 15 

Outcome of the ASB Case Review .................................................................................. 15 

Minutes ......................................................................................................................................... 15 

Action Plan .................................................................................................................................... 15 

Informing the Applicant ................................................................................................................ 16 

Recommendations ........................................................................................................................ 16 

Lessons Learned ............................................................................................................................ 16 

COMMUNITY TRIGGER APPEAL PROCESS .................................................................... 16 

Page 28



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

3 
 

Who can make an appeal? .............................................................................................. 16 

When can an appeal be made? ....................................................................................... 16 

How can an appeal be made? ......................................................................................... 17 

Appeal Process ............................................................................................................... 17 

Memorandum of Understanding ...................................................................................... 18 

ROLES WITHIN THE PROCESS ........................................................................................ 18 

Victim .............................................................................................................................. 18 

Applicant (if different from the victim) ............................................................................... 18 

Community Trigger SPOC (one for each CSP area) ........................................................ 18 

Relevant Bodies .............................................................................................................. 19 

Chair of ASB Case Review Meeting ................................................................................ 19 

Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner .................................................................. 20 

MONITORING INFORMATION ........................................................................................... 20 

REVIEW.............................................................................................................................. 21 

APPENDIX A ...................................................................................................................... 22 

Community Trigger Process Flowchart ............................................................................ 22 

APPENDIX B ...................................................................................................................... 23 

Community Trigger Application Form .............................................................................. 23 

APPENDIX C ...................................................................................................................... 31 

Guidance Notes for the Community Trigger Application Form ......................................... 31 

Community Trigger Threshold ......................................................................................... 31 

APPENDIX D ...................................................................................................................... 36 

Template Letters ............................................................................................................. 36 

Letter 1 – Confirm receipt of application ...................................................................................... 36 

Letter 2 – Victim consent required ............................................................................................... 37 

Letter 3 – Confirm receipt of application to victim, if not applicant ............................................ 38 

Letter 4 – Threshold not met ........................................................................................................ 39 

Letter 5 – Threshold met .............................................................................................................. 40 

Letter 6 – Outcome of review ....................................................................................................... 41 

APPENDIX E ...................................................................................................................... 43 

Threshold Assessment Template .................................................................................... 43 

APPENDIX F ...................................................................................................................... 46 

Victim Statement Template .............................................................................................. 46 

APPENDIX G ...................................................................................................................... 47 

ASB Case Review Meeting Agenda Template ................................................................. 47 

Page 29



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

4 
 

APPENDIX H ...................................................................................................................... 48 

Perpetrator Proportionality Assessment ........................................................................... 48 

APPENDIX I ........................................................................................................................ 50 

ASB Case Review Meeting Minutes Template ................................................................. 50 

APPENDIX J ....................................................................................................................... 55 

Action Plan Template ...................................................................................................... 55 

Appendix K ......................................................................................................................... 56 

Community Trigger Appeal Process Flowchart ................................................................ 56 

 
 
  

Page 30



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

5 
 

Change History 

 
Date Version Reason 

13/5/14 – 
19/8/14 

Versions 0.0 
– 0.4 

Development drafts 

29/9/14 Version 1.0 Approved by Derbyshire Safer Communities Board and 
Derby City Council 

27/3/17 Version 1.1 Amended to incorporate introduction of timescale for the 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner to receive 
appeals 

21/3/18 Version 1.2 Amended, following Derbyshire ASB Forum, to 
incorporate amendments to the statutory guidance 

26/6/20 DRAFT 
Version 2.0 

Amended to incorporate:- 

 Revised threshold and clarification that victims are to 
be given option to attend Case Review, as agreed at 
Derbyshire ASB Sub-Group meeting on 21/6/19.   

 Clarification of information sharing and recording 
procedures.  

 Additional templates for threshold assessment, 
victim statement, agenda and action plan. 

 Recommendations from a process review conducted 
by ASB Help to ensure compliance with the ASB 
Pledge, including the option for partner agencies to 
make applications and a Perpetrator Proportionality 
Assessment. 

 
Approved by Derbyshire ASB Sub-Group on 16/7/20 
Approved by Derbyshire Safer Communities Core 
Group on 2/9/20 
Approved by Derbyshire Safer Communities Board on 
24/9/20 

 
 
 
** Throughout this document, the term Community Trigger is used to refer to an Anti-
Social Behaviour Case Review.** 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 31



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

6 
 

INTRODUCTION 

Anti-social behaviour (ASB) continues to be a priority for residents, the Police and 
Crime Commissioner and all community safety partners in Derbyshire.  
 
ASB covers a wide range of incidents from litter and dog fouling to noise nuisance and 
targeted, abusive behaviour and cases often involve different types of ASB, reported 
to different organisations, which each have different legislative options available to 
them.  The complex nature of ASB means that agencies must work together to bring 
perpetrators to justice and provide the right level of support for victims. 
 
The Community Trigger, or ASB Case Review, was introduced by the Anti-Social 
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act in 2014 and the aim of this document is to translate 
the ‘Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014: Anti-social behaviour powers 
- Statutory guidance for frontline professionals’, issued by the Home Office in July 
2014 (updated August 2019), into guidance to assist agencies to work together to 
tackle ASB in Derbyshire and meet their statutory obligations under the legislation.   
 
This guidance has been produced by Safer Derbyshire, in consultation with, and on 
behalf of, the Community Trigger ‘relevant bodies’ and wider anti-social behaviour 
partners in Derbyshire. 
 
We want to ensure a consistent approach for victims of ASB, who wish to use the 
Community Trigger to request a review of the action taken to deal with the ASB they 
are experiencing.  This guidance outlines the process, elements of which may be 
localised by each Community Safety Partnership (CSP) in terms of exactly how the 
ASB Case Review will be conducted, but the minimum steps and timescales, 
described within this document, should be followed by all partners involved in the 
Community Trigger process. 
 
This guidance is intended to complement, not replace, individual agency complaints 
procedures.  Complaints about individual officers, or services, should be directed to 
those complaints procedures and/or the Local Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman or the Independent Office for Police Conduct. 
 
Review of the Community Trigger Guidance 
In 2019, ASB Help, a registered charity in England and Wales that provides advice 
and support to victims of ASB, produced a report, ‘The Community Trigger. Where 
We Are Today’, detailing their findings from a national review of the Community 
Trigger process and usage.  It provided a number of recommendations 
summarised within a proposed ‘Community Trigger Charter’ (now known as the 
ASB Help Pledge) to ‘ensure the Community Trigger is an effective way of 
empowering victims of repeat, persistent anti-social behaviour and see its potential to 
make a difference for victims and communities unlocked.’ 
 
In addition, the Victims Commissioner produced a joint report with ASB Help and 
Nottingham Trent University, ‘Anti-Social Behaviour: Living A Nightmare’, which 
made a number of additional recommendations to improve the experience of 
victims of ASB.   
 

Page 32

https://asbhelp.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/ASB-Help-The-Community-Trigger.-Where-We-Are-Today.pdf
https://asbhelp.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/ASB-Help-The-Community-Trigger.-Where-We-Are-Today.pdf
https://asbhelp.co.uk/community-trigger/the-asb-pledge/
https://victimscommissioner.org.uk/published-reviews/anti-social-behaviour-living-a-nightmare/


PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

7 
 

In Derbyshire, there are well established structures and processes, which ensure 
strong partnership working in relation to the management of ASB.  Our Community 
Trigger guidance was originally developed in 2014, but it already incorporated the 
majority of the recommendations suggested by in the reports produced by ASB 
Help and the Victims Commissioner.   
 
We have, however, taken this opportunity to undertake a thorough review of our 
Community Trigger processes and consulted ‘relevant bodies’, local partners and 
ASB Help to produce this revised guidance. 
 
In addition to this updated guidance, Derbyshire is proud to sign up to the ASB Help 
Pledge, demonstrating our commitment to supporting victims of ASB by working 
together to tackle ASB, bring perpetrators to justice and make Derbyshire an even 
safer place to live, work and visit. 
 
 

BACKGROUND 

Legislation 
The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 places a duty on the ‘relevant 
bodies’ in that area to develop procedures for conducting ASB Case Reviews.  This is 
also referred to as the ‘Community Trigger’. 
 
Definitions 
What is the Community Trigger? 
The Community Trigger gives victims the right to request a review of the response to 
their complaints of ASB, where they feel the problem persists and 

 there has been no response from agencies 
or 

 there has been an inadequate response from agencies responsible for dealing 
with the ASB. 

 
The Community Trigger is subject to specific criteria, or a ‘threshold’. 
 
The aim of the Community Trigger is to encourage a joined up, problem solving and 
victim-centred approach to the resolution of the serious and persistent problems 
experienced by victims of ASB.  It enables agencies to review a case and re-consider 
their actions objectively. 
 
What is Anti-Social Behaviour? 
For the purpose of the Community Trigger, ASB is defined, in the legislation, as 
‘behaviour causing harassment, alarm or distress to a member, or members, of the 
public’.  
 
Which Agencies are involved in the Community Trigger Process? 
The ‘relevant bodies’ are defined, in the legislation, as the District/City Council, Police, 
Clinical Commissioning Group and local Social Housing Providers.  In addition, the 
Youth Offending Service will be involved, where the review involves a perpetrator who 
is under 18. 
 

Page 33

https://asbhelp.co.uk/community-trigger/the-asb-pledge/
https://asbhelp.co.uk/community-trigger/the-asb-pledge/


PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

8 
 

Depending on the individual case, it may also be appropriate to involve other partners 
that have, or ought to have, been involved in the case from a victim and perpetrator 
perspective, e.g. schools, Children’s Services, Adult Services, Mental Health Services, 
Probation Service, Fire and Rescue Service etc. 
 
In Derbyshire, the Community Safety Team at the appropriate District/City Council acts 
as the administrator, or ‘Single Point of Contact’ (SPOC), for the Community Trigger 
process. 
 
 

APPLICATION FOR THE COMMUNITY TRIGGER 

Who can use the Community Trigger? 
Subject to meeting the threshold, the Community Trigger can be ‘activated’ by a victim 
of ASB or another person acting on behalf of the victim, with their consent, such as a 
family member, carer, elected member or MP.   
 
Managers (equivalent of Police Inspector or above) of partner agencies receiving 
complaints of ASB, or supporting victims of ASB, could also activate the Community 
Trigger for the victim, if they determine that reported ASB incidents meet the threshold 
for an ASB Case Review and the ASB has not been resolved through talking to the 
local Community Safety Partnership.  
 
Where a partner identified issues relating to the ‘lack of engagement’ of a specific 
partner, these should be escalated through existing community safety structures, such 
as Tasking, Strategy Group, Derbyshire Safer Communities Core Group, Safer 
Communities Board/Safer and Stronger Board.   
 
The victim could be an individual, a business or a community group.   
 
What is the Threshold? 
The criteria, or threshold, for submitting a Community Trigger application for agencies 
to undertake an ASB Case Review is:- 
 

 Three or more ‘qualifying complaints’ about related incidents of ASB, that 
occurred on separate occasions, within the last six months. 

 
 
Explanatory Notes 
The purpose of the ASB Case Review is to consider how to deal with serious 
persistent, or targeted, ASB that the relevant bodies have been unable to tackle 
successfully.   
 
In deciding whether the threshold has been met for triggering a review, there must be 
a link between the complaints.  
 
For the avoidance of doubt, if the partners receive separate complaints about totally 
unconnected ASB, then they will not be counted together in deciding whether the 
threshold has been met.  This will be the case even if the type of ASB is the same.  

Page 34



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

9 
 

For example, if noise nuisance is suffered from two different sources, the complaints 
will not generally be counted together. 
 
Also, if a complaint about the same incident has been made to multiple agencies, it 
will only count as one incident. 
 

A ‘qualifying complaint’ is one which is made within the period of one month, 
beginning with the date on which the behaviour is alleged to have occurred.  
Further, a complaint is a report of an ASB incident, which is made to a relevant 
body, either in writing, by e-mail, by telephone or by visiting the offices of the 
relevant body.  Other than to a Police Officer or Police Community Support 
Officer on duty, reporting an incident of ASB to an officer of the relevant 
organisation, whilst he/she is on site, in the community, will not normally be 
considered to be a qualifying complaint. 
 

What if the Community Trigger Threshold is not met? 
If the threshold for the Community Trigger is not met, the formal ASB Case Review 
procedures, outlined in this guidance, will not be invoked, but it does provide an 
opportunity for the relevant bodies to undertake an informal review of the case to 
determine whether there is more that can be done. 
 
If the threshold is not met, an informal case review should be considered for all hate 
incidents or cases where the risk assessment of the victim identifies them as 
vulnerable, due to the harm caused by the seriousness, or cumulative impact, of the 
ASB.  
 
How can an application for the Community Trigger be made? 
Victims of ASB, their advocates or partner agencies, who wish to request a review of 
their case must complete the Community Trigger Application Form, with full details of 
the incidents of ASB.   
 
The Community Trigger Application Form is available, in hardcopy, from the SPOC for 
the relevant area or, as an online/downloadable form, on the relevant District/City 
Council website.  Links to each council’s website are available at 
https://www.saferderbyshire.gov.uk/what-we-do/anti-social-behaviour/reporting-anti-
social-behaviour/community-trigger/community-trigger.aspx  
 
Templates for the application form and applicant guidance notes are at APPENDIX B 
and APPENDIX C. 
 
Vexatious Complaints 
Community Trigger applications will be rejected if they are thought to be prejudicial, 
discriminatory, malicious or vexatious.  They will be dealt with in accordance with the 
receiving agency’s complaints policy. 
 
Anonymous applications will not be accepted. 
 
  

Page 35

https://www.saferderbyshire.gov.uk/what-we-do/anti-social-behaviour/reporting-anti-social-behaviour/community-trigger/community-trigger.aspx
https://www.saferderbyshire.gov.uk/what-we-do/anti-social-behaviour/reporting-anti-social-behaviour/community-trigger/community-trigger.aspx


PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

10 
 

Consent 
The ASB Crime and Policing Act 2014 places a legal obligation on the ‘relevant bodies’ 
to undertake an ASB Case Review, once a ‘completed application’ is received, which 
meets the local threshold. 
 

A ‘completed application’ includes all required information on the application 
form and the victim’s consent (or evidence of a third party’s authority to act), 
where the application has been made by a third party. 

 
Implicit in that legal obligation is the need for the ‘relevant bodies’ to share personal 
information about the victim, which is necessary, relevant and proportionate in order 
to establish whether the application meets the threshold and, if so, to undertake the 
ASB Case Review.  
 
The ‘relevant bodies’ do not, therefore, require the consent of the applicant to process 
their personal data for the purpose of undertaking an ASB Case Review.  In order to 
comply with Article 6 of the General Data Protection Regulations (Lawfulness of 
Processing), the relevant bodies will instead rely upon Article 6 c ‘the processing is 
necessary for compliance with a legal obligation to which the controller is subject’. 
 
To ensure transparency, the Guidance Notes that accompany the Community Trigger 
application form (See APPENDIX C) detail how information will be shared between 
partner agencies to conduct the ASB Case Review. 
 
However, an application for the Community Trigger from a third party must be 
accompanied by evidence that the third party has authority to act on the victim's 
behalf.  It is the third party’s responsibility to supply this. Where the victim is competent 
to give consent, this evidence must take the form of written consent from the victim, 
authorising the third party to make the application on their behalf and to receive 
information about the application from the relevant bodies.  Where the victim is not 
competent to give consent, other evidence must be supplied (e.g. Power of Attorney). 
The review process will not commence until this has been received by the SPOC.   
 
If a victim wishes to withdraw their consent for an advocate to act, this must be 
submitted, in writing, to the SPOC.  From that point, all future contact will be directly 
with the victim. 
 
If a victim wishes to withdraw their Community Trigger application, this must be 
provided, in writing, to the SPOC.  Upon receipt, the review process will stop. 
 
 

COMMUNITY TRIGGER PROCESS 

Receipt of Community Trigger Application 
All application forms for the Community Trigger must be submitted to the designated 
SPOC for each Community Safety Partnership (CSP) area, as detailed on their local 
website.  The applicant will have the choice of completing an online form or a hardcopy 
application form. 
 

Page 36



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

11 
 

A ‘completed application’ includes all required information on the application 
form and the victim’s consent (or evidence of a third party’s authority to act), 
where the application has been made by a third party. 
 
The ‘applicant’ is the victim, or their advocate, who has submitted the 
application. 

 
Within 5 working days, the SPOC should:- 

 Telephone the ‘applicant’ to acknowledge receipt of the ‘completed application’.   

 Offer a referral to Derbyshire Victim Services. 

 Formally acknowledge the application, using Template Letter 1 at APPENDIX 
D.  

 Update E-CINS:- 
o Create a new Case linked to the victim’s Profile, using the Case title 

format ‘Community Trigger victim’s name’.  The Case number will be the 
reference used in all written correspondence with the applicant. 

o Record ‘Community Trigger application received’ as an ‘Action’.   
o Upload a copy of the letter(s) to the ‘Documents’ tab. 

 
Receipt of Third Party Community Trigger Application 
In addition to the above, the SPOC should:- 

 Ensure the victim’s consent (or evidence of a third party’s authority to act) has 
been received. If not, request this from the advocate, using Template Letter 2.  
NB The review process will not commence until the victim’s written 
consent, or evidence of authority to act, has been received by the SPOC.   

 Once received, telephone the victim to ensure they are aware of the application 
and send Template Letter 3 to the victim. 

 
Assessing the Community Trigger Application 
Within 15 working days of receipt of the completed application, the SPOC should:- 

 Review the application on behalf of the relevant bodies  

 Liaise with the appropriate agencies to establish whether the application meets 
the threshold, in terms of qualifying complaints. A template to collate 
information from partners is included at APPENDIX E 

 Establish the vulnerability of both victims and perpetrators.   

 Notify the applicant, in writing, of the decision as to whether the threshold has 
been met or not, using the appropriate template. 

 
Threshold Not Met 
If the threshold for the Community Trigger has not been met, the SPOC should:- 

 Advise the applicant in writing, using Template Letter 4.  

 Update E-CINS:- 
o Upload a copy of the letter to the ‘Documents’ tab. 
o Record ‘Community Trigger Threshold not met’ as an ‘Action’ 
o Archive the Case. 

 
If the ASB is on-going, it will be managed through existing multi-agency processes 
and procedures. 
 

Page 37



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

12 
 

If the applicant is not satisfied with the decision that their application does not meet 
the threshold, they can follow the COMMUNITY TRIGGER APPEAL PROCESS. 
 
Situations where there are repeated Community Trigger applications which, on 
investigation, relate to non-ASB matters, may be an indicator of an underlying 
vulnerability, or unmet need.  In these circumstances, the Community Trigger process 
is not appropriate, but partners should consider hidden needs, or risks, which may 
require a multi-agency response, for example through the Vulnerable Adult Risk 
Management (VARM) process. 
 
Threshold Met 
If the threshold for the Community Trigger has been met, the SPOC should:- 

 Send Template Letter 5 to the applicant, advising the date of the ASB Case 
Review Meeting, which should take place within 20 working days of the date 
of Template Letter 5. 

 Make personal contact with the applicant / victim to explain the review process, 
gather additional information and establish what outcome the applicant wants 
from the review.  This will enable the SPOC to understand, and manage, their 
expectations. 

 Give the victim the option to attend the ASB Case Review Meeting to help the 
agencies understand the impact of the ASB on the physical and emotional 
health and quality of life of the victim, members of their household and their 
visitors. If the victim, or their advocate, does not wish to attend the meeting, 
they should be invited to submit a written ‘victim statement’, to expand on 
information already provided on the Community Trigger application form (See 
APPENDIX F). 

 The relevant bodies may decide that there are good reasons as to why a victim 
is not invited to attend the ASB Case Review, and these should be recorded in 
the Minutes. 

 Update E-CINS:- 
o Upload a copy of the letter(s) to the ‘Documents’ tab. 
o Record ‘Community Trigger Threshold met’ as an ‘Action’. 

 
Information Sharing 
For the Community Trigger process to be effective, partners are required, under 
Schedule 4, Part 3 of the ASB, Crime and Policing Act 2014, to comply with the 
SPOC’s request for information and share information, which will enable the relevant 
bodies to conduct the ASB Case Review, objectively.  The exceptions to this are where 
disclosure:- 

 Contravenes Data Protection legislation, as defined at Section 3 (9) of the Data 
Protection Act 2018 

 Is prohibited by any of Parts 1 to 7, or Chapter 1 of Part 9, of the Investigatory 
Powers Act 2016 
 

In most cases, partners involved in the review process will already be signed up to the 
Derbyshire ASB Information Sharing Agreement but, for the purposes of the 
Community Trigger, information sharing is also facilitated under the following 
legislation:- 

 Section 104 of the ASB, Crime and Policing Act 2014 

 Schedule 2, Part 1, 5 (2) of the Data Protection Act 2018 

Page 38



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

13 
 

 Section 115 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 
 
An ASB Case Review may require the involvement of additional partner agencies, who 
are not defined as ‘relevant bodies’.  This is acceptable, providing personal data is 
only shared with those other organisations, where it is strictly ‘necessary, relevant and 
proportionate’ in order to conduct an effective review. This is particularly important 
where the personal data relates to a child or is a ‘special category of personal data’, 
or relates to a third party. Consideration must be given to the redaction of personal 
data that is not strictly necessary, relevant or proportionate for the purpose of the ASB 
Case Review. 
 

‘Special categories of personal data’ include personal data revealing racial or 
ethnic origin, political opinions, religious or philosophical beliefs, trade union 
membership, genetic data, biometric data, data concerning health or a person’s 
sex life or their sexual orientation. 

 
A nominated officer, within each partner agency that has received, and responded to, 
the complaints made by the victim(s), will collate information that is to be shared at the 
ASB Case Review Meeting.  
 
Information relating to the six-month period, prior to the receipt of the Community 
Trigger application, should be shared.  This may include:- 

 Details of previous ASB incidents reported by the victim(s) 

 Risk assessments for all victims and perpetrators 

 Information about the effect the problem has had on the victim and others in the 
community 

 Details of action previously considered  

 Details of action taken 

 Perpetrator Proportionality Assessment, if previously completed. 
 
This list is not exhaustive. 
 

 
ASB Case Review Meeting 
The ASB Case Review Meeting should take place within 20 working days of 
Template Letter 5, advising the applicant that the Community Trigger threshold was 
met. 
 
The SPOC will:- 

 Arrange the meeting 

 Identify and invite representatives from appropriate agencies 

 Identify an independent Chair, to be agreed by the relevant bodies 
 
Format 
The ‘format’ of the meeting will vary from area to area, depending on existing 
partnership arrangements.  Examples of how the ASB Case Review could be 
conducted include:- 

 Within an existing multi-agency meeting – e.g. Tasking Meeting, ASB Strategy 
Meeting 

Page 39



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

14 
 

 At the end of an existing multi-agency meeting 

 A separate meeting 
 
Attendance 
The ASB Case Review Meeting must be attended by the SPOC and appropriate 
manager level representatives of the relevant bodies:- 

 District / City Council 

 Derbyshire Constabulary 

 Clinical Commissioning Group (or appropriate healthcare provider) 

 Social housing provider, where the review involves one of their tenants (as a 
victim or perpetrator) 

 Youth Offending Service, where the review involves a perpetrator who is under 
18 

 
Depending on the individual case, it may also be appropriate to invite other partners 
that have, or ought to have, been involved in the case from a victim and perpetrator 
perspective, e.g. schools, Children’s Services, Adult Services, Mental Health Services, 
Probation Service, Fire and Rescue Service, etc.   
 
Attendees should be able to make operational decisions on behalf of their organisation 
and commit to actions and resources. 
 
The victim, or their advocate, should be invited to attend at least part of the ASB Case 
Review Meeting, to help the review panel understand the impact of the ASB on the 
physical and emotional health and quality of life of the victim, members of their 
household and their visitors. Where involved, the ASB Case Worker from Derbyshire 
Victim Services should also attend. 
 
If the victim does not wish to attend the meeting, their views should be adequately 
represented, either by the attendance of an advocate or a written ‘victim statement’ 
from the victim.  A template is included at APPENDIX F. 
 
The relevant bodies may decide that there are good reasons as to why a victim is not 
to be invited to attend the ASB Case Review and these should be recorded in the 
Minutes. 
 
Chair 
It is likely that many of the agency representatives will have been involved with the 
case, at some point, so it is essential that the Chair of the meeting is independent.   
 
The Chair should be appointed on a case-by-case basis and, depending on the nature 
of the complaints, could be:- 

 A senior manager from one of the relevant bodies, who is familiar with ASB 
case management, but has no previous involvement in the case 

 The Community Trigger SPOC, or senior manager of one of the relevant bodies 
from another area, ideally one not within the same police division. 

 
  

Page 40



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

15 
 

The Chair is responsible for:- 

 Ensuring the best interests of the victim(s) are considered and solutions 
identified to stop/reduce/manage the ASB 

 Ensuring partner representatives have no conflict of interest 

 Determining whether it is appropriate to complete the Perpetrator 
Proportionality Assessment (APPENDIX ) 

 Resolving any disagreements between partner agencies 

 Having the final decision on the content of the Action Plan 

 Identifying learning opportunities for partners 

 Removing any desire to apportion blame. 
 
Purpose 
The aim of the ASB Case Review Meeting is to actively problem solve the case.  The 
meeting must consider the qualifying complaints and:- 

 Consider the persistence and cumulative impact of the ASB; 

 Consider the harm caused, or the potential for harm to be caused, to the victim 
by the ASB; 

 Consider who is the victim and who is the perpetrator (for example in neighbour 
disputes); 

 Consider whether the complaints are malicious or vexatious; 

 Consider whether any additional information needs to be obtained; 

 Review what action has been taken and whether it was adequate to stop, or 
reduce, the ASB; 

 Where appropriate, make recommendations for additional actions to resolve 
the problem; 

 Make a decision for communication to the applicant; 

 Agree which agency will liaise with the victim; 

 Identify the Lead Officer(s) to implement the resulting Action Plan, if 
appropriate. 

 
An agenda template is at APPENDIX G. 
 
Outcome of the ASB Case Review 
Minutes 
Minutes of the ASB Case Review Meeting will be recorded, using the template at 
APPENDIX I to clearly record the decision and any recommendations.   
 
The SPOC will:- 

 Circulate the Minutes to all relevant partners  

 Update E-CINS:- 
o Upload the Minutes to the ‘Documents’ tab. 
o Record ‘Community Trigger Review Meeting held’ as an ‘Action’. 

 
Action Plan 
The proposed actions to be taken to resolve the ASB should be recorded on the Action 
Plan, using the template at APPENDIX H. 
 
The Action Plan will be reviewed at future Tasking Meeting/ASB Meetings, to ensure 
actions are completed within agreed timescales. 

Page 41



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

16 
 

 
Informing the Applicant 
Within 5 working days of the ASB Case Review Meeting, the SPOC should:- 

 Inform the applicant of the outcome and any recommendations, either via 
telephone or face-to-face.   

 Discuss the recommendations with the applicant and agree the Action Plan.  
The applicant may not agree to all the recommendations, but this should be 
clearly recorded. 

 Send Template Letter 6 to the applicant and victim.  

 Hand over the responsibility for the Action Plan to the appropriate Lead 
Officer(s). 

 Update E-CINS:- 
o Upload the Action Plan and letter(s) to the ‘Documents’ tab. 
o Record ‘Community Trigger Action Plan’ as an ‘Action’. 

 
Template Letter 6, advising the applicant of the outcome of the ASB Case Review 
Meeting, resets the ‘qualifying period’ in terms of calculating ‘qualifying complaints’, 
should the applicant activate the Community Trigger for the same matter in the future.  
 
If the applicant is not satisfied with the outcome of the ASB Case Review, they should 
follow the COMMUNITY TRIGGER APPEAL PROCESS. 
 
Recommendations 
The ASB Case Review Meeting will not be able to recommend the Crown Prosecution 
Service (CPS) take action, nor will it prompt a review of decisions previously made by 
the CPS.  If the victim is not happy with a decision made by the CPS, they should be 
referred to the CPS complaints procedure and the Victims’ Right to Review Scheme. 
 
The ASB Case Review Meeting may make recommendations to other agencies.  
Public bodies have a duty to have regard to those recommendations and they may be 
challenged if they choose not to undertake them, without good reason. 
 
Lessons Learned 
The ASB Case Review Meeting does not seek to lay blame for any potential failings, 
as this would be the subject of a formal complaint investigation, but there may be 
organisational and procedural lessons learnt as a result of a review.  These will be 
shared with partners across Derbyshire at the next Derbyshire ASB-Sub-Group 
Meeting. 
 
 

COMMUNITY TRIGGER APPEAL PROCESS 

Who can make an appeal? 
Anyone, who has previously submitted a Community Trigger application, can make 
an appeal. 
 
The appeal body is the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire. 
 
When can an appeal be made? 
An appeal can be lodged at the following stages in the process:- 

Page 42



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

17 
 

 When an application has been assessed as not meeting the Community Trigger 
threshold for Derbyshire. 

 After the ASB Case Review Meeting, if the victim is not satisfied with the 
outcome, or the Community Trigger process as a whole. 

 
An appeal must be lodged with the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
Derbyshire, within 28 days of the date the applicant was notified of the decision that is 
being appealed.   
 
How can an appeal be made? 
An appeal must be made in writing, either e-mail, letter or completed application form, 
to the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner at:-  
 
Community Trigger Appeal 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire 
Derbyshire Constabulary Headquarters 
Butterley Hall 
Ripley 
Derbyshire 
DE5 3RS 
E-mail:  pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk 
 
Further information for the applicant, including a copy of the Community Trigger 
Appeal Application Form, is available at www.derbyshire-pcc.gov.uk/Public-
Information/CommunityTrigger  
 
Appeal Process 
The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner will acknowledge receipt of a 
Community Trigger appeal within one working day. 
 
The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner will request information about the 
ASB Case Review from the relevant area SPOC.   
 
The SPOC must:- 

 Provide copies of the following information as a minimum:- 
o The Community Trigger Application Form 
o The ASB Case Review Meeting Minutes  
o Template Letter 6 sent to victim, confirming the agreed Action Plan 

 Record ‘Community Trigger Appeal received’ as an ‘Action’ on E-CINS. 
 
The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner will assess the appeal, based on 
the documents collected, and notify the appellant, and relevant bodies, of the appeal 
decision, within 20 working days of the appeal being lodged. 
 
The SPOC should record the outcome of the appeal as an ‘Action’ on E-CINS, as 
either ‘Community Trigger Appeal upheld’ or ‘Community Trigger Appeal rejected’. 
 
The organisational and procedural lessons learnt as a result of an appeal will be 
shared with partners across Derbyshire at the next Derbyshire ASB-Sub-Group 

Page 43

mailto:pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk
http://www.derbyshire-pcc.gov.uk/Public-Information/CommunityTrigger
http://www.derbyshire-pcc.gov.uk/Public-Information/CommunityTrigger


PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

18 
 

Meeting.  The information will also be included within an annual report to the Local 
Criminal Justice Board. 
 
Memorandum of Understanding 
The Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner and partners have signed a 
Memorandum of Understanding to outline the roles and expectations of all partners 
and the basis for sharing information, within the appeal element of the Community 
Trigger process. 
 
 

ROLES WITHIN THE PROCESS 

The roles and responsibilities of the individuals / agencies within this process are 
summarised below:-  
 
Victim 

 Complete the Community Trigger Application Form, providing full details of the 
ASB incidents. 

 Submit the application form to the area SPOC. 

 Give written consent for an advocate to act, if applicable. 

 Attend the ASB Case Review Meeting, or ask an advocate to attend in their 
place. 

 Submit a written victim statement, if not attending the ASB Case Review in 
person. 

 Consider recommendations and agree Action Plan, with SPOC, following the 
ASB Case Review Meeting. 

 If dissatisfied with the outcome of the Community Trigger, lodge an appeal with 
the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner. 
 

Applicant (if different from the victim) 

 Obtain the victim’s written consent (or evidence of their authority to act eg 
Power of Attorney). 

 Complete the Community Trigger Application Form on behalf of the victim. 

 Submit the application form and victim’s written consent (or evidence of their 
authority to act) to the area SPOC. 

 Attend the ASB Case Review Meeting on behalf of the victim or accompany the 
victim, if they wish to attend themselves. 

 If dissatisfied with the outcome of the Community Trigger, lodge an appeal with 
the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner, together with the victim’s 
written consent. 
 

Community Trigger SPOC (one for each CSP area) 

 Be single point of contact for victims, and their advocates, in relation to the 
Community Trigger. 

 Make the Community Trigger Application Form easily available to the public. 

 Receive Community Trigger applications. 

 Where appropriate, request advocate obtains victim consent (or supply 
evidence of their authority to act) for third party applications. 

 Confirm receipt of completed applications. 

Page 44

https://www.derbyshire-pcc.gov.uk/Document-Library/SupportingVictims/CommunityTrigger/MoU---Community-Trigger-(Appeals).pdf


PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

19 
 

 Offer a referral to Derbyshire Victim Services. 

 Liaise with relevant bodies to establish whether the threshold has been met. 

 Establish the vulnerability of victims and perpetrators. 

 Notify applicant whether the threshold has been met or not. 

 Collate own agency information to share with partners at the ASB Case Review 
Meeting. 

 Arrange ASB Case Review Meeting, inviting representatives from all 
appropriate agencies. 

 Identify an independent Chair for the ASB Case Review Meeting. 

 Invite the victim, or their advocate, to attend the ASB Case Review Meeting (or 
provide a written statement if they do not wish to attend in person). 

 Attend the ASB Case Review Meeting. 

 Adhere to confidentiality statement and Information Sharing Agreement. 

 Circulate Minutes of ASB Case Review Meeting. 

 Advise applicant of outcome of ASB Case Review Meeting. 

 Discuss the recommendations of ASB Case Review Meeting and agree the 
Action Plan with the applicant. 

 Hand over implementation of Action Plan to agreed Lead Officer(s). 

 Update E-CINS throughout the progress of the Community Trigger application. 

 Provide the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner with information, if 
required for the appeal process. 

 Share the lessons learned from each Community Trigger application and 
appeal at the next Derbyshire ASB Sub-Group Meeting. 

 Maintain a record of Community Trigger applications. 

 Publish the annual Community Trigger monitoring information. 
 

Relevant Bodies 

 Complete the Community Trigger Application Form on the victim’s behalf, if 
consider an ASB Case Review is required (managers equivalent of Police 
Inspector or above only). 

 Provide SPOC with information to establish whether the threshold has been 
met. 

 Appoint an independent Chair for ASB Case Review Meeting. 

 Appoint an officer to take the Minutes. 

 Collate information to share with partners at the ASB Case Review Meeting. 

 Appropriate level of officer to attend ASB Case Review Meeting (or submit a 
written report to Chair, if unable to provide an agency representative). 

 Adhere to confidentiality statement and Information Sharing Agreement. 

 Implement Action Plan, as agreed with applicant. 

 Provide the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner with information, if 
required for the appeal process. 

 
Chair of ASB Case Review Meeting 

 Ensure all agencies sign a confidentiality statement. 

 Ensure participants have no conflict of interest. 

 Ensure the best interests of the victim(s) are considered and solutions identified 
to stop/reduce/manage the ASB. 

Page 45



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

20 
 

 Determining whether it is appropriate to complete the Perpetrator 
Proportionality Assessment  

 Resolve any disagreements between partner agencies. 

 Have the final decision on the content of the Action Plan. 

 Identify learning opportunities for partners. 

 Remove any desire to apportion blame. 
 

Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner 

 Manage the Community Trigger appeal process. 

 Receive written appeals. 

 Where appropriate, request victim consent for third party appeals. 

 Confirm receipt of appeals. 

 Liaise with area SPOC to obtain the required information to consider the appeal. 

 Assess the appeal. 

 Advise appellant, SPOC and relevant bodies, of the outcome of a Community 
Trigger appeal. 

 Publish the annual Community Trigger Monitoring information for Derbyshire. 

 Include information about Community Trigger appeals in the annual report to 
the Local Criminal Justice Board. 

 
 

MONITORING INFORMATION 

The legislation requires that each Community Safety Partnership publishes the 
following information with regard to the use of the Community Trigger:- 

 The number of applications for ASB Case Reviews 

 The number of applications for ASB Case Reviews that did not meet the 
threshold 

 The number of ASB Case Reviews conducted 

 The number of ASB Case Reviews that resulted in recommendations being 
made. 

 
In addition, we will also publish the number of Community Trigger appeals received by 
the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner.  
 
To enable this information to be available, it is essential that the SPOC updates              
E-CINS at every stage of the Community Trigger process. 
 
The Community Trigger monitoring information will be published annually by each 
Community Safety Partnership, within their statutory Community Safety Plan and on 
their website.   
 
Countywide monitoring information will be collated by Safer Derbyshire and published 
annually on the Safer Derbyshire website and the Office of the Police and Crime 
Commissioner’s website. 
 
 

Page 46



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

21 
 

REVIEW  

The Derbyshire Community Trigger Practitioner Guidance will be reviewed every two 
years by Derbyshire ASB Sub-Group. 
 
                                         

  

Page 47



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

22 
 

APPENDIX A 

Community Trigger Process Flowchart 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Application completed 

Completed application received  
(including written consent, where applicable) 

5
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a

y
s
* 

Acknowledge receipt of application  

Establish facts to determine whether threshold has been met  

Threshold met  Threshold not met  

Inform applicant  Inform applicant that review will take place 
within 20 working days 

Respond to 
ASB following 

existing 
procedures 

2
0

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
* 

1
5

 w
o

rk
in

g
 d

a
y
s
* 

Contact applicant / victim to discuss their 
expectations 

Information gathering 

ASB Case Review Meeting 

Notify applicant of decision and 
recommendations  

Agree Action Plan with applicant  

Delivery of Action Plan 

Resolution Escalation  
(see Appeal Process)

  

Escalation  
(see Appeal 

Process)
  

* Working days are defined as Monday – Friday, excluding Bank Holidays 

 

5
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a

y
s
* 

Page 48



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

23 
 

APPENDIX B 

Community Trigger Application Form  
 
For assistance completing the Community Trigger Application Form, please see the separate Guidance Notes or contact (INSERT 
LOCAL CONTACT DETAILS). 
 

*  Indicates questions which must be completed.  There are additional questions for you to provide more information to support your 
application, if you wish. 

 
Q1.  On what basis are you making a Community Trigger application for an Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review?* 
 Please ensure you meet the Community Trigger threshold, detailed in the Guidance Notes that accompany this application 

form. 
 

  a – I am the person affected by the anti-social behaviour and have made three or more qualifying complaints, within the last 
six months. Go to Q3 

   

  b – I am acting on behalf of the person affected by the anti-social behaviour, who has made three or more qualifying 
complaints, within the last six months.  Go to Q2 

  

P
age 49



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

24 
 

 
Q2. Advocate Details* (Required if 1b ticked) 

If you are acting on behalf of someone else, complete your details then go to Q3 

*Name:  

*Address:  

*Daytime No:  Mobile No:  

E-mail:  

 
 
Q3. Details of the person affected by the anti-social behaviour* 

*Name:  

*Address:  

*Daytime No:  Mobile No:  

E-mail:  

 
  

P
age 50



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

25 
 

 
Q4.  Briefly describe the type of anti-social behaviour you have been experiencing.* (individual incidents are to be detailed 

at Q5) 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  

P
age 51



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

26 
 

Q5.  Please provide details of the anti-social behaviour incidents – who reported the incidents, when they were reported, 
who they were reported to and how.* 

Incident 
date 

Incident details – ie what happened? Reported by Date 
reported 

Agency reported 
to 

How reported  
eg writing, 
telephone, in 
person, online 

  
 
 

    

  
 
 

    

  
 
 

    

  
 
 

    

  
 
 

    

 
If there are more than five reported incidents of anti-social behaviour, please attach a separate sheet with the details.

P
age 52



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

27 
 

Q6.  How has the anti-social behaviour affected you/the person you are acting on behalf of? 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Q7.  What action has been taken, to your knowledge? 

 

 
Q8.  What further action are you hoping for? 

 

  

P
age 53



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

28 
 

Q9.  Have you any special circumstances that we need to take into consideration?  If so, please provide details. 

 

 
 
Q10.  Please provide any other information relevant to your Community Trigger application. 

 
 

 

P
age 54



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

29 
 

Signature* 
 

  I confirm that the information given in this Community Trigger Application Form is correct to the best of my knowledge and 
belief. 
 

 
In order to undertake an Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review, we (the ‘relevant bodies’) need to share information  In some 
cases, it may be necessary to share information with other partners, that we consider appropriate to be involved in the 
review process, to help resolve your case.  Full information about how we will share information is detailed within the 
Guidance Notes for the Community Trigger Application Form and our Privacy Notice INSERT LINK OR DETAILS OF HOW 
TO FIND LOCAL AUTHORITY PRIVACY NOTICE. 
 

 
 

 By requesting that an Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review is undertaken, I acknowledge, and understand, that the ‘relevant 
bodies’, and other partners as necessary, will share personal information they hold about me in order to progress a review 
of my case.  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Signature of Community Trigger applicant Date 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 55



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

30 
 

 
Remember - If you are applying for the Community Trigger on behalf of someone else who has been affected by anti-social 
behaviour, their individual written consent, or evidence of your authority to act (eg Power of Attorney), must also be 
provided. The Community Trigger Application Form will not be processed until their consent / evidence has been received. 
 

  I confirm that I give my permission for the person detailed at Q2 to apply for the Community Trigger on my behalf.   
 

 

  I confirm that I give my permission for all relevant bodies’, and other partners as necessary, to share information about this 
Community Trigger application with the person detailed at Q2.   
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Signature of person experiencing the anti-social behaviour, if different to the applicant Date 

 
 
 
Please send your completed Community Trigger Application Form to:- 
 
INSERT CONTACT DETAILS FOR AREA SPOC  
  

P
age 56



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

31 
 

APPENDIX C 

Guidance Notes for the Community Trigger Application Form 
 
Community Trigger Threshold 
The Community Trigger gives, those affected by anti-social behaviour, the right to 
request a formal, multi-agency review of the response to their reports of anti-social 
behaviour.  This is known as an Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review, which is also 
referred to as the ‘Community Trigger’. 
 
The Community Trigger should only be used if you think the anti-social behaviour is 
on-going and either there has been no response, or there has been an inadequate 
response, from the agencies responsible for dealing with the anti-social behaviour. 
 
The purpose of the ASB Case Review is to consider how to deal with serious 
persistent, or targeted, ASB that the relevant bodies have been unable to tackle 
successfully. 
 
Before submitting a Community Trigger Application Form, please ensure your case 
meets the below criteria, or threshold:- 
 

 You have made three or more ‘qualifying complaints’ about related incidents of 
anti-social behaviour that occurred on separate occasions, within the last six 
months. 

 
Explanatory Notes 
To be a ‘qualifying complaint’, you must have formally reported the anti-social 
behaviour to the relevant organisation, within one month of it happening. 
 
The anti-social behaviour should have been reported either in writing, by e-mail, by 
telephone or by visiting the offices of the relevant organisation.  A discussion with an 
officer of an organisation whilst they are on-site in the community will not normally be 
considered, unless it is to a Police Officer or Police Community Support Officer on 
duty. 
 
For the purposes of deciding whether the threshold is met, we can only consider 
incidents that have occurred within the last six months. 
 
If your case does not meet the Community Trigger threshold, we will not be able to 
conduct an Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review, but we will still look at ways we can 
support you. 
 
 
Completing the Community Trigger Application Form 
Below are guidance notes to help you complete the Community Trigger Application 
Form.   
 
We are unable to progress incomplete applications, so please ensure full details are 
provided on your application form. * indicates questions which must be completed.  

Page 57



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

32 
 

There are additional questions for you to provide more information to support your 
application, if you wish. 
 
If you require further assistance with completing the form, contact (INSERT LOCAL 
CONTACT DETAILS). 
 
Q1.  On what basis are you making a Community Trigger application for an 

Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review?* 
We need to know if you are the person affected by the anti-social behaviour or if you 
are submitting an application on someone else’s behalf.   
 
If you are the person affected by the anti-social behaviour, tick ‘a’ and complete your 
personal details at Question 3. 
 
If you prefer, someone else can complete the Community Trigger application on your 
behalf, but we will need your written consent (or evidence of their authority to act on 
your behalf, such as a Power of Attorney) to enable us to progress the application. 
(See ‘Third Party Applications’ below for further information).  
 
If you are acting on behalf of the person affected by the anti-social behaviour, tick ‘b’ 
and complete your personal details at Question 2. 
 
 
Q2. Advocate Details* 
If you ticked ‘1b’ because you are acting on behalf of the person(s) affected by the 
anti-social behaviour, complete your personal details. 
 
 
Q3. Details of the person(s) affected by the anti-social behaviour* 
Complete the personal details of the person affected by the anti-social behaviour. 
 
 
Q4.  Briefly describe the type of anti-social behaviour you have been 

experiencing.* 
Full details of the individual incidents are required at Question 5, so this is a short 
summary of the anti-social behaviour, which you would like us to review. 
 
 
Q5.  Please provide details of the anti-social behaviour incidents – who 

reported the incidents, when they were reported, who they were reported 
to and how.* 

In order for us to fully review your Community Trigger application, we need information 
about the incidents of anti-social behaviour you have reported:- 

 Dates of the anti-social behaviour  

 Details of the anti-social behaviour – i.e. what happened? 

 Who reported the anti-social behaviour? (This should be the person detailed at 
Question 2 or Question 3) 

 The date the incident was reported 

 Which organisation the incident was reported to 

Page 58



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

33 
 

 How it was reported to that organisation – e.g. in writing, over the telephone, in 
person, online. 

 
If there are more than five reported incidents of the anti-social behaviour, please attach 
a separate sheet with the details. 
 
 
Q6.  How has the anti-social behaviour affected you/the person you are acting 

on behalf of? 
We want to understand the impact of the anti-social behaviour on the person 
experiencing it. 
 
 
Q7.  What action has been taken, to your knowledge? 
Please tell us what action any of the organisations involved in dealing with the anti-
social behaviour have taken. 
 
 
Q8.  What further action are you hoping for? 
We want to understand what you want to happen as a result of your Community 
Trigger application. 
 
 
Q9.  Have you any special circumstances that we need to take into 

consideration?  If so, please provide details. 
Please include anything relating to your personal circumstances that you feel is 
relevant to the application. 
 
 
Q10.  Please provide any other information relevant to your Community Trigger 

application. 
 
 
Signature* 
How we will use your information 
In order to undertake an Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review we need to share 
information, provided on your completed application form, with the ‘relevant bodies’.   
 
The ‘relevant bodies’ are the organisations which have been involved in your case, 
and may include District/Borough/City Council, Police, Clinical Commissioning Group, 
the local housing provider.  In addition, the Youth Offending Service will be involved, 
where the anti-social behaviour involves someone who is under 18.   
 
We will use the information you provide to enable us to facilitate a review of your case, 
under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime & Policing Act 2014.  The ‘relevant bodies’ will 
share relevant, necessary and proportionate information to enable them to review the 
incidents you have reported and the action that has been taken, or could be taken, to 
resolve the situation. 
 

Page 59



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

34 
 

In some cases, it may be necessary to share information with other partners, that the 
relevant bodies deem appropriate to be involved in the review process, to help resolve 
your case. 
 
To process your personal data, we will rely upon Article 6 (c) of the General Data 
Protection Regulations, in that it is ‘necessary to comply with a legal obligation’.   This 
is because the ASB, Crime and Policing Act 2014 places a legal obligation on the 
relevant bodies to undertake an ASB Case Review and share relevant information 
when a valid Community Trigger application is received.   
 
Where it is necessary to process any of your personal data which falls within a special 
category*, we will rely upon Article 9, 2(g)  of the General Data Protection Regulations, 
in that it is the substantial public interest, based on the lawful requirement to conduct 
an ASB Case Review, and is proportionate for that purpose. We will also meet the 
substantial public interest condition at Schedule 1 Part 2, (6) of the Data Protection 
Act 2018, in that the processing is necessary for a statutory purpose. 
 

*Special categories of personal data include personal data revealing racial or 
ethnic origin, political opinions, religious or philosophical beliefs, trade union 
membership, genetic data, biometric data, data concerning health or a person’s 
sex life or their sexual orientation. 

 
Please, therefore, ensure the information you provide is accurate and confirm this by 
ticking the box. 
 
For further information about how we will use your information, our Privacy Notice is 
available at INSERT LINK OR DETAILS OF HOW TO FIND LOCAL AUTHORITY 
PRIVACY NOTICE. 
 
Third Party Applications 
If you are applying for the Community Trigger on behalf of someone else, the 
application form must be accompanied by evidence that you have the authority to act 
on the victim's behalf.  It is your responsibility to supply this. Where the victim is 
competent to give consent, this evidence must take the form of written consent from 
the victim, authorising you to make the application on their behalf and to receive 
information about the application from the relevant bodies.  Where the victim is not 
competent to give consent, other evidence must be supplied (e.g. Power of Attorney).  
 
The Community Trigger Application Form will not be processed until the written 
consent of the person, detailed as being affected by the anti-social behaviour, or the 
evidence of your authority to act on the victim’s behalf, has been provided. 
 
Submitting your Community Trigger application  
All Community Trigger applications relating to INSERT LOCAL AREA must be either 
submitted on-line at INSERT LOCAL URL or in hardcopy to:- 
INSERT CONTACT DETAILS FOR LOCAL AREA SPOC 
 
If you require assistance completing the Community Trigger application form, please 
contact INSERT CONTACT DETAILS FOR LOCAL AREA SPOC 
 

Page 60



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

35 
 

What happens next? 
When a completed Community Trigger Application Form is received, we will 
acknowledge receipt of your completed application for an Anti-Social Behaviour Case 
Review, within 5 working days. 
 
We will review the information you have provided, to determine whether your case 
meets the Community Trigger threshold.  If it does not meet the threshold, you will be 
advised, in writing, within 15 working days of us receiving your completed Community 
Trigger application. 
 
If your application meets the threshold, an Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review will 
take place within 40 working days of us receiving your completed application.  This will 
involve agencies sharing information, such as the police, housing, environmental 
health, social care and health providers, depending on the nature of your case.  The 
Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review will discuss the issues you raise, consider what 
actions have already been taken and consider recommendations for additional action 
to resolve the problem. 
 
You, or the person applying for the Community Trigger on your behalf, will be invited 
to attend part of the Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review Meeting. If you do not wish to 
attend, you will be given the option to provide a written victim statement.  
 
Within 5 days of the meeting, we will inform you of the outcome and recommendations. 
 
If you are not satisfied with the outcome of the Community Trigger, you can lodge an 
appeal with the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire, within 28 
days of being notified of the outcome of your Community Trigger application.  For more 
information, go to www.derbyshire-pcc.gov.uk/Public-Information/CommunityTrigger  
 
We welcome the opportunity to review cases of anti-social behaviour, but Community 
Trigger applications may be rejected if they are thought to be prejudicial, 
discriminatory, malicious, unreasonable or vexatious.  

Page 61

http://www.derbyshire-pcc.gov.uk/Public-Information/CommunityTrigger


PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

36 
 

APPENDIX D 

Template Letters 
Letter 1 – Confirm receipt of application 

 
Ref: INSERT CASE NO 

 
 
 
INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME 
INSERT APPLICANT’S ADDRESS 
 
 
 
 
 
INSERT DATE 
 
Community Trigger Applicant – (INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME ) 
Person affected by the anti-social behaviour– (INSERT VICTIM’S NAME, WHERE 
DIFFERENT TO APPLICANT) 
 
 
 
 
Dear (INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME) 
 
Thank you for completing the Community Trigger Application Form. 
 
Your application will be assessed to establish whether it meets the threshold for an 
Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review. 
 
I will write to you again, within the next 15 working days, to advise you of the initial 
assessment of your application. 
 
In the meantime, if there are any further incidents of anti-social behaviour, please call:- 
 
Derbyshire Constabulary on 101 (or 999 in an emergency) 
 
(INSERT CONTACT DETAILS FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY/HOUSING PROVIDER) 
 
 
Yours Sincerely 
 
 
INSERT NAME 
Chair of (INSERT AREA) Community Safety Partnership 
 
For enquiries regarding your Community Trigger application contact INSERT LOCAL 
SPOC CONTCT DETAILS, quoting the above reference. 

Page 62



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

37 
 

Letter 2 – Victim consent required 
 

Ref: INSERT CASE NO 
 
 
 
INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME 
INSERT APPLICANT’S ADDRESS 
 
 
 
 
 
INSERT DATE 
 
Community Trigger Applicant – (INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME ) 
Person affected by the anti-social behaviour– (INSERT VICTIM’S NAME) 
 
 
 
 
Dear (INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME) 
 
Thank you for completing the Community Trigger Application Form. 
 
As detailed in the Guidance Notes for the Community Trigger Application Form, if you 
are making an application on behalf of someone affected by the anti-social behaviour, 
their individual written consent, or evidence of your authority to act (e.g Power of 
Attorney) must be provided, in addition to the application form. 
 
Your Community Trigger Application will, therefore, not be processed until the 
requested documentation has been sent to the below address:- 
(INSERT CONTACT DETAILS FOR LOCAL SPOC) 
 
 
Yours Sincerely 
 
 
INSERT NAME 
Chair of (INSERT AREA) Community Safety Partnership 
 
 
For enquiries regarding your Community Trigger application contact INSERT LOCAL 
SPOC CONTCT DETAILS, quoting the above reference. 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 63



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

38 
 

Letter 3 – Confirm receipt of application to victim, if not applicant 
 

Ref: INSERT CASE NO 
 
 
 
INSERT VICTIM’S NAME 
INSERT VICTIM’S ADDRESS 
 
 
 
 
 
INSERT DATE 
 
Community Trigger Applicant – (INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME) 
Person affected by the anti-social behaviour– (INSERT VICTIM’S NAME) 
 
 
Dear (INSERT VICTIM’S NAME) 
 
I write to confirm receipt of the Community Trigger Application Form, submitted on 
your behalf by (INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME). 
 
The application will be assessed to establish whether it meets the threshold for an 
Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review. 
 
Correspondence regarding the application will be sent to (INSERT APPLICANT’S 
NAME), unless you notify me in writing that you wish to withdraw your consent for 
HIM/HER to act on your behalf.  
 
In the meantime, if there are any further incidents of anti-social behaviour, please call:- 
 
Derbyshire Constabulary on 101 (or 999 in an emergency) 
 
(INSERT CONTACT DETAILS FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY/HOUSING PROVIDER) 
 
 
Yours Sincerely 
 
 
INSERT NAME 
Chair of (INSERT AREA) Community Safety Partnership 
 
For enquiries regarding your Community Trigger application contact INSERT LOCAL 
SPOC CONTCT DETAILS, quoting the above reference. 
  

Page 64



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

39 
 

Letter 4 – Threshold not met 
 

Ref: INSERT CASE NO 
 
INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME 
INSERT APPLICANT’S ADDRESS 
 
INSERT DATE 
 
Community Trigger Applicant – (INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME ) 
Person affected by the anti-social behaviour– (INSERT VICTIM’S NAME, WHERE 
DIFFERENT TO APPLICANT) 
 
Dear (INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME) 
 
Further to my letter dated (INSERT DATE OF TEMPLATE LETTER 1), I write to 
advise you that we are unable to progress with your application for an Anti-Social 
Behaviour Community Trigger Case Review, because it does not meet the Community 
Trigger threshold detailed in the Guidance Notes that accompany the application form 
(see attached) because INSERT REASON(S) WHY APPLICATION DOES NOT 
MEET THRESHOLD. 
 
If you are dissatisfied with the decision, you can lodge an appeal, within 28 days of 
the date of this letter, with the Office of Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire 
at:- 
Community Trigger Appeal 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire 
Derbyshire Constabulary Headquarters 
Butterley Hall 
Ripley 
Derbyshire DE5 3RS 
E-mail:  pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk 
  
For more information go to https://www.derbyshire-pcc.gov.uk/Supporting-
Victims/Community-Trigger/CommunityTrigger.aspx 
 
Dealing with anti-social behaviour in Derbyshire is a key priority for agencies in this 
area, so if there are any further incidents of anti-social behaviour, please call: 
 
Derbyshire Constabulary on 101 (or 999 in an emergency) 
 
(INSERT CONTACT DETAILS FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY/HOUSING PROVIDER) 
 
Yours Sincerely 
 
INSERT NAME 
Chair of (INSERT AREA) Community Safety Partnership 
 
For enquiries regarding your Community Trigger application contact INSERT LOCAL 
SPOC CONTCT DETAILS, quoting the above reference. 

Page 65

mailto:pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk
https://www.derbyshire-pcc.gov.uk/Supporting-Victims/Community-Trigger/CommunityTrigger.aspx
https://www.derbyshire-pcc.gov.uk/Supporting-Victims/Community-Trigger/CommunityTrigger.aspx


PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

40 
 

Letter 5 – Threshold met 
 

Ref: INSERT CASE NO 
 
 
INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME 
INSERT APPLICANT’S ADDRESS 
 
 
INSERT DATE 
 
Community Trigger Applicant – (INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME ) 
Person affected by the anti-social behaviour– (INSERT VICTIM’S NAME, WHERE 
DIFFERENT TO APPLICANT) 
 
Dear (INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME) 
 
Further to my letter dated (INSERT DATE OF TEMPLATE LETTER 1), I write to 
advise you that your application meets the Community Trigger threshold and the 
partner agencies involved will be undertaking a full Anti-Social Behaviour Case 
Review. 
 
You are invited to attend the Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review Meeting:- 
Date:  (INSERT DATE) 
Time:  (INSERT TIME) 
Location: (INSERT LOCATION) 
 
(INSERT IF CURRENTLY NO ADVOCATE) If you do not wish to attend yourself, you 
can ask a representative to attend on your behalf. 
 
Please confirm your attendance to (INSERT CONTACT DETAILS). 
 
I will write to you again, within the next 20 working days, to advise you of the outcome 
of the Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review. 
 
In the meantime, if there are any further incidents of anti-social behaviour, please call: 
 
Derbyshire Constabulary on 101 (or 999 in an emergency) 
 
(INSERT CONTACT DETAILS FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY/HOUSING PROVIDER) 
 
 
Yours Sincerely 
 
 
INSERT NAME 
Chair of (INSERT AREA) Community Safety Partnership 
 
For enquiries regarding your Community Trigger application contact INSERT LOCAL 
SPOC CONTCT DETAILS, quoting the above reference. 

Page 66



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

41 
 

Letter 6 – Outcome of review 
 

Ref: INSERT CASE NO 
 
 
 
INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME 
INSERT APPLICANT’S ADDRESS 
 
 
 
 
 
INSERT DATE 
 
Community Trigger Applicant – (INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME ) 
Person affected by the anti-social behaviour– (INSERT VICTIM’S NAME, WHERE 
DIFFERENT TO APPLICANT) 
 
 
Dear (INSERT APPLICANT’S NAME) 
 
Further to my letter dated (INSERT DATE OF TEMPLATE LETTER 5), I write to 
advise you that the relevant partner agencies have undertaken a full Anti-Social 
Behaviour Case Review. 
 
The Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review has found that:- 
(INSERT FINDINGS OF ASB CASE REVIEW MEETING) 
 
The Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review has recommended that:- 
(INSERT RECOMMENDATIONS OF ASB CASE REVIEW MEETING) 
 
(DELETE REFERENCE TO ACTION PLAN, IF NOT PROPOSED) The Anti-Social 
Behaviour Case Review has proposed the attached Action Plan, which we discussed 
on INSERT DATE. 
 
(INSERT EITHER You have OR THE NAME OF THE VICTIM has) agreed that 
Action(s) INSERT NUMBER(S) are progressed. 
 
(INSERT EITHER You have OR THE NAME OF THE VICTIM has) asked that 
Actions(s) INSERT NUMBER(S) are not progressed. 
 
Each of the agencies, detailed in the Action Plan will be responsible for their individual 
actions and will contact you to discuss them further.  
 
  

Page 67



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

42 
 

If you are dissatisfied with the outcome of the Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review, you 
can lodge an appeal, within 28 days of the date of this letter, with the Office of Police 
and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire at:- 
 
Community Trigger Appeal 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner for Derbyshire 
Derbyshire Constabulary Headquarters 
Butterley Hall 
Ripley 
Derbyshire DE5 3RS 
E-mail:  pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk 
  
For more information go to https://www.derbyshire-pcc.gov.uk/Supporting-
Victims/Community-Trigger/CommunityTrigger.aspx 
 
Thank you for giving us the opportunity to review your case and work even harder to 
resolve the anti-social behaviour you have been experiencing. 
 
 
Yours Sincerely 
 
 
INSERT NAME 
Chair of (INSERT AREA) Community Safety Partnership 
 
 
For enquiries regarding your Community Trigger application contact INSERT LOCAL 
SPOC CONTCT DETAILS, quoting the above reference. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 68

mailto:pccoffice@derbyshire.pnn.police.uk
https://www.derbyshire-pcc.gov.uk/Supporting-Victims/Community-Trigger/CommunityTrigger.aspx
https://www.derbyshire-pcc.gov.uk/Supporting-Victims/Community-Trigger/CommunityTrigger.aspx


PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

43 
 

APPENDIX E 

Threshold Assessment Template 
I am writing to inform you that we have received a request to activate the Community 
Trigger. 
 
Under Schedule 4, Part 3 of the ASB, Crime and Policing Act 2014, partners are 
required to comply with the request for information and share information, which will 
enable the ‘relevant bodies’ to conduct the ASB Case Review, objectively. 
 
At this stage, I require information from your organisation to enable me to establish 
whether the application meets the threshold, which is:- 
 

 Three or more ‘qualifying complaints’ about related incidents of ASB, that 
occurred on separate occasions, within the last six months. 

 
(Extract from the Derbyshire Community Trigger Guidance Notes) 
Explanatory Notes 
In deciding whether the threshold has been met for triggering a review, there must be a link between 
the complaints.  
 
For the avoidance of doubt, if the partners receive separate complaints about totally unconnected ASB, 
then they will not be counted together in deciding whether the threshold has been met.  This will be the 
case even if the type of ASB is the same.  For example, if noise nuisance is suffered from two different 
sources, the complaints will not generally be counted together. 
 
Also, if a complaint about the same incident has been made to multiple agencies, it will only count as 
one incident. 
 

A ‘qualifying complaint’ is one which is made within the period of one month, beginning with the 
date on which the behaviour is alleged to have occurred.  Further, a complaint is a report of an 
ASB incident, which is made to a relevant body, either in writing, by e-mail, by telephone or by 
visiting the offices of the relevant body.  Other than to a Police Officer or Police Community 
Support Officer on duty, reporting an incident of ASB to an officer of the relevant organisation, 
whilst he/she is on site, in the community, will not normally be considered to be a qualifying 
complaint. 

 
 
I require all information you hold regarding incidents of ASB relating to the following 
individuals and addresses for the six month period (INSERT DATES) 
 

Name:  

Address:  

DOB:  

 

Name:  

Address:  

DOB:  

 

Name:  

Address:  

DOB:  

 

Page 69



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

44 
 

Name:  

Address:  

DOB:  

 
 
I require this information within (INSERT TIMESCALE) working days.  If you are 
unable to provide the requested information within this time, please contact me directly 
to provide a verbal appraisal of the information you hold in the first instance. 
 
Please contact me if you require any assistance with completing this request. 
 
 

 
 
PARTNER RESPONSE 
 

Do you hold any ASB reports or complaints from any of the named 
individuals? 

YES/NO 

Is there any ASB complaints that is currently being investigated? YES/NO 

Do you have any vulnerability markers or flags on your systems? YES/NO 

Do you hold any completed risk assessments for the individuals? 
  

YES/NO 

 
If you have indicated to YES to any of the above, please provide as much additional 
information as possible below (including attaching copies of documentation, where 
appropriate) 
 

Reference Number  

Date Received  

Brief overview of complaint/report 
(include details of reporting party and 
any named perpetrator/offender) 

 

Was any action taken? YES/NO 

If yes, please detail the action taken in 
response, if no please summarise 
reasons 

 

 

Reference Number  

Date Received  

Brief overview of complaint/report 
(include details of reporting party and 
any named perpetrator/offender) 

 

Was any action taken? YES/NO 

If yes, please detail the action taken in 
response, if no please summarise 
reasons 

 

 

Reference Number  

Date Received  

Page 70



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

45 
 

Brief overview of complaint/report 
(include details of reporting party and 
any named perpetrator/offender) 

 

Was any action taken? YES/NO 

If yes, please detail the action taken in 
response, if no please summarise 
reasons 

 

 

Reference Number  

Date Received  

Brief overview of complaint/report 
(include details of reporting party and 
any named perpetrator/offender) 

 

Was any action taken? YES/NO 

If yes, please detail the action taken in 
response, if no please summarise 
reasons 

 

 
 
Please include/attach any additional information you think is relevant to assist 
in determining whether the Community Trigger threshold has been met.  This 
may include:- 

 Details of previous ASB incidents reported by the victim(s) 

 Risk assessments for all victims and perpetrators 

 Information about the effect the problem has had on the victim and others in the 
community 

 Details of action previously considered  

 Details of action taken 

 Perpetrator Proportionality Assessment, if previously completed. 
 
This list is not exhaustive. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 71



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

46 
 

APPENDIX F 

Victim Statement Template 
 

COMMUNITY TRIGGER  
ANTI-SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR VICTIM STATEMENT 

 
If you do not wish, or are not able, to attend the Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review, 
you can submit a written Anti-Social Behaviour Victim Statement. 
  
Anti-social behaviour affects people in very different ways.  The partner agencies 
involved in your case want to fully understand how you have been affected.  We 
already have your application form, but this is your opportunity to expand on the 
information already provided. 
 
There is no set format, so please tell us, in your own words, how the anti-social 
behaviour has affected you and, where appropriate, other members of your household 
or your visitors. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

Page 72



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

47 
 

APPENDIX G 

ASB Case Review Meeting Agenda Template 
 

1. Confidentiality Statement 
 

2. Introductions /Apologies / Purpose of ASB Case Review 
Explain why the meeting has been called – i.e. undertake a fair and objective 
review of the case and enable the victim’s voice to be heard 
 

3. Victim Perspective 
Opportunity for the victim or their advocate to explain the impact of the ASB 
on themselves, their family and their visitors.  This includes physical and 
emotional health, quality of life and ability to conduct their normal daily 
activities. 
 

4. Case History 
Information from partners in attendance and reports from those unable to 
attend in person. 
What complaints/reports of ASB have been received by each agency? 
What is the persistence or seriousness of the ASB? 
What is the cumulative impact of the ASB? 
Assessment of the harm caused, or potential for harm to be caused, to the 
victim and the community,  
Identify who is the victim and who is the perpetrator in neighbour disputes 
Are there any malicious or vexatious complaints? 
Are there any vulnerability factors for any of the victims or perpetrators? 
What additional information is required? 

 
5. Review Action Taken to Date 

What action has already been considered/taken? 
Complete Proportionality Assessment  
 

6. ASB Case Review Decision/Recommendations 
Has all appropriate action been taken? 
Is there more that partner agencies can do? 
Is there more that victim or perpetrators can do? 
Are there any learning opportunities for partners? 
 

7. Agree Action Plan 
What informal action can be taken by each partner to resolve the ASB? 
What legal action can be taken to resolve the ASB and by whom? 
Identify reasons why other potential actions are not to be pursued? 

 
8. Next steps  

Agree who will liaise with the victim/their advocate. 
Agree who will be Lead Officer for the Action Plan. 

  

Page 73



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

48 
 

APPENDIX H  

Perpetrator Proportionality Assessment 

 
Name of alleged perpetrator:  

Address of alleged perpetrator:  

Type of action being considered:- 
e.g. injunction, ABC, CPW/N, tenancy 
demotion, possession etc. 
 

 

 

ACTION ALREADY TAKEN 

List the informal action taken to date 
for this matter 
e.g. warning letters, visits, mediation 
ABC, etc 
 

 

List the formal action taken to date 
for this matter 
 

 

 

VULNERABILITIES 

Does the alleged perpetrator have 
any vulnerability? 
e.g. victim of domestic abuse, lifestyle, 
substance misuse, age 
 
If so, provide details of whether it is 
believed that the ASB or criminal 
behaviour is linked to the specific 
vulnerabilities. 
 

 

Is it believed that the alleged 
perpetrator is disabled within the 
definition of the Equality Act 2010? 
e.g. learning disability, mental health, 
developmental impairment, such as 
autistic spectrum disorders (ASD) 
 
If so, provide details of whether it is 
believed that the ASB or criminal 
behaviour is linked to this disability. 
 

 

Does the alleged perpetrator reside 
with individuals who have a disability 
or vulnerability? 
 
If so, what actions have been taken 
to mitigate the risks that enforcement 

 

Page 74

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/570382/Equality_Act_2010-disability_definition.pdf


PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

49 
 

action against the alleged perpetrator 
will have on these individuals? 

 

SUPPORT 

Has the alleged perpetrator been 
offered, or referred for, any support? 
 
If yes, provide details. 
e.g. which agency?, when was last 
contact made and how? 
 

 

Has re-housing been considered and 
by who? 
 

 

 

IMPACT 

What impact is the behaviour having 
on:- 
 
Victims? 
 
Wider community? 
 
Partner resources? 
 

 

 

SUMMARY 

Summarise why the proposed action 
is necessary and proportionate 
 

 

 

I CAN CONFIRM THAT I HAVE REVIEWED THIS CASE AND THE FACTS 
ABOVE AND BELIEVE THAT THE ACTION SUGGESTED IS NECESSARY AND 
A PROPRTIONATE MEANS TO ACHIEVING A LEGITIMATE AIM. 
 

Signed: 
 

 

Job title: 
 

 

Date: 
 

 

 

Date review due:  

 
 
 
This assessment will be reviewed at regular intervals, including when new 
information material to it is revealed. 

  

Page 75



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

50 
 

APPENDIX I  

ASB Case Review Meeting Minutes Template 
 

COMMUNITY TRIGGER APPLICATION REFERENCE NUMBER  

 
DETAILS OF SPOC 

Name  

Organisation  

E-mail  

Telephone  

 
DETAILS OF APPLICANT 

Name  

Address  
 
 

Date application 
acknowledged 
(Template Letter 1) 

 

 
DETAILS OF VICTIM (IF DIFFERENT TO APPLICANT) 

Name  

Address  
 
 

Date consent rec’d  

 
DETAILS OF PERPETRATORS (IF KNOWN) 

Name  

Address  
 
 
 

 

Name  

Address  
 
 
 

 

Name  

Address  
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 76



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

51 
 

COMMUNITY TRIGGER THRESHOLD ASSESSMENT  
 

DECISION Comments 

Threshold met / not met 
(delete as appropriate) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Date applicant advised 
(Template Letter 4 or 5) 

 

 
 
ASB CASE REVIEW MEETING  

Date  

Time  

Venue  

Chair  

 
1. CONFIDENTIALITY STATEMENT 

Declaration signed by all attendees Yes / No 

 
2. ATTENDEES 

Organisation Name Job Title 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
APOLOGIES 

Organisation Name Job Title Written Report? 
(delete as 

appropriate) 

   Yes / No 

   Yes / No 

   Yes / No 

   Yes / No 

 
 
  

Page 77



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

52 
 

RECORD OF INFORMATION SHARED / MEETING DISCUSSION  
 
3. VICTIM PERSPECTIVE 

Victim / advocate invited Yes / No 

Reason(s) for victim / advocate not being invited: 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4. CASE HISTORY 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Page 78



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

53 
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED 

 
 
 
 

 
5. REVIEW AND ASSESSMENT OF ACTION TAKEN TO DATE 
 

Proportionality Assessment completed Yes / No 

Reason(s) for not completing Perpetrator Proportionality 
Assessment: 
 
 

 

 

Action taken to date By whom? Adequate? Comments 

  Yes / No  

  Yes / No  

  Yes / No  

  Yes / No  

  Yes / No  

 
6. REVIEW DECISION /RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
 
 
 

 
7. ACTION PLAN 

Action By Whom? Timescales 

Agency Lead Officer 

    

    

    

    

    

 
ACTIONS CONSIDERED BUT NOT RECOMMENDED 

Action Agency Reason not pursued / recommended 

   

   

   

   

   

 
8. NEXT STEPS AGREED 

 
 

 
POST MEETING 

Page 79



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

54 
 

Date Minutes sent to partners  

Date Action Plan discussed with victim  

Date applicant / victim advised of outcome 
(Template Letter 6) 

 

Update E-CINS  

  

Page 80



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

55 
 

APPENDIX J 

Action Plan Template 
 

Action By Whom? Timescales Progress Update Date 
completed Agency Lead Officer 

 
 
 

     

 
 
 

     

 
 
 

     

 
 
 

     

 
 
 

     

 
 
 

     

 
 
 

     

 
 
 

     

  

P
age 81



PUBLIC (CONTROLLED WHILST IN DRAFT) 

56 
 

Appendix K 

Community Trigger Appeal Process Flowchart 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

*We will endeavour to respond from the initial acknowledgement of appeal to 
final notification of decision within 20 working days. Communication of extended 
response times will be provided in exceptional circumstances.    
 
(Working days are Monday to Friday excluding weekends and Bank Holidays). 

 
 
 
 

Appeal Received 
In writing / e-mail / web application form 

Acknowledgement Sent 
 Detailing *20 working day response time 

Case Documentation Collected 
Requested from relevant SPOC  

Appeal Upheld  

Police & Crime Commissioner Decision / Approval 

Person(s) 

Informed 

Relevant 
Bodies 

Informed 

Appeal Assessed 
Based on documentation collected 

Recommendations Outlined 
Based on case analysis 

Appeal Rejected  

Person(s) 

Informed 

Relevant 
Bodies 

Informed 

Page 82



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

The Executive

3 December 2020

TITLE: Trans Pennine Upgrade A57 Link Road

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Anthony McKeown, Council 
Leader

CONTACT OFFICER: Mark James - Principal Planning Officer

WARDS INVOLVED: All wards in Glossopdale

Appendices Attached – 

Appendix 1 - Joint consultation response from High Peak Borough Council and 
Derbyshire County Council to the Trans Pennine Upgrade consultation (March 
2018).

Appendix 2 – Copy of presentation given by Highways England to Councillors on 
3rd November 2020. 

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The notify the Executive of the current consultation from Highways England on 
the A57 Link Roads, to highlight key elements of the scheme, to set out the 
proposed approach to consider and agree a response to the consultation and 
to clarify the process moving forward. 

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Executive note the details of the consultation and proposed approach 
to agree the Council’s response as set out at paragraph 5.16 of this report. 

2.2 That the Executive make any comments around the proposals in response to 
the consultation.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 A public consultation on the A57 Link Roads scheme will run until 17th 
December. The consultation proposes a series of design changes from the 
scheme published in 2018 alongside an updated assessment of environmental 
impacts. 

Page 83

Agenda Item 6



3.2 High Peak Borough Council and Derbyshire County Council submitted a joint 
holding objection to the 2018 consultation due to a lack of supporting 
information in terms of impacts such as the implications for air quality. On the 
basis of an initial review of the current consultation by officers, it is not clear if 
the Council’s previous concerns have been adequately addressed. If not, the 
current holding objection may need to be sustained until such time that any 
outstanding issues are resolved. Officers are in the process of liaising with 
Highways England and Derbyshire County Council to investigate these 
matters further. Given the circumstances and timescales, it is suggested that 
the Council’s response is delegated to the Executive Director for Place in 
consultation with the Leader of Council with regard given to feedback from 
Councillors.

3.3 Following the consultation, Highways England expect to submit the 
Development Consent Order application to the Planning Inspectorate in Spring 
2021. If the application is accepted for consideration, the examination itself will 
take around 18 months through to a decision by the Secretary of State. 
Subject to approval, construction is expected to start in 2023. 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1  The A57 Link Roads scheme has direct implications for the following aims of 
the Corporate Plan; Aim 1 Supporting our communities to create a healthier,
safer, cleaner High Peak, Aim 2 Protect and create jobs by supporting 
economic growth, development and regeneration and Aim 3 Protect and 
improve the environment including responding to the climate emergency.

Neil Rodgers
Executive Director (Place)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Consultation website: 
https://highwaysengland.co.uk/our-work/north-west/a57-
link-roads/

Planning Inspectorate Advice Note: The role of local 
authorities in the DCO process 
https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2015/03/Advice_note_2.pdf

Mark James
Principal Planning Officer
mark.james@highpeak.gov.uk

5. Detail

Background

5.1 A public consultation on the “A57 Link Roads” scheme was published by 
Highways England on 5th November and will run until 17th December. The 
consultation follows on from previous engagement on the “Trans-Pennine 
Upgrade” project in 2018 which also included the proposals for the A57 Link 

Page 84

https://highwaysengland.co.uk/our-work/north-west/a57-link-roads/
https://highwaysengland.co.uk/our-work/north-west/a57-link-roads/
https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/03/Advice_note_2.pdf
https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2015/03/Advice_note_2.pdf


Roads as well as upgrades to Westwood roundabout near Sheffield and 
associated improvements to the east of the Pennines which have since been 
split off into a separate project. 

5.2 The Mottram Moor Link Road & A57 Link Road scheme is identified as 
commitment in the Government’s second Roads Investment Strategy (RIS2) 
for the period 2020 to 2025. It also featured in RIS1 for the period 2015 to 
2020. The scheme is classified as a Nationally Significant Infrastructure 
Project (NSIP). As such, an application for a Development Consent Order 
(DCO) will be considered at an examination conducted by the Planning 
Inspectorate under the provisions of the Planning Act 2008 (as amended). The 
Secretary of State will determine the application having regard to the 
recommendations of the planning inspector. 

5.3 Policy S6 (Glossopdale Sub-Area Strategy) of the adopted High Peak Local 
Plan includes the following in relation to infrastructure improvements in 
Glossopdale:

“Working with partner organisations and developers to address congestion 
along the A57 and A628, to improve transport links to surrounding areas and 
to enable transport improvements and mitigation measures identified the High 
Peak Transport Study and in the Trans-Pennine Feasibility Study 1(subject to 
further consideration).”

5.4 In line with the above, officers have attended stakeholder meetings with 
Highways England and other relevant public bodies to discuss the process 
and details of the scheme and supporting evidence when available. 

5.5 The Economy and Growth Select Committee considered the previous Trans- 
Pennine Upgrade consultation on 8 February 2018. Feedback from councillors 
at this meeting informed the subsequent response to Highways England which 
was prepared jointly with Derbyshire County Council. A holding objection was 
submitted by the Councils on the basis of the lack of supporting evidence and 
information in the accompanying Preliminary Environmental Information 
Report (PIER) on the impacts of the scheme. Specific concerns related to air 
quality, landscape and visual impact, cultural heritage and ecology.  A copy of 
the holding objection is provided at Appendix 1 to this report. 

5.6 Since the 2018 consultation, the Council has designated two Air Quality 
Management Areas (AQMA) in High Peak; a section of the A628 in Tintwistle 
and part of the A57 at Dinting due to concerns regarding Nitrogen Dioxide 
emissions. A separate AQMA designation covers Greater Manchester. 

5.7 On 3rd November, Highways England presented key details of the consultation 
to Councillors ahead of the start of the consultation (Appendix 2). Issues 
raised by Councillors at this briefing included:

1 The Trans Pennine Feasibility Study included the concept of the A57 Links Roads now subject to 
consultation.

Page 85



 The scheme does not provide a solution to the traffic related problems in 
Tintwistle. Highways England confirmed that this scheme is focussed on 
addressing issues in Mottram but that separate consideration was being given 
to wider solutions. However at current there is not a clear timescale for these 
wider considerations.

 Whether supporting traffic data and information regarding associated impacts 
would be available. Highways England stated that an updated Preliminary 
Environmental Information Report would be available as part of the 
consultation with a full Environmental Statement to follow. 

 Concern regarding number of traffic lights on the A57 and as part of the 
scheme which may cause congestion. Highways England confirmed that the 
previous proposals for a roundabout at Mottram Moor was also signal 
controlled and suggested that phasing of lights would need to be considered

 Whether funding opportunities to benefit the wider community would be 
available. Highways England conformed that their “Designated Fund” is 
available for local authorities and others to bid for projects in the vicinity of the 
scheme.

A57 Link Road proposals and supporting information

5.8 The scheme now subject to consultation consists of the following:

 Mottram Moor Link Road – a new dual carriageway from the M67 junction 4 
roundabout to a new junction on the A57(T) at Mottram Moor

 A57 Link Road – a new single carriageway link from the A57(T) at Mottram 
Moor to a new junction on the A57 in Woolley Bridge.

Page 86



5.9 The majority of the scheme is located within Tameside. Only the far eastern 
end of the A57 Link Road is located within High Peak. The scheme overall is 
broadly the same as that previous subject to consultation in 2018. However, 
there are several design changes to the scheme and new supporting 
information which are the focus of this consultation:

 Increased capacity at junction 4 of the M67 – additional lane to the roundabout 
and new traffic signalling

 Removal of the proposed junction with Roe Cross Road
 Updated design for the under pass at Mottram
 The proposed roundabout on Mottram Moor is to be replaced with a signal 

controlled junction
 A shorter re-designed bridge over the River Etherow and re-designed junction 

at Woolley Bridge. This is intended to better manage impacts on the flood 
plain, neighbouring farmhouse and enable access to the proposed housing 
development at Wooley bridge directly opposite the new A57 Link Road. This 
is the only section of the new road within High Peak.

 Improved provision for pedestrians, cyclists and horse riders. This includes a 
combined footpath and cycleway alongside the A57 Link Road to connect 
Mottram Moor with the Trans-Pennine Trail at Woolley Bridge.  

5.10 Neither a bypass of Hollingworth and Tintwistle nor the proposed Trans-
Pennine Tunnel are included in the current scheme as they are not committed 
projects at the moment and there is no clear timescale for them becoming so.. 
However, the feasibility of both schemes is subject to further consideration. It 
is understood that the alignment of any future bypass or tunnel scheme may 
seek to tie into with the A57 Link Roads project in the future. 

5.11 An updated PIER has also been published. The updated version seeks to 
respond to concerns raised in 2018 by drawing on new surveys and data, 
including for air quality and noise. The PIER provides a preliminary  
assessment of the existing environment, likely impacts of the scheme, how the 
impacts can be mitigated and identifies any limitations of the current 
information and assumptions made. Specific consideration is given to air 
quality, cultural heritage, biodiversity, geology and soils, materials assets and 
waste, noise and vibration, population and human health, road drainage and 
water, climate and the cumulative effects of the scheme. Further 
environmental impact assessment work will be carried out following this 
consultation with the preparation of the Environmental Statement which must 
be submitted along with the DCO application to the Planning Inspectorate. 

5.12 The consultation documents reference the Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan 
which is subject to separate consultation until 3rd December. This consultation 
seeks to improve air quality across Greater Manchester by encouraging 
uptake of cleaner vehicles through the introduction of a daily charge for certain 
classifications of non-private vehicles and financial incentives. However, the 
Clean Air Plan does not currently propose to charge vehicles for use of the 
Strategic Road Network. This includes the A628/A57 as operated by Highways 
England. 

Page 87



5.13 The modelling for the A57 Link Roads scheme does not currently take the 
proposals for the Clean Air Plan into account. It is understood that sensitivity 
testing will be undertaken prior to the DCO submission to consider the 
implications.   

5.14 Whilst it is recognised that the forthcoming Environmental Statement will 
provide further information regarding the impacts of the scheme, the PIER as 
published in 2018 was considered to provide insufficient information by High 
Peak Borough Council and Derbyshire County Council. 

5.15 Officers are in the process of analysing the updated PIER to determine if our 
previous concerns have been addressed. Our initial review has identified a 
number of queries which are currently being taken up with Highways England. 
These include the absence of traffic data and queries regarding the inputs into 
the modelling of air quality impacts. 

Response 

5.16 Given the above, it is proposed that Council’s response to the consultation is 
delegated to the Executive Director (Place) in consultation with the Leader of 
the Council and Derbyshire County Council. The response will also have 
regard to feedback from issues raised by the Economy and Growth Select 
Committee. If it is ultimately concluded that the concerns raised previously by 
the Councils have not been addressed in this consultation, the holding 
objection may need to be maintained until such time that they have been 
resolved. The forthcoming Environmental Statement to be submitted by 
Highways England in Spring 2021 may help with this. 

Next steps

5.17 The current consultation closes on 17th December. Highways England will then 
review feedback and finalise the documents ready for submission with the 
DCO application due in Spring 2021. The Planning Inspectorate will then have 
28 days to decide whether to accept the application. During this period, the 
Council has 14 days to submit a representation regarding the “Adequacy of 
Consultation” conducted by Highways England to date. 

5.18 Once the application has been accepted, members of the local community can 
register as interested parties to participate in the examination process. 
Statutory bodies such as the Council will also participate. 

5.19 In the meantime, the Council can begin to prepare its own Local Impact Report 
(LIR) which will draw on data from Highways England where available but also 
set out its own conclusions in terms of the implications for the scheme. To this 
end, the Council has appointed Aecom consultants to assist in the preparation 
of the LIR in conjunction with Derbyshire County Council. Aecom are also 
preparing masterplan to help identify an appropriate planning strategy to 
complement the A57 Link Roads scheme. 

Page 88



5.20 A Statement of Common Ground will also begin to be developed between the 
local authorities and Highways England which sets out the matters upon which 
the respective signatories agree or disagree. Both the LIR and Statement of 
Common Ground will inform the examination process. Further information 
regarding the role of the Council in the examination is set out in the Planning 
Inspectorate’s Advice Note (see link at the end of Section 4 to this report).

5.21 In total, the process for the examination and decision making is expected to 
take around 18 months. Subject to approval, construction is scheduled to 
commence in 2023. 

 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



The A57 Link Roads Scheme

Winter consultation 2020

3 November 2020

P
age 99



The project and why we’re consulting 
 Congestion between the M67 at Mottram in 

Longdendale and the M1 north of Sheffield is 
slowing down journeys, causing disruption for 
local communities and making it hard for 
pedestrians to cross roads

 Our solution is divided in to two separate projects 
– the A61 Westwood Roundabout and the A57 
Link Roads

 We’ve started construction on the Westwood 
Roundabout, but the Link Roads will need a 
‘Development Consent Order’ or ‘DCO’

 We delayed our submission in 2018 to re-visit our 
traffic, air quality and noise assessments

 We’ve also been improving our designs and so 
wanted to get your feedback before submitting our 
application in Spring 2021

P
age 100



Key dates 

 Consultation starts 5 November and ends 17 December 2020
 DCO application to be submitted to Planning Inspectorate April 2021
 DCO Planning process takes a minimum of 18 months
 Proposed Start of Works March 2023
 Proposed Open for Traffic March 2025

P
age 101



The scheme and what’s changed since 2018 

Scheme presented in 2018 Scheme to be presented 2020

P
age 102



The scheme and what’s changed since 2018 

Improvements to the M67 junction 4

What we’re doing What’s changed
 Increasing capacity on 

the M67 junction 4
 Adding an extra lane to 

the roundabout 

 Introducing traffic 
signals to manage the 
flow of traffic

P
age 103



The scheme and what’s changed since 2018 

The Mottram Moor link road

What we’re doing What’s changed
 Diverting traffic away 

from the centre of 
Mottram in 
Longdendale

 Creating a new dual 
carriageway, linking 
junction 4 of the M67 
with the existing A57

 Via an underpass and 
a new signal-controlled 
junction at Mottram 
Moor

 Removed the Roe 
Cross Road Link, 
junction and 
roundabout from our 
proposals

 Relocated and 
updated the design of 
the Mottram 
underpass

P
age 104



The scheme and what’s changed since 2018 

The A57 link road

What we’re doing What’s changed
 Separating the 

Glossop bound traffic

 Creating a single 
carriageway link 
between the proposed 
A57(T) junction at 
Mottram Moor and a 
new A57 junction at 
Woolley Bridge

 Replaced the 
proposed roundabout 
at Mottram Moor, with 
a signal-controlled 
junction

 Improving the River 
Etherow Crossing

 Updated the design of 
the Woolley Bridge 
junction

P
age 105



The scheme and what’s changed since 2018 
Construction of two underpasses at Old Mill Farm 
and Carrhouse Lane
What we’re doing What’s changed

 Constructing an 
underpass at both Old 
Mill Farm and 
Carrhouse Lane

 Will maintain farm 
access and provide a 
safe route for walkers, 
cyclists and horse 
riders

 Tweaked the location 
of the Carrhouse Lane 
underpass, moving it 
closer to the existing 
road

P
age 106



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

The Executive

3 December 2020

TITLE: Annual Report 2019/20

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: Vanessa Higgins – Information Business 
Partner

WARDS INVOLVED: All

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A: Annual Report 2019/20

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present the Council’s Annual Report for 2019/20, 
which compares High Peak’s performance and costs with councils in the East 
Midlands region and nationally; and highlights further action where needed.  

2. Recommendation

2.1 It is recommended that the Executive notes the findings of the benchmarking 
exercises and the small refocus of the Corporate Plan suggested for the 
following 12 months.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The Annual Report establishes the context for the Council in planning its 
performance delivery. This includes both the financial backdrop against which 
the council must deliver its services but also the local place context of the High 
Peak and how it compares against a range of socio-demographic measures.

3.2 The report looks back over the Council’s achievements in 2019/20 and uses 
national benchmarking data (2018/19) to assess value for money.

3.3 The analysis is built around the Corporate Plan priorities and provides a small 
refocus for the next 12 months

Page 107

Agenda Item 7



4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The Annual Report is built around the priorities contained within the Corporate 
Plan and therefore links into all four main aims and the supporting objectives.  

5. Alternative Options

5.1 This report is for information with no decision required of the Committee. 

ANDREW P STOKES
Chief Executive

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Information Team files
Benchmarking platforms

Vanessa Higgins
Information Business Partner
vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk

Page 108



6. Detail

6.1 The purpose of an Annual Report is to look back and take stock of the progress 
and achievements made against the Council’s stated objectives and to use this 
intelligence to understand what still needs to be done and what new challenges 
lie ahead.

6.2 The Annual Report does this by:

 looking at performance against targets;
 analysing performance and costs against national and regional 

comparisons;
 presenting a place profile for the High Peak, such as health factors, 

deprivation levels, economic indicators and access to housing; and 
 outlining the financial challenges facing the authority over the course of its 

Medium Term Financial Plan. 

6.3 The highlights from the place profile are as follows:  

 Over 30% of the area is classed as rural 
 Ageing population, 65+ years expected to become the largest resident group 

possibly in 20 years’ time
 Higher than average levels of unqualified residents
 Health outcomes – issues with cancer mortality rates, under 18’s conception 

rates, and road accidents
 Indices of Multiple Deprivation – low overall but geographic and thematic 

pockets
 Employment – sharp drop in High Peak 
 Covid Recovery – Derbyshire 4th highest economic vulnerability out of 26 

areas 

6.4 The benchmarking issues are highlighted below along with the relevant actions 
that are in progress:

Aim One: Healthier and safer

Benchmarks Action in Progress
 Benefits – low spend, performance 

dropped in 18/19 (improved in 19/20)
 Review of Local Council Tax Reduction 

Scheme, Universal Credit project, Access to 
Services Strategy

 Fly-tipping – amongst lowest in region 
(increase in 19/20)

 Education / Enforcement - review of 
enforcement policy

 Temporary accommodation low  Housing projects - homelessness strategy

 CCTV – high spend, crime low  CCTV project completion, priority area

 Leisure – high spend, participation 
rates improving

 Sports strategy, facilities plan, active 
communities programme

Page 109



Aim Two: Use of resources

Benchmarks Action in Progress
 Council Tax / Business Rates 

Collection – high performing, low 
spend  

 Package of support measures for businesses 
and tailored payment plans. 2020/21 rates are 
likely to be negatively affected by the impact on 
the local economy from lockdown

 Ombudsman Complaints – lowest 
20% nationally. Reducing levels of 
complaints generally

 Working with Institute of Customer Services on 
an Access to Services Strategy

Aim Three: Local economy

Benchmarks Action in Progress
 Business formation rate – increased 

but below average
 Accelerated business growth and employment 

programme

 Planning processing speeds – 
performance is high, spend increased 
and is now mid 20%
 

 Embedding new team structures

 Tourism – average spend  Tourism (recovery) Strategy

Aim Four: Environment

Benchmarks Action in Progress
 Waste & Recycling – high performing 

but high cost 
 AES Efficiency Programme
 Review of current arrangements in light of 

national waste strategy in 2021
 Public Toilets – high spend  Local priority
 Parks and Open Spaces – mid 20% 

nationally on spend
 Parks Development Plans

Page 110



Annual Report   
2019-2020

P
age 111



 

Contents Page 

Chapter 1: Profile of the Borough – Life in High Peak: contextual information on housing provision, 
employment and skills, health issues and levels of crime 

Chapter 2: Financial Context - The financial challenges and opportunities facing local government and how 
the Council is addressing them 

Chapter 3: Our Vision - The key priorities for the Council for 2019 to 2023 

Chapter 4: Demonstrating Value for Money - Progress against our corporate priorities and how we perform 
compared to other councils  

Chapter 5: Our Priorities 2020-2021 - The Council’s roadmap for the next twelve months    

Appendices 

Appendix A: Aim 1 Analysis of comparative performance and costs 

Appendix B: Aim 2 Analysis of comparative performance and costs  

Appendix C: Aim 3 Analysis of comparative performance and costs 

Appendix D: Aim 4 Analysis of comparative performance and costs 

P
age 112



Chapter 1: Profile of the Borough 

The Borough of High Peak covers an area of 53,915 hectares, of which 30% is classed 
as rural, and serves a usual resident population of 91,662 (census data) - 50.7% of 
which are female. There were 42,441 domestic households on the Council Tax 
valuation list at the end of March 2020.    

Who lives in the High Peak?  

• High Peak has an ageing population; the proportion of residents aged 65 plus 
was estimated at 21.33% in 2019 and is projected to rise to just below 30% 
over the next 20 years, which would make it the biggest age group in the 
borough; taking over from the 45-64 year age group  

• Only 4.14% of the local population is non-white, compared to 4.24% in 
Derbyshire and 20.25% nationally. Mixed or multiple ethnic groups make up 
the second largest proportion of the High Peak population at 1.04% 

• Single person households make up the largest group in the borough, followed 
by couples with dependent children 

• 44.52% of the population are educated to degree level or higher (the highest 
in Derbyshire) and 7.36% have no qualifications, which is higher than the 
Derbyshire average of 5.27%.      
 

What’s it like to live in the High Peak? 
 
Health - Average life expectancy for both men and women is the third longest in Derbyshire at 79.86 and 83.36 years respectively but sits in 
the middle 20% nationally. Compared to the East Midlands region, the health indicators below are higher than the comparative average:   
   

• Under 18 conception rates  
• Road deaths / serious injury per 100,000 population 
• Cancer mortality rate in the over 75’s per 100,000 population 

   

P
age 113



 
Housing - High Peak has a housing affordability ratio within the middle 20% of areas in the region (this ratio compares house prices to 

annual earnings, the lower the ratio the more affordable the housing). The average house price in High Peak was £196,473, the second 
highest in the county after neighbouring Derbyshire Dales.  

 
• 72.05% of households in High Peak are owner occupied, which is higher than the Derbyshire and national average 
• 12.7% of households live in social rented accommodation putting the area in the lowest 40% of areas nationally 

Crime – Figures show that High Peak is amongst the lowest 20% of councils nationally for levels of crime.    

Deprivation - High Peak is ranked in the bottom half of districts nationally for its overall deprivation score but has pockets of higher than 
average deprivation scores for health and disability and living environment.   

Employment – 70.89% of High Peak’s resident working age population are in employment, which is now lower than the Derbyshire average 
of 78.49% following a sharp drop. Our economically active rates are also lower than Derbyshire, whereas our unemployment rates are in 
line.    

 
• High Peak has an above average proportion of residents working in skilled trades and in professional and technical roles. However, the 

proportion of residents in sales and customer services is below the national average.  
 

Covid-19 – Grant Thornton have attempted to measure the economic vulnerability of county areas based on a range of metrics including 
employment in at-risk sectors. Derbyshire has the 4th highest vulnerability score out of 26 areas. A new basket of community recovery 
measures has been pulled together by the Information Team, which includes inward looking measures such as demand for services, as well as 
external contextual measures and these are being monitored from September 2020.  

 

The following pages provide further and supporting analysis from Grant Thornton’s Place Analytics Tool on some key contextual data that 
helps the Council understand the issues facing our local population and to plan services accordingly.  

 
 
 

P
age 114



 
 
 

 
 

P
age 115



 
 

P
age 116



 
 

 

P
age 117



 

 

 

P
age 118



Chapter 2: Our Financial Context 

The Borough has faced significant financial challenges in recent years because of austerity measures along with cost 
pressures within services and greater volatility in financing streams. The shift in local authority financing is increasing the 
focus on locally generated income streams and reducing the reliance on core Central Government funding. This increases 
the control and influence the Council has over income generated within the Borough but has also made it vulnerable to 
fluctuations within the local economy, hence increasing financial risk. The table below compares council spend per capita against all district 
councils and illustrates that High Peak has very low spend nationally at £90.89 per head.  

High Peak 2018/2019 (£000s) Unit Unit 
Cost 

 

Unit Cost 
Score 

TOTAL SERVICE EXPENDITURE (RO) / Population 8,382 92,221 90.89 Very Low 

TOTAL HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population (778) 92,221 (8.44) Low 

TOTAL HOUSING SERVICES (GFRA ONLY) (RO Bal) / Population 622 92,221 6.74 Very Low  

TOTAL CULTURAL & RELATED SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population 1,986 92,221 21.54 Average 

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL & REGULATORY SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population 3,331 92,221 36.12 Low 

TOTAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population 1,101 92,221 11.94 Low 

TOTAL CENTRAL SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population 2,120 92,221 22.99 Very Low 

 

 

P
age 119



RECOVERY 

FINANCIAL 
RECOVERY 

COMMUNITY 
RECOVERY 

ECONOMIC 
RECOVERY 

REINSTATING 
SERVICES 

POSITIVE 
LEGACY 

Future challenges and opportunities 

In addition to the challenges posed by Covid-19, which are set out in detail in the Statement of 
Accounts and focus on a multi-faceted recovery programme, detailed below are some of the 
more significant developments which also have a potential impact on the financial position of 
the Authority.  
 

Changes to Local Government Finance 

Revenue Support Grant - The Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 
presented the Local Government finance settlement 2016/17 to the House of Commons on 
17th December 2015. This was made in the context of the Chancellor’s Autumn Statement / 
Spending Review and included a four-year settlement offer to Authorities for Revenue Support 
Grant (the Local Government core grant) which confirmed the phasing out of the grant by 2020. However, due to the Council being part of the 
Derbyshire Authorities pilot for 100% business rates retention in 2018/19, the RSG allocation was reduced to zero in 2018/19 – a year earlier. 

Business Rates - As part of the current Business Rates Retention system, authorities can retain a proportion of any growth in business rates over 
and above a centrally established baseline. The Council’s proportion is further increased by participation in the Derbyshire Business Rates pool, 
which removes the growth levy payable to Government.  

In October 2015, the Government announced a forthcoming package of reforms to the Business Rates Retention System including a move to Local 
Government retaining 100% of the rates that they received with an end to Revenue Support Grant (as discussed above).  Following invitation from 
the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, Derbyshire Authorities made an application to become a pilot area for the 100% 
Business Rates Retention – which was successful for the financial year 2018/19, and the Council consequently benefited from an income boost 
(reverting back to the normal 50% retention scheme in 2019/20).   

Government have subsequently announced that a 75% Business Rates retention scheme will now be implemented.  There remains uncertainly 
surrounding how the new system will be phased in and in what form – the approved pilots being trialled around the Country will support the 
Government in forming the final model.  In light of the Coronavirus pandemic, Government have announced a delay to the implementation of the 
new system until 2021/22.  Therefore, no financial assumptions based on the new system have been included with the Council’s financial plans at 
this stage - these will be fed into the plans once we have more certainty around how the system will operate.   

P
age 120



There is also a risk that the new system may revisit the original ‘baseline funding level’ for Authorities – which is the amount retained by Authorities 
based on assessment of several factors.  Any review may favour Authorities with Adult Social Care and Children’s Services, where there is national 
recognition of financial pressures, to the detriment of Borough Councils. 

Council Tax - The Council has the capacity to vary Council Tax levels, following the abolition of capping. However, the Council’s ability to increase 
Council Tax by more than a certain percentage is subject to referendum. The threshold was temporarily increased to 2.99% from 1st April 2019 (to 
better reflect CPI), and a Council Tax increase of 2.9% was applied by the Council for 2019/20. The threshold has been reduced back to 2% from 1st 
April 2020, consequently a Council Tax increase of 1.9% has been applied in 2020/21.    

New Homes Bonus - In the provisional Local Government financial settlement released in December 2019, the Government confirmed that in 
Spring 2020 it would be consulting on a replacement for the New Homes Bonus scheme (a financial reward scheme awarded to Authorities who 
demonstrate an increase in housing provision on an annual basis).  

The new housing incentive scheme will reflect a more targeted approach that rewards local government where they are ‘ambitious’ in delivering 
housing growth. At this stage, there is no further detail on what form the new scheme will take. Whilst the allocation of New Homes Bonus is 
secure for 2020/21 (the Council will receive £647,250 in funding next year) beyond that no commitment is made for future years. 

In the absence of any further information, the current MTFP assumes the Council will continue to receive funding equivalent to that confirmed for 
2020/21 but does so with the recognition of the risk this represents to the viability of the Plan beyond 2020/21. 

The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy originally included an assumed £120,000 from stimulated housing growth, primarily from New Homes 
Bonus over the four years (2017-21).   

Social Housing - The Government announced in July 2015 far reaching legislative and financial changes for the social housing sector, which had 
significant implications for High Peak Borough Council and in particular a negative impact on the Housing 
Revenue Account (HRA).  One of the most significant announcements was the reduction in social housing 
rents by 1% per annum from April 2016 for 4 years.   

Consequently, the Council undertook a full review of the HRA during 2016/17 with a view to mitigating the 
financial impact of the changes. A Financial Improvement Plan was presented alongside the MTFP in 
February 2017 which detailed progress made to date, savings achieved, and further work to be undertaken 
to realise additional savings.  

P
age 121



The Government has since announced that from 2020/21, Authorities will be allowed to increase rents from 2020/21 by CPI +1%. 

A revised HRA 30-year Business Plan was presented alongside the MTFP in February 2019, with an updated position presented in February 2020. 

Impact of Brexit 

At this stage it is impossible to predict the impact of the Brexit process on the Authority’s finances and financial planning. It has the potential to 
influence a number of local and national economic drivers such as inflation, interest rates, the valuation of assets and liabilities (for example the 
Council’s property portfolio and pension liability) and the demand for and funding of services.   

Currently the timing and direction of Brexit’s influence on these areas is a matter of debate. To give an idea of the potential financial consequences, 
the table below quantifies the impact on the Authority’s 2020/21 budget had there been a 1% change in its key economic drivers. 

Risk item Impact on MTFP Risk Item Impact on MTFP 

1 % change in inflation 290,000 1 % change in interest rates 65,000 

 

Brexit will also have implications on specific project funding bids which have in the past been submitted to European established bodies, it is 
unclear what/if any mechanism will replace this.      

The overall wider impact and any specific changes to Local Government finance will be further assessed within the Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Plan.   

Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme 

In order to offset the projected revenue budget shortfalls, a four-year Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme for the General Fund and Financial 
Improvement Plan for the Housing Revenue Account, were presented alongside the Medium Term Financial Plan for approval to full Council on 
13th February 2017.  

General Fund Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme  

2017-18 was the first year of the Council’s new 4-year Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme, which targets £2.1m in financial savings by 31st 
March 2021 to offset the forecast budget shortfall and ensure the Council is financially stable. 

P
age 122



The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy aims to both reduce expenditure and increase income. The need to grow income is now more of a 
priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing and no longer heavily reliant on direct government funding.  The strategy has been 
developed with the underlying principles of protecting frontline service delivery.  

The Efficiency Programme is focused on five areas: - 

• Major Procurements - The opportunity to focus attention on several large service functions currently provided by an external contractor / 
supplier. This will also allow a fundamental review of these services with proper consideration of the current financial constraints. The 
individual projects focus on Waste Collection, Leisure Management and Facilities Management. 
 

• Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of rationalising the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities to 
allow for the necessary capital investment. 

 

• Growth – development of a clear focus on housing and economic growth based upon the established Local Plan.  
 

• Income Generation – focus on increasing the yield from existing sources of income and a drive towards identifying new sources of income. 
 

• Rationalisation – a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority areas of spend e.g. management arrangements, non-statutory 
services and channel shift  

 

The delivery of efficiency and rationalisation projects is monitored by the Transformation Board made up of Directors, Heads of Service and key 
officers. A Director is allocated as ‘project executive’ and a full business case appraisal is completed for each project. 

The efficiency target for 2019/20 was originally set at £581,000. However, due to slippage in the delivery of the programme in 2018/19, the 
programme was reprofiled and the target for 2019/20 increased to £714,000.  

The table below shows the projected reprofiled Efficiency Programme: - 

 

 

P
age 123



 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 TOTAL 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Original Programme 310,000 581,000 430,000 810,000 - 2,131,000 

Amended Programme 388,000 449,000 789,000 410,000 95,000 2,131,000 

Variance 78,000 (132,000) 359,000 (400,000) 95,000 - 

Achieved Q4 2018/19 - 75,000 (75,000) - - - 

Revised Target 388,000 524,000 714,000 410,000 95,000 2,131,000 

 

Consequently, the Efficiency Plan has been extended by one year to reflect the anticipated timing of savings materialising. 

The savings achieved in 2019/20 primarily relate to the re-procurement of the Leisure Centres operation contract and insurance, savings generating 
form the Pavilions Gardens Concession arraignments and additional income.  

Continued progression against the efficiency programme is dependent on achieving significant savings from the alternative delivery model for 
Waste, Streets and Parks - Alliance Environment Services.  There are also income generation targets focusing on housing and economic growth. 

 
HRA Improvement Plan 
 
When setting the budget in February 2017, the HRA was predicted to be in a deficit position of £770,430 by the end of 2020/21 due to the 
consequences of the four-year 1% rent reduction.  Therefore, a HRA Financial Improvement Plan was approved which identified potential savings of 
£1.2million from several sources to be achieved over the period 2017/18 – 2020/21. 

 

A HRA Review Progress report was then presented to the HRA working group in April 2017 which further developed and provided more detail on 
the savings programme and likely profiling for the realisation of savings. This has since been reprofiled as below, with no savings target assigned to 
2019/20: - 

P
age 124



     

 

 

 

  

A full stock condition survey of the Council’s portfolio of housing properties was completed and the results were assessed, validated, and 
prioritised. Therefore the 30-year capital programme requirements are now understood - in terms of how much the Council is forecast to spend on 
major repairs and maintenance of its housing stock. This has been included within the updated HRA Business Plan.    

Assuming the four-year HRA Financial Improvement Plan targets are achieved as above and updating the capital programme based on the stock 
condition survey information, results in a projected £2,061,950 surplus position by the end of 2023/24. The revised HRA 30-year Business Plan can 
be found on the Council’s website. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HRA Review Focus 

Potential 
Annual Reduction 

ACHIEVED 
2017/18 

ACHIEVED 
2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 TOTAL 

Total Annual Saving 625,000 245,000 - 330,000 1,200,000 

P
age 125



Chapter 3: Our Vision 

High Peak’s new 4-year Corporate Plan was adopted in October 2019 following cross party member priority setting workshops in the summer. 
It sets out the Council’s Vision for 2019 to 2023 – ‘Working together to protect and invest in the High Peak with the Council on your side’ – and 
is underpinned by four aims:  

Aim One: Supporting our communities to create a healthier, safer, cleaner High Peak 

Our key objectives are: 

 An effective relationship with strategic partners 
 Fit for purpose housing stock that meets the need of tenants and residents 
 Practical support of community safety arrangements 
 Provision of high quality leisure facilities 
 Working with others to address health inequality, food and fuel poverty, mental health and loneliness 
 Effective provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health 

To meet these objectives, we will… 

 Review the Council’s community support arrangements in order to maintain strong partnership working with community groups 
 Implement the accelerated housing delivery programme 
 Develop and implement an ongoing leisure facilities plan focused on improving the health and wellbeing of residents 
 Review the Sports & Physical Activity Strategy in order to integrate communities and sports clubs into the delivery of its objectives 
 Complete the review of the CCTV system and implement the agreed recommendations 
 Review the Community Safety Strategy to ensure that the Council is supportive in fighting crime and anti-social behaviour  
 Implement the Homelessness Strategy effectively to ensure that voluntary groups and social enterprises that work to tackle the issue are 

supported effectively 
 Review the delivery of services to older persons to ensure that they are effective 
 Develop a Private Sector Housing Strategy to improve conditions for private renters 

Working with and supporting our partners we will seek to influence positive outcomes around… 

 Maintaining the provision of accessible health and social care 
 Dealing with anti social behaviour 

P
age 126



Aim Two: A responsive, smart, financially resilient and forward thinking council 

Our key objectives are: 

 Ensure our future financial resilience can be financially sustainable whilst offering value for money 
 Ensure our services are easily available to all our residents in the appropriate channels and provided “right 

first time” 
 Invest in our staff to ensure we have the internal expertise to deliver our plans by supporting our high performing and well 

motivated workforce 
 More effective use of Council assets to benefit our communities 
 Effective procurement with a focus on local businesses 
 Use innovation, technology and partnership with others to help improve the efficiency of services, improve customer satisfaction 

and reduce our impact on the environment 
 

To meet these objectives, we will… 

 Refresh and implement the Asset Management Plan, including a review of the public estate, and ensure adequate facilities 
management arrangements are in place 

 Develop an Access to Services Strategy to ensure that services are accessible to all 
 Refresh the council’s Communications Strategy in order to ensure there is a more effective dialogue and engagement with residents 
 Conduct a review of democratic processes and scrutiny arrangements to make the council as open and transparent as possible 
 Implement the council’s Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme 
 Provide advice and support for residents affected by the rollout of Universal Credit 
 Continue to embed good information management practices through the ASSURED framework 
 Develop and implement a plan to identify new and innovative ways of generating income 
 Develop a new ICT Strategy to enhance and support the delivery of services 
 Review the council’s Diversity Policies and celebrate the traditions and diversity of our community 
 Develop a new OD Strategy to ensure effective workforce development and use of apprenticeships  
 Develop a new Procurement Strategy with a focus on spending money locally 
 Implement the agreed Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 

 

P
age 127



Aim Three: Protect and create jobs by supporting economic growth, development and regeneration 
 
Our key objectives are:  

 
 

 Encouraging business start-ups and enterprises 
 Work to create flourishing town centres and thriving high streets that support the local economy 
 Promote tourism to maximise local benefit 
 High quality development and building control with an “open for business” approach 
 Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of residents, businesses and visitors 
 Working to support existing local businesses, both large and small across the High Peak as they respond to future challenges   
 Supporting the development of innovative green jobs and business across the High Peak 

 

To meet these objectives, we will… 

 Review the implementation of the Local Plan to ensure that the requirements for affordable housing and developer contributions are 
being met 

 Support the development of Glossop Halls 
 Implement the accelerated business growth and employment programme 
 Develop a Cultural Strategy to support and celebrate the rich history and culture of the Borough 
 Review the Council’s Growth Strategy to ensure that it is focused on the effective regeneration of our towns and rural communities  
 Establish a developer open space contributions plan 

 
Working with and supporting our partners we will seek to influence positive outcomes around… 

 Working with the private sector on regeneration schemes including: The Crescent and Torr Vale Mill 
 The One Public Estate programme across the Borough 
 Pressing for more regular and faster rail links, public transport links and essential road infrastructure 
 Completion of the off road route for the Trans Pennine Trail and access to the Monsal and Tissington Trails 
 Bringing additional funding into the Borough 
 Enabling high speed internet across the Borough 
 Extending the Greater Manchester rail offer 

 

P
age 128



Aim Four: To protect and improve the environment including responding to the climate emergency 
 
Our key objectives are:  
 

 Effective recycling and waste management 
 Effective provision of quality parks and open spaces 
 Meeting the challenge of climate change and working with residents and business across the High Peak to 

implement the climate change action plan 
 
 

To meet these objectives, we will… 

 Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the transfer of services to AES in order to achieve improved performance and value for money outcomes 
 Develop a Parks Development Plan to support the widest community use of parks and support community / friends groups 
 Develop a Climate Change Strategy and an action plan of response to a declared climate emergency 
 Review the Environmental Enforcement Policy in order to take steps to further reduce dog fouling and littering 
 Review the Council’s waste and recycling arrangements to increase recycling and to respond to the emerging new national strategy 

 
 

Working with and supporting our partners we will seek to influence positive outcomes around… 

 The development of more cycle routes whilst working with the County Council and residents to ensure harmony amongst road users 
 Encouraging local organisations and businesses to reduce their carbon footprint  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 129



49%

33%

18%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

2019/20 Trends 

Chapter 4: Demonstrating value for money - our performance and how we compare 

Summary 

At the close of 2019/20 the Council had achieved 64% of its key performance indicator targets for the year (+3% improvement on the previous 
year) and had maintained or improved performance in 67% of these measures (+4% improvement on last year).  

 

     
The service areas which fell short of target include the average re-let time for housing voids, sickness absence, fly tipping incidents, planning 
enforcement, households in temporary accommodation, and repairs performance. The impact of lockdown due to the coronavirus pandemic 
can also be seen in some of these results. 

For those measures that fell below the target set for the year we have developed actions for improvement, where feasible, as part of our 
performance reporting to senior managers and members. 

 
 
 
 

2019/20 Targets

Target Met

Target Not Met

Not Available

P
age 130



Aim 1: A safer, healthier and cleaner environment 

In August of last year High Peak’s partnership working was put to 
the test by the very real threat to lives, homes, businesses, and 
livelihoods from the Toddbrook Reservoir incident. Over 1,500 
households were evacuated, and 200 businesses affected as 
emergency teams from a range of partner agencies worked 
together to make the reservoir safe whilst evoking emergency 
planning protocols including rest centres and lines of 
communication.  
 
The event, which made national news, had a 20-day recovery phase and the Borough 
Council is now working with the local community through a dedicated Regeneration 

Officer post to assist local businesses who were affected by the evacuation zone.        
 

Delivering on our high-quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health targets: 
 

 Street cleanliness 
 Regulatory inspections 
 High risk premises inspections 
- Permitted processes inspections (a number of premises due for inspection could not be accessed due to lockdown) 
 Food premises that are broadly compliant with Food Standards Agency standards 
- Fly-tipping incidents (302 compared to 199 last year) 
 Community clean-up campaigns (82 compared to 63 last year) 

 
Fly-tipping remains an area of concern because of the environmental impact and the drain on resources but High Peak’s rate was the 2nd 
lowest in the East Midlands for 2018/19 at 199 incidents. However, we know that there has been a national increase in incidents during 
lockdown and will be launching a comms campaign this year and reviewing our enforcement policy. The Council’s spend on public 
conveniences has increased to £259,000 and is now the 5th highest in the regional comparator group. Food hygiene in establishments across the 
Borough looks healthy with only 12 premises achieving 0-2 stars and 735 premises achieving 3 stars or above, with an additional 12 premises 
achieving the top 5-star rating.  
 
 
 

P
age 131



Achievements 
 5 ‘dog watch’ events conducted across High Peak to reduce dog fouling 
 The Council issued 61 fixed penalty notices for antisocial behaviour in 2019/20. 

 

Delivering on our housing targets: 
 Benefits processing times for new claims 

- Benefits processing times for changes of circumstance 
 Benefits processed correctly 
- Households in temporary accommodation 
- Right to buy transactions completed in time 
 Homelessness prevention 
 13% (19/144) of housing register applicants in priority need have been waiting in excess of 6 months (-30% on last year)  
 Gas safety checks undertaken – 100% compliance for the 5th year in a row 

 
In 2018/19 High Peak’s performance in determining new Housing Benefit claims dropped a further thirteen places from 17th to 30th fastest in 
the East Midlands region of 36 authorities (26 days). However, in 2019/20 the council was able to make significant improvements in 
performance with an end of year processing time of 18 days. Similarly, the cost of processing benefits has reduced from £483k to £287k and 
with it our ranking has dropped from 17th highest in the region to 27th. The correlation charts in Appendix A detail those councils in the region 
who were achieving better performance levels at a lower or comparable cost in 2018/19. Although we missed our target around the use of 
temporary accommodation, benchmarking reveals our levels are well below the national average and are 13% lower than they were 10 years 
ago but are on the increase.  
 
Contextual Measures:  
 
 118 affordable homes were completed in 2018/19 
 177 homes stood empty for more than two years, down from 196 last year 
 77% of overpaid benefit payments were recovered (up 13% on the previous year) 
 It took an average of 152 days to complete disabled adaptations in council owned stock (twice as long as the previous year due to high 

number of wet room installations) 
 9 landlords are signed up to the Landlord Accreditation Scheme (no increase on previous year)  

 

P
age 132



Achievements 
 HPBC passed the Government’s first annual “Housing Delivery Test” with 119% of the number of required homes being completed over 

the past three years and further Major housing sites have been granted approval 
 Developed show flats within sheltered blocks and now have waiting lists for some schemes as a result and the lowest level of vacancies 

seen to date 
 Reviewed and improved the Carelink staffing and service structure, and responded to 842 falls in 2019 
 500 lofts have received insulation to 300mm; loft hatches have been sealed and pipes lagged where needed 

 

Delivering on partnership working and community safety: 
2018/19 benchmarking again evidences that High Peak has low crime levels, but the council’s spend on CCTV remains amongst the highest in 
the East Midlands (9th highest spend and 22nd lowest crime levels). Authorities with similar or lower levels of crime are all reporting 
significantly lower levels of spend in this area. The new CCTV system is installed and working, and monitoring is now being done in-house. 
 
Achievements 
 63 voluntary groups were supported last year 
 In Gamesley we supported the external funding bid to the National Lottery Community Fund for the G52 Extra Auntie programme and 

successfully received £165,000 over 3 years 
 In Glossop we have successfully launched with local volunteers the Victoria Hall open events and established an active Friends of Victoria 

Hall Group. The Hall (library floor) is now in regular use and planning for the next stage of development and a heritage Lottery Bid is 
underway 
 

Delivering on our leisure targets: 
 Level of external funding awarded to support the physical activity and sport strategy 
 Number of new sports participation programmes created in priority areas 
- Number of participants on the High Peak Walking for Health Programme (affected by the cessation of the programme due to lockdown)  
 Number of voluntary clubs/organisations supported with funding applications 

 
2018/19 benchmarking shows that the council spent an average of £6.43 per head on sports and recreational facilities, placing it amongst the 
highest 40% of councils nationally prior to the revised leisure contract. The wider health outcomes within the High Peak also need to be 
considered as the Council implements its sport and physical activity strategy.  

P
age 133



71.2% of High Peak residents take part in 150+ minutes of exercise per week – the second highest rate in the county – according to the latest 
Active Lives survey.   
 
Contextual Measures:  
 
 20% of the local population are ‘inactive’, a reduction of over 2% (Active Lives Survey – Nov 2019) 
 17.8% of the local population volunteer in sports clubs, an increase of 4% (Active Lives Survey – Nov 2019) 
 5 new volunteering programmes have been created in priority areas including Fairfield, Whaley Bridge and Glossop 

 
Achievements 
 Established a High Peak Physical Activity steering group as part of Public Health 

locality working 
 Continued to celebrate and showcase local sporting talent and volunteering 

through our annual Sports Awards 
 The Council tripled its external funding target of £50k and gleaned £170,825 in 

external funding in support of its physical activity and sport strategy 
 Established an Active Communities hub with our Leisure partner Lex Leisure, which 

will build a holistic programme of physical activity across the area, targeting key 
priority groups alongside place based working 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 134



Aim 2: A responsive, smart, financially resilient and forward thinking council  
 
Delivering on our value for money targets: 
 Council tax and business rates collection 
- Media releases take up  
 Social media followers 
 Sundry debt reduction 
- HRA budget variance 
 Rent collection 
 Efficiency savings met  
 Internal audit recommendations implemented on time 

 
Contextual Measures:  
 397 Twitter feeds were retweeted (up from 141 last year) 
 Income generated equates to 118% of the net budget (2018/19) 
 £23m was levered in external funding  

 
2018/19 benchmarking again reveals that High Peak has the 10th highest Council Tax collection rate in the region at 98.43% and has improved 
its national ranking by 15 places to 60th. The cost of collection is the 3rd lowest in the region at £155k. Business Rates collection improved in 
2018/19 to rank amongst the top 40% of councils nationally at 99.09% and 12th highest in the region.  
 
Achievements 
 Further savings across post and print as we roll out the Hybrid Mail project and promote electronic communication  
 Unqualified Statement of Accounts / successful external audit process with minimal errors 
 Delivered a balanced budget for 2019/20 and Medium Term Financial Plan 

 

Delivering on our customer access and right first time targets: 
 Complaints responded to within 10 days 
- Channel shift contacts (phone, face to face and web) 

 

P
age 135



 Repeat complaints 
- FOI requests dealt with on time 
- Website assessment through Socitm’s Better Connected survey 

 
The limited benchmarking material on complaints levels indicates that the number of ombudsman complaints now sits within the lowest 20% 
nationally having fallen from 15 to 7 in 2018/19 and we know that our level of complaints is decreasing following the introduction of a triage 
approach to complaint handling.       
 
Contextual Measures:  
 16% of FOI requests were diverted to the Council’s website / publication scheme (down 10% on last year) 
 The cost of handling FOI requests was estimated at £27,915 
 149 complaints were received during 2019/20: down from 246 

 
Achievements 
 Introduced a Bereavement Care service for our customers following training for frontline staff and a review of relevant documents 
 Suicide awareness training to assist with vulnerable customers and identify possible safeguarding cases 
 To date, 250 online forms available for customers to self serve this will increase as we continue building 

forms to add to our websites 
 23,602 One Vu accounts now active as customers can report changes, raise requests, submit 

information, and track requests through their accounts 
 Reduction in number of complaints received across all services as we triage customer feedback and 

service areas improve processes to get it right first time 
 

Delivering on our workforce targets: 
- Sickness absence per FTE 
 Workplace accidents 
- Reportable/lost time accidents 

 
The amount of time lost due to staff sickness absence is higher than the 9-days target for the year due to a high incidence of long-term 
sickness absence (37 cases, of which 3 were ongoing at year end).  

P
age 136



HR ensure the Council’s policy and procedures are actively used in addressing and providing appropriate support in the case of staff absence. 
Staff appraisals have been paused whilst new corporate plan priorities and aligned service plans were agreed but will shortly recommence. 
Overall accident levels decreased last year to just 12, and two of the four lost time accidents were down to operative error.        

 
Contextual Measures:  
 We received 119 compliments last year 
 Staff turnover fell to 7.6% 

 
Achievements 
 A reduction in workplace accidents and no serious workplace accidents 
 We have been working with Tameside College to give 3 apprentices training opportunities with the repairs and maintenance team 
 15 promotions (at management and officer level) and 7 secondment opportunities 
 7 work experience placements and 6 post entry training agreements in place 

 

Delivering on our effective use of assets targets:   
- Council-owned business units that are occupied 
- Average time from request to repair 
- Average number of jobs completed per repairs operative 
 Rent loss from vacant stock 
 Properties with nil void loss 
- Average time to re-let Council homes  

 
Contextual Measures:  
 It took an average of 16.5 days to re-let homes excluding ‘hard to let’ homes: an improvement of over 4 days on last year 

 
Achievements 
 Continued to strengthen and embed our Information Governance framework through ASSURED, including a programme of peer 

challenge for all Information Asset Registers 
 The Town Hall clock struck 11am on Remembrance Sunday in Glossop 
 Refurbished Tom Brands Croft Bridge and new retaining walls at Carrs Field in Whaley 

 

P
age 137



 Strategic land sales in support of the council's accelerated housing delivery programme 
 Fully let at Winster Mews in Gamesley 

 
Delivering on our procurement targets:   

- On-contract spend 
- Procurement activity 
 Invoices paid on time 

Achievements 

 Small business support for procurement tendering 
 Insurance tender delivered with substantial savings 
 New on-line purchase card facility implemented 
 Combined cross-service procurement exercises 
 Lex Leisure was appointed as our High Peak leisure centre operator from April 2019, the new contract delivers £284,000 annual savings 

for the authority 

 
Delivering on our technology targets: 
 IT network and system availability  

Achievements 

 Began work on the rollout of Office 365 and Windows 10 
 Procured and rolled out councillor iPads in response to the 2019 local elections 
 All tenancy agreements and files now held electronically and automation of some Benefit changes 
 Completed the refresh of the Intranet and briefed service areas on the improved functionality, which included user customisation 
 Co-ordinated ongoing OHMS consultancy work to ensure the system is as efficient as possible, including automated direct debits 

 
 
 

P
age 138



Aim 3: To support economic development and regeneration 
 
Delivering on our business support and start-ups objective: 
Our business formation rate has increased from 9% to 10% and places us 24th out of 36 councils in the East Midlands with 
Derbyshire Dales ranked last at 7%.  
 
Contextual Measures:  
 3965 enterprises are operating within the High Peak; 65 more than last year but the pandemic is expected to result in a fall in this figure 

for 2021 
 380 completions and 403m2 of employment space delivered  

Achievements 

 Supported businesses and residents during the Toddbrook Reservoir incident and secured BEIS funding (capital and revenue) to support 
central towns’ regeneration 

 Facilitated a wide range of business events  
 Distributed the E-newsletter to 1000 businesses each month 

 

Delivering on our flourishing town centres targets: 
- Trip Advisor ratings for Pavilion Gardens 
 The borough had an average town centre vacancy rate of 7.4% - Buxton 7.8%, Glossop 3.3%, New Mills 10.2%, Chapel 6.3%, Whaley 

Bridge 8%, and Hadfield 2.8%. The national average stands at over 10%. 

Despite the low vacancy rate for Buxton, we have identified the Springs / Spring Gardens as a sub area with vacancy rates in excess of 12%, 
which the business case for Future High Street Funding seeks to address. Funding and targeted support is also in place for the three central 
area towns for 2020/21. 

 

 

 

P
age 139



Achievements 

 High Peak's bid to regenerate Buxton town centre 
was one of 50 selected to go through to the next 
stage of a multi-million-pound national fund to 
transform high streets and make them fit for the 
future. Funding of up to £150,000 was awarded to 
work up detailed project proposals (image credit: 
Pam Smart) 

 Buxton has been selected as one of just 69 towns 
across the country to share in a £95 million fund to 
revive the special characteristics of historic high 
streets. High Peak Borough Council is now working with Historic England, who are delivering the Heritage Action Zone (HAZ) initiative on 
behalf of the Government, on detailed proposals 

 Continued to progress the project to transform the Crescent and adjoining buildings into a 5* hotel and spa complex 
 

Delivering on our promoting tourism targets: 
- Pavilion Gardens footfall 

 
Visitors to the High Peak added £274m of spend to the local economy according to the latest research reports and local business benefited 
from over 1.52m overnight stays. The Council’s recorded spend on tourism places it in the middle 20% of councils nationally at £35k.   
 

Delivering on our high quality development and building control targets:  
 Planning appeals successfully defended 
- % of planning enforcement cases resolved within 13 weeks  
 Major, minor and other planning applications determined in time – 95% of majors determined on time 
 Planning applications with pre-app enquiries 
 Priority planning enforcement cases visited within 1 working day 
- Agent satisfaction with the planning service 

 

P
age 140



2018/19 benchmarking data across the East Midlands region shows that High Peak performs above the mean for the processing of major, 
minor and other planning applications, and had a 100% record on majors.  
The costs of development control have increased to £311,000 placing the council in the middle 20% of councils nationally and the 11th highest 
in the region.   
 
Contextual Measures:  
 No costs were awarded against the Council last year for planning appeals 
 263 customers attended the new Planning Surgeries (up 30 on last year) 

Achievements 

 Major public inquiry won at Macclesfield Road, Buxton 
 Won Judicial Review Challenge at Linglongs Road, Whaley Bridge 
 Planning permission granted for major regeneration at Buxton Station (McCarthy & Stone & Health Hub) 

 
 

Delivering on our car parking targets: 
 
Contextual Measures:  
 2381 PCNs were issued in 2019/20 of which 81.85% were collected 
 56.4% of car park spaces are covered by the Park Mark scheme 
 Over 6% of all spaces are allocated as disabled parking bays 

Achievements 

 Installation of new EV charging points in 5 car parks  
 New lights at Pavilion Gardens Car Park 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 141



Aim 4: To protect and improve the environment 

Delivering on our effective recycling and waste management targets: 
 
 % of household waste recycled (estimate) 
 Kg of residual household waste (estimate) 
 Paper consumption 
 Missed Bins 

 
 

2018/19 benchmarking ranks High Peak’s recycling rate as the 5th highest in the region (an improvement of 1 place) and the residual kg of 
household waste remains the 6th lowest level across the East Midlands. However, the cost of recycling is now amongst the top 20% of councils 
nationally at £34.38 per dwelling, whilst waste collection costs are amongst the lowest 20% of councils nationally.      
  
Achievements 

 Successfully completed Phase 3 of the transfer of services to Alliance Environmental Services Ltd, to deliver waste, streets and ground 
maintenance services on behalf of the Council in order to achieve improved performance and value for money outcomes 

 The food recycling trial in parts of Buxton and Glossop - which sees three tonnes of food waste per week turned into compost - was 
extended until Spring 2020 

 
Delivering on our quality parks and open spaces targets: 
 
 Volunteer hours (1019 up from 676)  
 Green Flag award 

 
Whaley Bridge Memorial Park was again successful in retaining its prestigious Green Flag award.  
 
Council spend on parks and open spaces is amongst the middle 20% of districts nationally at £669,000.   
 
 
 

P
age 142



Delivering on our climate change targets: 
 
The Council declared a climate emergency on 15th October 2019 and 
committed to work with partners across the borough towards making High 
Peak carbon neutral by 2030. Latest government data shows the district 
produces 30.7t of CO2 per capita (2018 figures, published June 2020) compared 
to 36.3t in 2005.  

The council has created a new Executive Portfolio with specific responsibility for 
driving the Council’s climate change agenda and an initial plan has been 
developed.  

A Climate Change Working Group has also been established and a number of 
interested community groups attended a Climate Change Summit in January 2020 
contributing ideas and issues for consideration by the Council’s working Group.  

Work has been undertaken on a number of strands including: 

 A 10-year fleet replacement programme that will bring about reduced emissions and improved fuel efficiency 
 An updated procurement strategy that promotes the purchase of low or zero emissions products and services 
 An Asset Management Plan review in 2021 to include consideration of photovoltaics and reduced emissions from new plant and 

machinery  
 A programme of energy efficiency improvements within the council’s housing stock  
 Consideration of moving to a green energy supplier when the current utilities contract expires 
 Parks management that embraces biodiversity  
 A treasury management strategy that supports investment in green business 
 Building improved environmental performance into any future facilities management arrangements 
 Working in partnership with the county council on shared initiatives 
 Exploring the feasibility of large-scale projects such as offsetting, wind farms and more EV charging points. 

The council is also taking advice from the Energy Saving Trust on several initiatives. A full plan will be in place for 2021/22 onwards.  

 
 

P
age 143



Chapter 5: Our Future Priorities 2020-2021 

2019/20 saw the development and adoption of a new Corporate Plan by the Council for the period up to 2023. As such most of the current 
actions remain relevant and have been rolled forward into 2020/21 as well as new priorities that have emerged in response to the coronavirus 
pandemic and the need for new economic and community recovery plans.    

Corporate Plan Aim Rolled forward Priority Actions New Priority Actions 
Aim 1: Practical support of 
community safety 
arrangements  

Complete the review of the CCTV system and implement the agreed 
recommendations 

 

Review the Community Safety Strategy to ensure that the Council is supportive in 
fighting crime and anti-social behaviour  

Aim 1: Provision of high 
quality leisure facilities 
both in formal leisure 
centres and swimming 
pools and out in our 
communities   

Develop and implement an ongoing leisure facilities improvement plan focused on 
improving the health and wellbeing of residents   

 

Review the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy in order to integrate communities and 
sports clubs into the delivery of its objectives 

Aim 1: Fit for purpose 
housing that meets the 
needs of tenants and 
residents 

Implement the accelerated housing delivery programme  
Implement the Homelessness Strategy effectively to ensure that voluntary groups and 
social enterprises that work to tackle the issue are supported effectively  
Develop a Private Sector Housing Strategy to improve conditions for private renters 

Aim 1: Work with our 
partners and the community 
to address health inequality, 
food and fuel poverty, mental 
health, and loneliness 

Review the Council’s community support arrangements in order to maintain strong 
partnerships with community groups 

Implement the Covid-19 
Community Recovery Plan  

Review the delivery of services to older persons to ensure that they are effective 
 

Together with partners we will seek to influence the following outcomes: 
 Maintaining the provision of accessible health and social care 
 Dealing with anti-social behaviour 

 
Aim 2: Services readily 
available and provided right 
first time 

Provide advice and support for residents affected by the rollout of Universal 
Credit  

 

Review the council's Diversity Policies including working with faith and cultural groups 
to celebrate the traditions and diversity of our community 
 

P
age 144



Corporate Plan Aim Rolled forward Priority Actions New Priority Actions 
Conduct a review of democratic processes and scrutiny arrangements to make the 
Council as open and transparent as possible 
Refresh the council's Communication Strategy in order to ensure there is a more 
effective dialogue and engagement with residents  
Develop an Access to Services Strategy to ensure that Council services are accessible 
to all 

Aim 2: Ensure our future 
financial resilience can be 
financially sustainable whilst 
offering value for money  

Develop and implement a plan to identify new and innovative ways of 
generating income  

Implement the Covid-19 
Financial Recovery Plan 

Implement the agreed Housing Revenue Account Business Plan 
 
Implement the Council's Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme 
 

Aim 2: More effective use of 
council assets to benefit our 
communities 

Continue to embed good information management practices through the 
ASSURED Framework 

 

Refresh and implement the Asset Management Plan, including a review of public 
estate, and ensure adequate facilities management arrangements are in place   

Aim 2: Invest in our staff to 
ensure we have the internal 
expertise to deliver our plans 
by supporting our high 
performing and well 
motivated workforce  

Develop a new Organisational Development Strategy to ensure effective workforce 
development and use of apprenticeships  
 

 

Aim 2: Effective procurement 
with a focus on local business 
 

Develop a new procurement strategy with a focus on spending money locally 
 

 

Aim 2: Use innovation, 
technology and partnership 
with others to help improve 
the efficiency of services, 
improve customer satisfaction 
and reduce our impact on the 
environment 

Develop a new ICT strategy to enhance and support the delivery of services 
 

Implement the Covid-19 
Positive Legacy Plan 

Aim 3: Work to create 
flourishing town centres and 

Support the development of Glossop Halls  
 

Implement the Covid-19 

P
age 145



Corporate Plan Aim Rolled forward Priority Actions New Priority Actions 
thriving high streets that 
support the local economy 

Review the Council's Growth strategy to ensure that it is focused on the effective 
regeneration of our towns and rural communities  

Economic Recovery Plan 

Aim 3: Encourage business 
start-ups and enterprise 

Implement the accelerated business growth and employment programme   

Aim 3: High Quality 
Development and Building 
Control with an 'open for 
business' approach 

Establish a developer open space contributions plan  

Review the implementation of the Local Plan to ensure that the requirements for 
affordable housing and developer contributions are being met 
 

Aim 3: Promote tourism to 
maximise local benefit 
 

Develop a Cultural Strategy to support and celebrate the rich history and culture of 
the Borough  

 

 

Together with partners we will seek to influence the following outcomes: 
 Work with the private sector on regeneration schemes including The Crescent and Torr Vale Mill  
 Ensure the best use of public assets across the borough through the One Public Estate project 
 Pressing for more regular and faster rail links, public transport links and essential road infrastructure 
 Work with regional partners to extend the Greater Manchester rail offer 
 Completion of the off road route for the Trans Pennine Trail and access to the Monsal and Tissington trails 
 Bringing additional funding into the Borough 
 Enabling high speed internet across the Borough 

Aim 4: Meeting the challenges 
of climate change and 
responding to the Climate 
Emergency declaration SM: 
Meeting the challenges of 
climate change 

Develop a climate change strategy and an action plan of response to a declared 
climate emergency 
 

 

Aim 4: Effective provision of 
quality parks and open spaces 
 

Develop a Parks Development Plan to support the widest community use of parks and 
support community/friends groups 

 

Review the Environmental Enforcement Policy in order to take steps to further reduce 
dog fouling and littering  

Aim 4: Effective recycling and 
waste management 
 

Review the Council's waste and recycling arrangements to increase recycling and to 
respond to the emerging new national strategy 
 
 

 

P
age 146



Corporate Plan Aim Rolled forward Priority Actions New Priority Actions 
Together with partners we will seek to influence the following outcomes: 
 Develop more cycle routes whilst working with the County Council and residents to ensure harmony amongst road users 
 Encourage local organisations and businesses to reduce their carbon footprint 

 
 

References 

The benchmarking data used within this Report has been drawn from the following sources: 

1. Grant Thornton’s Place Analytics online tool 
2. Grant Thornton’s CFO Insights online tool 
3. The LGA’s benchmarking tool – LG Inform 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 147



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDICES 
 
 

P
age 148



Aim 1: a healthier, safer, cleaner High Peak 
Fit for purpose housing that meets the needs of tenants and residents  
The following chart shows the correlation between Housing Benefit costs and New Claims average speed of processing 
against the East Midlands Non- Metropolitan group in 2018-19, using Grant Thornton’s CFO Insight tool. In 2018-19 costs 
have reduced from £483k to £278k but processing times have increased. Out of the group of 36, the rank has improved 
from 17th to 27th (where 1 is the highest cost). Average speed of processing has increased from 20 to 26 days. Corby, 
Hinckley & Bosworth, South Northamptonshire and Boston are examples of authorities processing claims faster at a lower 
cost. The council’s 2019/20 processing times are much improved, standing at 18 days. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 149



This chart shows the correlation between Housing Benefit costs and Change in Circumstances average speed of processing 
against the group. High Peak costs have reduced but processing times have stayed the same at 7 days. Corby, Hinckley & 
Bosworth, South Northamptonshire and Boston are examples of authorities processing changes faster and at a lower cost.  
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 150



22

14

6

12

5

7

12 12

16

19

0

5

10

15

20

25

 2009 - 2010  2010 -  2011 2011 - 2012  2012 - 2013 2013 -  2014 2014 - 2015 2015 -  2016 2016 - 2017  2017 -  2018  2018- 2019

This time series shows the change in the number of households in temporary accommodation in High Peak since 2009. 
Overall, there has been a decrease of 13.6% between 2009 and 2019 (2009: 22 households,  2019: 19 households). The 
mean for All English District Authorities at the end of Q3 2019/20 was 55 households. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 151



Practical Support of Community Safety Arrangements 

The chart below shows the cost of CCTV compared to the total number of crimes (percentile) for the High Peak against the 
East Midlands group in 2018-19. Costs have increased compared to 2017-18 and remain high within the group at £135,000 
(9th highest out of 24 councils with spend) but the total number of crimes (2016) remain low at 3,899 (22nd lowest out of a 
group of 31). Harborough, Derbyshire Dales, North Kesteven, South Holland and Bolsover spend less on CCTV and have 
fewer crimes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 152



Provision of high quality leisure facilities both in formal leisure centres and swimming pools and 
out in our communities 

This map shows that High Peak’s spend on sports and recreation facilities (including golf) (RO) £000’s falls within the top 
40% of councils nationally (ranked 74th out of 200 areas) with a spend of £593,000. In 2017-18, High Peak sat in the top 
20% and ranked 2nd out of 200 areas with a spend of £1,218,000 on sports development and community recreation.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 153



This bar chart shows the proportion of the population in High Peak who participate in 150+ minutes of exercise per week 
(Active Lives Survey Nov 18-19, Sport England) compared to other districts within Derbyshire. High Peak have 71.2% of its 
residents participating in 150+ minutes of exercise per week, compared to 66.8% in Nov 17-18.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 154



 Effective provision of high- quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health 

The table shows the number of fly tipping incidents in 2018-19 compared to the 10 nearest neighbours from the East 
Midlands Group. Compared to the whole East Midlands group, High Peak were ranked 35th lowest (out of 36) with 199 
incidents, this compares favourably to 2017-18 when they were ranked 29th lowest with 393 incidents 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 155



Aim 2: responsive, smart, financially resilient and forward thinking  

Ensure our future financial resilience can be financially sustainable whilst offering value for 
money 
The map below has been produced using Grant Thornton’s CFoI analytical tool and shows that High Peak has an above average 
rate of Council Tax collection at 98.43%, sitting within the top 40% of districts nationally. The collection rate has improved 
slightly from 98.35% in 2017/18. The cost of council tax collection is low compared to the group, ranked 178th out of 200 areas 
at £155,000, a decrease from £197,000 in 2017-18. 

 

 

. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 156



This map shows the Non- Domestic Tax Collection rate across all English districts. The High Peak collection rate has 
improved from 98.74% in 2017/18 (middle 20%) to 99.09% in 2018/19, now sitting within the top 40% of districts 
nationally.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 157



Ensure our services are readily available to all our residents in the appropriate channels and 
provided ‘right first time’  

 The table below has been produced using LG Inform and shows the number of formal complaints from 2018/19 Q4 to 
2019/20 Q3 (pre-release) for High Peak and High Peak CIPFA nearest neighbours. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 158



This map produced by CFoI shows the total number of Ombudsman complaints received by English Districts in 2018-19. 
The High Peak score has decreased from 15 to 7 and sits within the lowest 20% of all districts. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 159



0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

Mansfield Newark and
Sherwood

Northampton Charnwood Daventry North West
Leicestershire

High Peak Ashfield Corby Broxtowe Kettering

0
2
4
6
8

10
12
14
16

Mansfield Newark and
Sherwood

Northampton Daventry North West
Leicestershire

High Peak Ashfield Broxtowe Kettering

Short Term Days Long Term Days

Invest in our staff to ensure we have the internal expertise to deliver our plans by supporting 
our high performing and well- motivated workforce  

The charts below compare the average sickness absence days per employee in the High Peak 2018/19 against other areas 
in the East Midlands and is generated using LG Inform tools. High Peak had an average of 10.62 days sickness absence per 
FTE. The mean for the East Midlands was 10 days. The second chart shows the short-term and long-term days. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 160



Aim 3: supporting economic growth, development and regeneration  
Encouraging business start-ups and enterprises 

This time series demonstrates changes in business formation rate from 2010-2018. The rate of new business as a 
proportion of total business stock increased steadily from 2010 then fell in 2016 and 2017. 2018 has seen an increase to 
10.19%. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 161



This bar chart shows the High Peak new business formation rate % for 2018 compared to other authorities in the area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 162



Promote tourism to maximise local benefit 

This map shows the total spend on tourism across all English districts. High Peak sits in the middle quintile of districts 
nationally, spending £35,000 on tourism, a slight decrease compared to £38,000 in 2017/18. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 163



High quality development and building control with an ‘open for business’ approach 

This bar chart was produced using LG Inform tools and shows the % of planning applications processed within 13 weeks or 
agreed time for major developments in 2018/19 compared to local authority districts within the East Midlands. High Peak 
processed 100% of major applications within 13 weeks, no change from 2017-18. The mean for the East Midlands was 
93%. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 164



This bar chart was produced using LG Inform tools and shows the % of planning applications processed within 8 weeks or 
agreed time for minor developments in 2018/19 compared to local authority districts within the East Midlands. High Peak 
processed 92% of minor applications within 13 weeks, compared to 94% in 2017-18. The mean for the East Midlands was 
90%. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 165



This bar chart was produced using LG Inform tools and shows the % of planning applications processed within 8 weeks or 
agreed time for other developments in 2018/19 compared to local authority districts within the East Midlands. High Peak 
processed 97% of other applications within 13 weeks, compared to 93% in 2017-18. The mean for the East Midlands was 
94%. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 166



The map below shows the spend on development control (RO, 2018-19) across all English districts. High Peak spent 
£311,000 on development control, which places it in the middle quintile, in 2017/18 High Peak sat in the lowest 20% of all 
districts nationally with a spend of £118,000. 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 167



Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment including responding 
to the climate emergency 

Effective recycling and waste management 

This line chart shows the proportion of household waste that is sent for reuse, recycling or composting from 2009-2019. 
Within High Peak, the recycling rate has increased to 48.7% which sits in the top 40% nationally. Areas in the top quintile have 
achieved between 51.92% and 63.3%.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

P
age 168



This chart shows residual waste per household in kilograms (2018-19) for High Peak compared to other authorities in the 
area. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 169



This map shows the unit spend on Waste Collection (R/O, £/dwelling in 2018-19), across all English districts. High Peak has 
a low unit spend at £11.31 falling into the lowest 20% nationally. In 2017-18 High Peak sat in the top 20% with a very high 
unit spend of £54.98.  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 170



This map shows the unit spend on Recycling (R/O £/dwelling in 2018-19), across all English districts. High Peak has a high 
unit spend at £34.38 falling into the top 20% nationally. In 2017-18 High Peak sat in the lowest 20% with a unit spend of 
(£6.88). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

P
age 171



This scatter chart shows the correlation between the cost of waste collection and the kg of residual waste per household.  
Oadby & Wigston and East Northamptonshire are examples of areas producing less residual waste at a lower cost. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 172



This scatter chart shows the correlation between the cost of recycling and the % of household waste sent for reuse, 
recycling or composting. North East Derbyshire, Rushcliffe and Daventry are examples of areas that have a similar 
recycling rate at a lower cost. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 173



Effective provision of quality parks and open spaces 

This map shows open spaces costs in 2018-19 across all English districts. High Peak are ranked 119th out of 200 areas at £669,000 
(middle quintile). No change in rank compared to 2017-18, costs have increased slightly from £645,000.  

 

 

 

 

 
  

P
age 174



Meeting the challenges of climate change and working with residents and businesses across the High 
Peak to implement the climate change action plan. 

This map shows the Environmental Initiatives RO in 2018-19 across all English districts. This value refers to net current 
expenditure for environmental education, grants related to environmental initiatives and individual environmental projects. High 
Peak are ranked 67th out of 200 areas with £25,000 and sit in the second quartile. This is an increase from £15,000 in 2017-18. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 175



This map shows CO2- per capita emissions 2018 in the context of All Local Authority Districts in the East Midlands and is produced 
using LG Inform tools. The High Peak score was 30.7 CO2 emissions per capita which is the highest score in the group. The lowest 
was Oadby & Wigston at 3.1. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

P
age 176



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

The Executive

3 December 2020

Appendices Attached
 Appendix A (2020/21 – Second Quarter (Financial Report)
 Appendix B (2020/21 – Second Quarter (Procurement Report) 
 Appendix C (2020/21 – Second Quarter (Performance Report)
 Appendix D (2020/21 – Second Quarter (Write Offs) – CONFIDENTIAL

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall 
performance and financial position for the period ended 30th September 
(“Second Quarter 2020/21”)

2. Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that the Executive: 

 Note the Second Quarter 2020/21 financial, procurement and performance 
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this 
covering report; and

 Approval the write offs set out in Appendix D 

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report summarises the Council’s performance and financial position after 
considering service activity up to the end of the Second Quarter (i.e. 30th 
September 2020). 

3.2 Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B 
(Procurement) & Appendix C (Performance).

3.3 The position can be summarised as follows:

TITLE: Second Quarter Financial, Procurement & 
Performance Review 2020/21

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Alan Barrow – Executive Councillor for 
Corporate Services and Finance

CONTACT OFFICERS: Keith Pointon – Interim Head of Finance 
Vanessa Higgins – Information Business Partner

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 177

Agenda Item 8



Subject Headline Reference
Finance The Finance headlines for the Second Quarter are:

Performance against Budget
 At the Second Quarter stage the General Fund projected outturn 

for 2020/21 is an overspend of £451,070.  
Efficiency Programme

 At Quarter Two £86,000 of savings have been taken against the 
2020/21 revised efficiency target of £257,000 (General Fund).  

Housing Revenue Account
 The Housing Revenue Account is predicted to be in surplus 

(against budget) by £771,660 at the Quarter Two stage.
Capital Programme

 The General Fund Capital Programme budget for 2020/21 as 
revised is £5.05 million.  The projected outturn is £3.39 million, 
representing an underspend of £1.66 million – mostly in respect of 
programme slippage due to Covid19

 The HRA Programme for 2020/21 as revised is £5.4 million.  The 
projected outturn is £4.6 million which represents a £0.8 million 
underspend - mostly in respect of programme slippage.

Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 30 September 2020 totalled £30.9 

million.
 Council borrowing at 30 September 2020 totalled £66.8 million.
 The Council’s net interest costs are forecast to be as budgeted for 

the HRA and £26,320 under for the general fund.
Revenue Collection

 55.72% of Council Tax was collected by 30 September 2020, 
compared to 56.79% for the same period last year.

 52.36% of Business Rates was collected by 30 September 2020 
compared with 59.11% for the same period last year.

 At the end of Quarter Two the value of sundry debt over 60 days 
old was £238,850 which compares to £165,340 at 30 June 2019

Appendix A

Procurement The Procurement headlines for the Second Quarter are:
 24 procurement activities were completed 
 The Procurement forward plan includes 61 procurement activities for 

completion/start in 2020/21 (either HPBC only or joint)
 At the 30 September 2020, 76% of procurement activity undertaken 

was on the forward plan and the Council paid 94% of its invoices within 
30 days

Appendix B 

Performance The Performance headlines for the Second Quarter are:
 77% of the key performance indicators on track, with 46% better than 

the previous year.
 The Council received 31 complaints, 158 comments and 98 

compliments in the Second Quarter.
 Priority Actions - 5 green, 1 completed, remainder yet to commence

Appendix C

4.      How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the effective 
management of performance and financial resources, which is the subject of 
this report.

Page 178



5.      Options and Analysis

5.1 Detailed Analysis is contained within the appendices

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
None

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality 
and Diversity policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report.

6.5 Legal
None

6.6 Sustainability
None

6.7 External Consultation
None

6.8      Risk Assessment
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are 
identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A.

CLAIRE HAZELDENE
Acting Executive Director (Finance & Customer Services)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

Appendices A-C Keith Pointon
01538 395400 Ext. 4193
Vanessa Higgins 
01538 395400 Ext. 4195

6.4

Page 179



This page is intentionally left blank



1

APPENDIX A

2020/21

Second Quarter 
Financial
Review

Page 181



2

1. Background and Introduction 

1.1. In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and recommended 
good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to members. This is the 
second such report for 2020/21.

1.2. The report summarises overall financial performance for 2020/21 with particular 
emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. Specific 
considerations are as follows:

 General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary 
performance on the General Account by looking at variations in income and 
expenditure and the funding received by the Council. 

 Alliance Environmental Services (Section 3) – highlights the performance of 
the Council’s Joint Venture Company providing Waste and Fleet services.

 Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 4) – considers progress 
in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings forecast. 

 Housing Revenue Account (Section 5) – highlights the budgetary position in 
respect of the operation of the Council’s housing stock.

 General Fund Capital Programme (Section 6) – provides an update to 
Members on progress against the Council’s General Fund capital plans.

 HRA Capital Programme (Section 7) – provides an update to Members on 
progress against the Council’s HRA capital plans.

 Treasury Management (Section 8) – sets out the key statistics in terms of 
investments and borrowings.

 Revenue Collection (Section 9) – considers progress-to-date in collecting the 
Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts.

Page 182



3

2. General Fund Revenue Account

2.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the General Fund 
Revenue Account against budget by looking at variations in income and 
expenditure and funding received by the Council.

Service (with staff*) 2020/21 
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2020/21

Variance

Contributi
on to / 

(Use of) 
Earmarke

d 
Reserves

Net 
Variance

 £ £ £ £ £
Alliance Leadership Team 58,290 49,810 (8,480) - (8,480)
Audit 10,240 2,010 (8,230) - (8,230)
ICT 565,210 569,110 3,900 - 3,900
Human Resources 69,480 56,180 (13,300) - (13,300)
Member Services 195,220 152,220 (43,000) - (43,000)
Property Services 150,680 573,490 422,810 (40,000) 382,810
Benefits (178,470) (174,470) 4,000 (14,700) (10,700)
Planning Applications (410,680) (314,490) 96,190 (800) 95,390
Building Control 56,140 14,330 (41,810) - (41,810)
Customer Services 144,390 104,250 (40,140) - (40,140)
Legal Services 30,510 26,510 (4,000) - (4,000)
Electoral Services 59,470 41,770 (17,700) - (17,700)
Licensing and Land Charges (317,480) (230,960) 86,520 - 86,520
Regeneration 249,480 361,370 111,890 (96,890) 15,000
Communities and Cultural 293,030 290,050 (2,980) - (2,980)
Housing Strategy** 67,930 56,930 (11,000) - (11,000)
Transformation 21,250 19,100 (2,150) - (2,150)
Community Safety and Enforcement 118,080 104,810 (13,270) - (13,270)
Finance Income & Procurement (131,430) 84,670 216,100 - 216,100
Corporate Finance* 5,450,520 5,731,520 281,000 - 281,000
Waste Collection 1,937,780 2,163,830 226,050 - 226,050
Street Scene 382,770 396,330 13,560 (60) 13,500
Leisure Services 146,770 1,369,200 1,222,430 9,870 1,232,300
Horticulture 310,060 284,020 (26,040) (780) (26,820)
Environmental Health (30,710) (41,330) (10,620) - (10,620)
 
Net Total of Services 9,248,530 11,690,260 2,441,730 - 2,298,370
  
Net Interest 1,677,940 1,651,620 (26,320) (26,320)
 10,926,470 13,341,880 2,415,410 (143,360) 2,272,050
Funding:  
- external (10,951,820) (14,336,170) (3,384,350) 3,360,640 (23,710)
- reserves contribution to/(from)
     general contingency 138,290 138,290 - - -
     use of carry forward from 19/20 (24,000) (24,000) - - -
     earmarked (88,940) (143,360) (54,420) 143,360 88,940
- covid 19 support (1,886,210) (1,886,210) (1,886,210)

Projected (Surplus)/Deficit - (2,909,570) (2,909,570) 3,360,640 451,070
    

* Staff budgets are currently budgeted within Corporate Finance (except for the staff budget of the Carelink service within 
Housing Strategy which for operational reasons are included within the Service).
  ** The Council’s Housing management costs are charged to the Housing Revenue Account

Page 183



4

2.2. A revenue budget of £10,902,470 was set for 2020/21.  In accordance with 
Financial Procedure Rules, the roll forward of £24,000 in unused budgets from 
2019/20 has been authorised.

Corporate Finance (£6,000): relating to completion of risk management work 
around the safeguarding of the Buxton Spring Water source. 

Assets (£18,000): in respect of works to Whaley Bridge War Memorial.

This brings the 2020/21 budget to £10,926,470.

2.3. The table above shows how this budget has been allocated to services.

2.4. The Q2 projected outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for 2020/21 is 
£11,377,540.  This represents a projected deficit for the year of £451,070. 

2.5. No service areas with a projected significant underspend (>£50,000):

2.6. There are seven service areas with projected significant overspends (>£50,000).

 Property (£382,810 overspend); Covid-19 has impacted this service 
significantly in two areas.  Car parking where a £350,000 reduction in net income 
is forecast and Public Conveniences with additional cleaning costs resulting in 
a £19,000 overspend.  Additional costs of some £59,000 are being incurred to 
facilitate Glossop market activities while the building remedial work progresses. 
The protracted negotiation of a replacement contract for property maintenance 
is further adding to budgetary pressures.  

 Planning (£95,390 overspend); underspends across a number of budget 
heads are partially offsetting a predicted £117,000 shortfall in income from 
planning applications. 

 Licensing and Land Charges (£86,520 overspend); Covid-19 has reduced 
demand for both land searches and activity licensing adding a further £65,000 
to an underlying £20,000 shortfall in anticipated income based on historic 
demand.

 Finance Income and Procurement (£216,100 overspend); Covid-19 has 
significantly impacted the Recovery service with income generated from 
summons activity predicted to be some £170,000 below original expectations. 
Further budget pressure in the region of £60,000 is predicted in Revenues from 
the level of spending on external services to support billing processes.  This has 
been exacerbated to a degree by the heavy involvement of staff in administering 
the payment of Covid 19 business grants – which Government funding has 
contributed towards.

Page 184



5

 Corporate Finance (£281,000 overspend); Covid-19 has significantly 
impacted the level of savings achievable in the current year Efficiency 
Programme, especially those savings premised on growing fees and charges,  
and realising additional income streams. The assumption at this stage is that 
there will be a shortfall in savings of £171,000.  A heightened risk remains 
surrounding the savings taken in 2019/20 arising out of the council’s Leisure 
Management contract. The costs associated with delivering the Efficiency 
Programme and the anticipated savings in the establishment is collectively 
estimated to be in the region of £85,000. The in-year Efficiency Plan savings 
situation will be kept under review over the coming months and will be 
incorporated into the revision of the Medium Term Financial Plan. An additional, 
if indirect, Covid-19 impact is a predicted £130,000 shortfall in income from the 
Borough’s bottled water franchise. These extra costs have been partially offset 
by a £103,000 in-year credit resulting from an over accrual of costs against the 
Business Rates Pool 2019/20. 

 Waste (£226,050 overspend); Covid 19 has had both negative and positive 
effects on service performance.  Lockdown actually increased the amount of 
recycling collected giving rise to a predicted £84,000 increase in income 
generated.  This however was more than offset by some £187,000 in additional 
staff and operating costs necessitated by requirements for social distancing and 
hygiene measures.  Income from trade waste contracts, reflecting the 
pandemic’s suppression of demand, is predicted to fall £38,000 short of budget. 
The service is also under underlying contract pressures of around £90,000.

 Leisure (£1,232,300 overspend); The pandemic has seen the closure and 
curtailment of leisure facilities and activities significantly impacting the council’s 
leisure contractor. At present, subject to the council continuing to provide cost 
plus support to the contractor, the Borough is anticipating overspends in the 
region of £810,000 for leisure centre provision and £426,000 in regard to 
Pavilion Gardens.

2.7. The £28,320 underspend on net interest costs is detailed in section 8.

2.8. The level of funding anticipated for the year is currently forecast £5,221,760 above 
that budgeted due to the following:

Business Rates (£3,384,350):
 The Council expects to receive £3,418,890 in additional S31 grants in the 

year following the announcement and award of Extended Retail Relief of 
100% (33% was forecast in the budget based on the best knowledge at the 
time); and Nursery Discount (which was not anticipated in the budget). Both 
of these increases to relief were announced by the government in response 
to the Covid-19 situation. Accounting practice dictates that these grants are 
treated as general fund revenue in the year. However, the extended reliefs 
impact the Collection Fund by increasing the deficit in the year, which will 
need to be distributed in future years, therefore this additional funding needs 
to be earmarked to accommodate this and cannot be used to support other 
services.

Page 185



6

 This increase in Business Rates Funding is forecast to be offset in part by 
an increase in net levy payable on growth to the Derbyshire Business Rates 
Pool of £34,540 compared to the budgeted amount. After taking into account 
the additional reliefs awarded, the remaining net business rates income 
forecast for the end of the year is improved compared to budget setting due 
to smaller than anticipated amount to be provided for future appeals against 
rateable values. This is calculated on a percentage basis of Business Rates 
income therefore the resulting provision required is smaller due to additional 
reliefs awarded during the year. As a result, the growth calculation is 
improved and a greater is levy payable.

Use of Reserves £54,420:

 Earmarked Reserves (£54,420 additional usage):
o Earmarked reserves are created to match available funding with future 

projects and activities.  Often it is not possible to anticipate when eligible 
spend will occur and so as the year progresses services will identify 
projects and schemes where earmarked reserves can be applied. To date 
across the authority usage amounts to £54,420 more than nominally 
anticipated at the beginning of the year.

o Business Rates earmarked reserve of £3,360,640 created to match S31 
grant income received to the future needs of the Collection Fund.

 Covid 19 funding (£1,886,210)

In response to the financial strain placed on local authorities by the pandemic the 
Government is providing financial support in the form of grants towards exceptional 
costs and compensation for loss of income.  It is anticipated that this support will 
amount to £1,782,990.

Exceptional Costs Support: (£1,540,570)

 General Support (£1,256,990 funding):
The Council has received these monies to support its general activities 
as impacted by the pandemic. 

 Discretionary Grants Administration (£170,000 funding):
This additional grant relates to the costs incurred administering the 
allocation of discretionary grants to Covid impacted businesses in the 
District.

 Enforcement Grant (£38,818 funding):
This funding relates to the costs incurred enforcing lock down 
requirements in the District.

 Isolation Grants Administration (£24,762 funding):
This funding relates to the costs incurred administering the allocation of 
Isolation grants to Covid impacted individuals in the District.

 Track and Trace (£50,000 funding):
This funding from the County Council is towards the Council’s 
responsibilities for local track and trace.

Page 186



7

Compensation for loss of income: (£345,640)

 Loss of Income (£345,640 funding):
Councils have been promised the facility to claim for up to 75% of net 
losses against budget for income streams that satisfy set criteria. The 
authority, based on a prudent interpretation of the guidance available, 
anticipates £345,640 could be received.

3. Alliance Environmental Services

3.1. Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) delivers waste, fleet, street cleansing 
and grounds maintenance services to both High Peak Borough and Staffordshire 
Moorlands District Councils. The Councils are shareholders of the company along 
with Ansa, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire East Council. 

3.2. AES’s financial performance and impact on this Council’s budget is summarised 
below:

2020-21 General 
Fund HRA Total

£ £ £
AES Contract budget 4,155,710 200,800 4,356,510

Management fee 4,357,159 209,374 4,566,533
Allocation of AES efficiency (115,620) (4,920) (120,540)
Contract pressures 114,562 (2,432) 112,130
Covid-19 costs 158,102 617 158,719
Total management fee payable 4,514,203 202,639 4,716,842
Allocation of Joint Operation Profit (85,825) (3,652) (89,477)
Net total 4,428,378 198,987 4,627,365

Variance to budget 272,668 (1,813) 270,855

3.3. The AES business plan for all services delivered to the Council during 2020/21 
includes a budgeted management fee of £4,566,533. The Council’s share of the 
total AES revised efficiency target for 2020/21 of £120,540 is repayable to the 
Council and is allocated against the management fee costs.

3.4. Contract pressures totalling £112,130 are forecast at quarter which relate to the 
closure of the Melandra depot, pay award agreed at 2.75% (budgeted at 2.00%), 
increased, and loss of recycling contract income due to changes in the market. 
Additional costs of £158,719 are also anticipated as a result of the Covid-19 
outbreak; these relate to provision of cleaning products, PPE and additional agency 
costs.

3.5. Under accounting standards, AES’s financial performance is incorporated in to the 
Councils’ single entity statements as a ‘Joint Operation’ as opposed to separate 
group accounts being reported.  The profit is therefore apportioned between the 
two Councils and the respective services in line with the input of budgeted 
resources from each department. The Council’s share of the forecast profit at the 

Page 187



8

end of quarter 2 is £89,477 and is offset against the management fee costs.

4.       Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme

4.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s 
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2020/21.

4.2. The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (approved in February 2017) included 
the four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy targeting 
savings of £2.1 million.

4.3. The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy is premised on the need to both reduce 
expenditure and increase income. The need to grow income is now more of a 
priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing. The strategy has 
been developed with the underlying principles of protecting frontline service 
delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable the Council to ensure 
that its service spending is determined by the established priorities set out in 
Corporate Plan.

4.4. The 2020/21 budget was set in February 2020 with the assumption of £410,000 of 
savings in the year. This figure comprised £810,000 from the original strategy 
reduced by £305,000 in re-profiled savings and £95,000 income generation savings 
deferred into 2021/22.  A further £153,000 of savings were realised in quarter 4 of 
2019/20 (after the MTFP was presented), reducing the amount to be achieved in 
2020/21 to £257,000.  The major focus of the savings programme in 2020/21 being 
on growth and income generation.

4.5. At the end of Quarter Two, £86,000 savings have been taken against the 20/21 
efficiency target.

4.6. The current situation, regarding the on-going effect of the Covid-19 pandemic, 
places into doubt some of the savings taken out of the budget during 2019/20; 
particularly those relating to the Leisure Services contract. There is also a significant 
risk that the current year savings will not be achieved, particularly those relating to 
growing fees and charges and income generation. At this stage it is assumed that 
there will be a shortfall in savings of £171,000. This will continue to be monitored 
over the next few months as the situation develops.

4.7. The Authority carries a longstanding reserve earmarked to support the Efficiency 
Strategy which can be drawn on to offset one-off costs of delivering the efficiency 
programme, such as redundancy costs. The reserve currently stands at £200,000. 
It has not been necessary to draw on this reserve in previous years so it remains 
intact to underwrite performance against future savings targets in the Efficiency 
Programme.

Page 188



9

5.       Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

5.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s 
Housing Revenue Account and highlights the budgetary position in respect of the 
operation of the Council’s housing stock. 

5.2. The 2020/21 Housing Revenue Account budget was originally set to produce a 
deficit of £814,870 supported by reserves. The Chief Financial Officer has, in 
accordance with Financial Procedure Rules, authorised the roll forward of £120,000 
in unused budgets from 2019/20 to facilitate completion of capital component works 
(bathrooms; kitchens; electrical works and wet rooms) halted during the Covid 19 
pandemic lockdown period in March 20.This brought the 2020/21 budget to a deficit 
of £934,870.

5.3. Provisional outturn expenditure on the Housing Revenue Account at the second 
quarter stage is £15,253,020 with estimated income of £15,089,810. This 
represents a deficit for the year of £163,210 (i.e. £771,660 below budget – therefore 
less reserves are required to fund HRA activities in year).

Housing Revenue Account

2020-21 
Approved 

Budget
Q2 

Changes
2020-21 
Revised 
Budget

2020-21 
Expected 
Outturn

Variance

£ £ £ £ £
INCOME    
Dwellings Rents (14,370,910) - (14,370,910) (14,345,960) 24,950
Non - Dwelling Rents Etc (624,440) (42,220) (666,660) (743,850) (77,190)
Sub-total income (14,995,350) (42,220) (15,037,570) (15,089,810) (52,240)
 EXPENDITURE
Repairs & Maintenance 4,299,300 42,220 4,341,520 4,529,720 188,200
Supervision & Management 2,613,150 - 2,613,150 2,531,320 (81,830)
Rents, rates, taxes Etc. 113,030 - 113,030 117,030 4,000
Other Operating Expenditure 761,310 - 761,310 759,060 (2,250)
Depreciation & Impairment 2,099,030 - 2,099,030 2,099,030 -
Interest & Debt Management 2,746,340 - 2,746,340 2,747,960 1,620
Contribution to Capital 3,298,060 - 3,298,060 2,468,900 (829,160)
Sub-total expenditure 15,930,220 42,220 15,972,440 15,253,020 (719,420)
 -Surplus(-)/Deficit 934,870 - 934,870 163,210 (771,660)
Use of Reserves (934,870) - (934,870) (163,210) (771,660)
Balance - - - - -

5.4. The Council has a duty, in accordance with Part VI (Section 74) of the Local   
Government and Housing Act 1989, to maintain a “Housing Revenue Account” 
(HRA).  By “ring -fencing’ the Housing Revenue Account, the Council ensures that 
the management and maintenance of the Council’s housing stock is funded from 
the income generated by rents and other related sources. The Council is required 
under Part VI (Section 76) to prevent a debit balance each year on the HRA by 
setting the appropriate budget and monitoring progress against that budget 
throughout the financial year. The debit balance predicted by the Council at this 
second quarter stage will be funded by a transfer from reserves within the Housing 

Page 189



10

Revenue Account.

5.5. There is just one significant (>£50,000) overspend on the HRA:
 Repairs and Maintenance (£188,200) – There are a number of variances 

contributing to this overspend; the first most significant relates to the use of 
sub-contractors and agency staff (£148,000) and the second relates to the 
increased costs associated with the provision of materials (£49,000) 

5.6. There are three significant (>£50,000) underspends to be noted at this stage.

 Income - Non-Dwelling Rents (£77,190) – increased income from service 
charges has been responsible for the majority of this positive variance.

 Supervision and Management (£81,830) – there are numerous small 
underspends across a large number of budget areas contributing to this 
underspend however, a large proportion of this variance (£36,000) reflects 
stalled spend within communities and tenant participation budgets

 Contribution to Capital (£829,160) – This underspend relates to delays in 
commencement and completion of a number of Capital Schemes and is 
reflective of the changes to the capital programme detailed in Section 7 below.

6.      General Fund Capital Programme

6.1. This section of the report provides an update to Members on the Council’s General 
Fund Programme.

6.2. The table below shows a high level (service) summary of the General Fund Capital 
Programme position at 30th September 2020. Further detail on a scheme by scheme 
basis is contained in Annex A.

 
2020/21 

Approved 
Budget 

Q2 
Changes

2020/21 
Revised  
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2020/21

Expected 
Variance 
2020/21

 £ £ £ £ £
Housing     667,000             -        667,000     667,000              -   
Housing Standards     550,290             -        550,290     519,110     (31,180) 
Property Services  2,538,870             -     2,538,870   1,806,510    (732,360) 
ICT     135,210             -        135,210     188,360       53,150 
Fleet /CCTV 982,760             -   982,760 50,000    (932,760) 
Leisure Services       60,000             -         60,000 10,000 (50,000)
Regeneration       13,250        13,250       63,250       50,000 
Horticulture       99,040             -         99,040       90,000       (9,040) 
Total  5,046,420             -     5,046,420   3,394,230 (1,652,190) 
Funding:-      
External Contributions 550,290             -   550,290 519,110 (31,180)
Planning Obligations       43,000             -   43,000 43,000              -   
Capital Receipts(Land)     725,000             -   725,000       48,780    (676,220) 
Capital Receipts(one for one)     667,000             -   667,000 667,000              -   
Capital Receipts(vehicles)       32,500             -   32,500              -       (32,500) 
Capital Reserves     100,000             -   100,000 100,000              -   
Earmarked Reserves       64,450             -   64,450 64,450              -   

Page 190



11

Borrowing  2,864,180             -   2,864,180 1,951,890    (912,290) 
Total 5,046,420  5,046,420 3,394,230 (1,652,190) 

6.3. The 2020/21 General Fund Capital Budget was approved by Members in February 
as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan £4,650,750.  An increase to the 
programme of £385,670 was then approved by Executive in July as part of the 
Provisional Outturn report and reflected the carry forward of budget from 2019/20.  
A new project budget of £10,000 has also been added during Quarter 1.   The overall 
approved budget now stands at £5,046,420.

6.4. The changes made to the capital programme since approval in February are as 
follows:- 

 (£385,670 increase) The carry forward of 2019/20 capital budget variances as 
a result of projects which were either behind schedule or had progressed 
quicker than expected in the year. 

 (£10,000 increase) Individual Executive Decision 27th June 2017 approved the 
use of Section 106 planning obligation funds towards a contribution to support 
the planned project to develop Cemetery Road Football Club and Community 
Hub in Glossop. 

6.5 The General fund capital programme is currently forecast to record an overall net 
underspend position of £1,652,190 made up of the following variances;-

 (£1,702,190 underspend) - The Covid-19 out-break has contributed to delays 
in delivery of the Capital Programme. Slippage against a number of projects 
has been re-profiled in the latest Medium Term Financial Plan Review to 
reflect a more realistic timing of when capital expenditure will be incurred in 
the current circumstances. 

 (£50,000 overspend) - Buxton Crescent Hotel & Spa - Following the 
Government announcement made on Monday 23rd March 2020 that required 
people to stay at home, the Hotel was forced to put its opening programme 
on hold. Additional professional fees including project management costs are 
included in the anticipated overspend up until the revised opening date of 
October this year.

6.6 The significant change to the funding requirements are set out below;-
 Capital Receipts – £725,000 land sales originally forecast  are not now 

anticipated to be completed by the end of this financial year  
 Overall capital funding which will be applied to the 2020/21 Capital 

Programme is lower than forecast, reflecting the revised timing of capital 
spend, hence a reduced borrowing requirement of £912,290 against the 
revised budget.

Page 191



12

7.      Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme

7.1. This section of the report provides an update to Members on the Council’s HRA 
capital spending.

7.2. The table below shows a high level summary of the HRA Capital Programme at 30th 
September 2020. Further detail on a scheme by scheme basis is contained in 
Annex B.

Scheme
2020-21 

Approved 
Budget

Q2 Changes
2020-21 
Revised 
Budget

2020-21 
Expected 
Outturn

2020-21 
Variance

 £ £ £ £ £
Asset Management Works 4,759,590 - 4,759,590 4,187,610 (571,980)
Repairs Team Capital Works 295,000 - 295,000 190,320 (104,680)
Commissioning Fees 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 -
Vehicle Purchasing 242,500 - 242,500 90,000 (152,500)
Total 5,397,090 - 5,397,090 4,567,930 (829,160)
Funding:
Major Repairs Reserve 2,099,030 - 2,099,030 2,099,030 -
HRA Contribution 3,298,060 - 3,298,060 2,468,900 (829,160)

5,397,090 - 5,397,090 4,467,930 (829,160)
 

7.3. The 2020/21 HRA Capital budget of £5,277,090 was approved by members in 
February 2020 as part of the MTFP.

7.4. The Chief Financial Officer has, in accordance with Financial Procedure Rules, 
authorised the roll forward of £120,000 in unused budgets from 2019/20 to facilitate 
completion of capital component works (bathrooms; kitchens; electrical works and 
wet rooms) halted during the Covid 19 pandemic lockdown period in March 20. This 
brings the total HRA Capital Programme to £5,397,090.

7.5. £1,072,350 has been incurred on HRA Capital Schemes principally on kitchen, 
window and door replacements. This is much lower than expected and reflects the 
effect of lockdown due to the coronavirus.

  
7.6. Much of the HRA spend has been re-profiled to commence either in late autumn or 

delayed until 21/22 due to continued access issues to the majority of sites.  This 
has resulted in an anticipated underspend of £950,890 mainly in the following 
project areas:
 Boiler Replacement – Queens Court (£200,000) - Due to the inability to access 

all areas of this sheltered block during the early part of the year, this scheme 
has been put on hold until 21/22. 

 Radiator Replacements – Milton Court & Eccles Fold (£130,000) – The lack of 
access to individual flats during the early part of the year has resulted in this 

Page 192



13

scheme also being put on hold until 21/22.

 Lift Replacement Scheme – (£180,000) – Problems with access have resulted 
in necessary engineer and survey reports being delayed, therefore some 
spend (approximately £20,000) is expected to take place towards the end of 
the financial year however the majority of spend will take place in 21/22.

 Component Replacements – Kitchens; Bathrooms; Central Heating; Windows 
and Doors – (£348,000) – Following lockdown and the inability to access 
properties, spend in these areas has been slow.  Although there may be some 
capacity to increase delivery of these in the coming months, it is expected that 
there will be some slippage into 21/22. 

 Vehicle Replacement programme – (£152,500) – Procurement for the 
replacement of existing repairs vehicles is due to commence soon, thereby 
delaying anticipated fleet costs of £242,500 until early 21/22. Offsetting this, 
there is anticipated spend to provide four additional new vehicles for an 
electrician and estate caretaker posts.

7.7. Following the results of recent Health and Safety Inspections, it has become 
necessary to enhance existing fire safety alarm systems within a number of 
sheltered accommodation blocks.  This project is to run across three financial years 
with the anticipated cost of each alarm system expected to be in the region of 
£35,000.  Year 1 will be in 20/21 with the replacement of three systems at an 
expected cost of £105,000.  This project has been added to the current HRA Capital 
Programme and will utilise some of the under spend noted above.

7.8. Capital funding expected to be applied during 2020/21 is lower than forecast due to 
the variances noted above.

8.      Treasury Management

8.1. This section of the report sets out the key Treasury Management statistics in 
relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a high 
level Treasury Management summary.  The Audit and Regulatory Committee 
receives detailed operational updates on Treasury Management.

Investments

8.2. Cash Investments held on the 30th September 2020 totalled £30.7million. The 
average level of funds available for investment up to the end of the quarter totalled 
£30.95million and £60,130 interest was earned.

8.3. The Council has budgeted to receive £160,000 in investment income in 2020/21. A 
shortfall of £72,780 is anticipated against this budget due to falling interest rates 
following the reduction of the Bank of England base rate to 0.10% in March 2020.

8.4. At the end of July the Council received an unexpected 16th dividend payment from 
the former Icelandic investment with Heritable Bank of £10,518.59. This will be 

Page 193



14

treated as windfall income in the year and offsets some of the investment income 
shortfall against the budget.

Borrowing

8.5. Outstanding borrowing at 30th September 2020 totalled £66.8 million. The Council’s 
general fund and HRA budgeted to incur £1,837,940 and £1,746,340 respectively 
in interest charges and other financing costs in 2020/21. This was based on existing 
external debt and new external debt to be taken during quarter 4 to fund the 
borrowing requirements arising from general fund capital programmes.

8.6. No ‘new’ borrowing or refinancing activity is now forecast during the year. In addition 
the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) charge for the year is smaller than 
anticipated relating to the smaller borrowing requirement on the 2019-20 capital 
programme. Therefore an underspend of £88,580 is forecast on overall borrowing 
costs.

9.       Revenue Collection

9.1. The collection rate outturn for Quarter 2 2020/21 was as follows:
 Council Tax – 55.72% of Council Tax was collected by 30th September 2020, 

compared to 56.79% for the same period last year.
o The effects of Covid-19 on collection rates are being monitored. The variance 

in the collection of Council Tax appears to be largely due to the delay in the 
commencement of recovery action and/ or inability to pay as opposed to 
deferred payment plans;

 Business Rates – 52.36% of Business Rates was collected by 30th September 
2020, compared with 59.11% for the same period last year.
o An analysis of the 15 NNDR accounts with the highest Rateable Values 

indicates that deferred payment plans account for majority of the variance in 
collection rates and this will unwind over the year assuming businesses can 
maintain their deferred plans when they commence. 

 Sundry Debts - The value of sundry debts over 60 days old at the end of Quarter 
2 was £238,850 which compares with £165,340 at 30th September 2019.  The 
level of arrears has been impacted by a delay in recovery action following onset 
of the pandemic.

Page 194



15

Annex A    

                   General Fund Capital Programme Update 30th September 2020

Scheme
2020/21 

Approved 
Budget 

Q2 
Changes

2020/21 
Revised  
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2020/21

Expected 
Variance 
2020/21

 £ £ £ £ £
Housing & Housing Standards      
Affordable Housing Project 667,000             -   667,000 667,000              -   
Disabled Facilities Grants 489,110             -   489,110 489,110              -   
Landlord Accreditation 61,180             -   61,180 30,000      (31,180) 
 1,217,290             -   1,217,290 1,186,110      (31,180) 
Property Services      
Asset Management Programme 2,538,870             -   2,538,870 1,806,510    (732,360) 
  2,538,870             -    2,538,870  1,806,510    (732,360) 
ICT 135,210             -   135,210 188,360        53,150 
     135,210             -       135,210     188,360        53,150 
Fleet Management      
Vehicle/Plant  Acquisitions     932,760             -   932,760             -      (932,760) 
CCTV       50,000             -   50,000 50,000              -   
     982,760             -       982,760       50,000    (932,760) 
Leisure Services      
Outdoor Sports Facilities Fund       50,000             -         50,000             -        (50,000) 
Football Development       10,000             -         10,000       10,000              -   
      
       60,000             -         60,000       10,000      (50,000) 
Regeneration      
Buxton Crescent & Spa       13,250             -   13,250 63,250        50,000 
       13,250             -         13,250       63,250        50,000 
Horticulture      
Play Facilities 99,040             -   99,040       90,000       (9,040) 
       99,040             -         99,040       90,000       (9,040) 
      
Total General Fund  5,046,420             -    5,046,420  3,394,230 (1,652,190) 

Page 195



16

Annex B

Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme Update 30th September 2020

Scheme

Approved 
Budget 
2020/21

Q2 
Changes

2020/21 
Revised 
Budget

2020/21 
Expected 
Outturn 

Over / 
(Under) 
Spend

ASSET MANAGEMENT WORKS: £ £ £ £
Roofing & External Works 460,000 - 460,000 525,000 65,000
Gamesley Cladding Works 200,000 - 200,000 125,000 (75,000)
Bathroom Programme 420,000 - 420,000 420,000 -
Kitchen Programme 974,170 - 974,170 903,520 (70,650)
Electrical Works 429,430 - 429,430 429,430 -
Central Heating Works 224,630 - 224,630 47,300 (177,330)
Queens Court Boiler Replacement 200,000 - 200,000 - (200,000)
Windows and Doors Programme 1,193,360 - 1,193,360 1,093,360 (100,000)
Aids & Adaptations 345,000 - 345,000 345,000 -
Structural Works (Various) 93,000 - 93,000 145,000 52,000
Lift Replacements 200,000 - 200,000 20,000 (180,000)
Queens Court Lightning Protection 20,000 - 20,000 29,000 9,000
Sheltered Fire Alarm Upgrades - - - 105,000 105,000
 4,759,590 - 4,759,590 4,187,610 (571,980)
REPAIRS TEAM CAPITAL WORKS
Void Rewires 70,000 - 70,000 48,900 (21,100)
Void Kitchens  155,000 - 155,000 82,260 (72,740)
Void Bathrooms  70,000 - 70,000 59,160 (10,840)
 295,000 - 295,000 190,320 (104,680)
STAFFING & PROFESSIONAL FEES
Staffing Recharges/ Commissioning Costs 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 -
 100,000 - 100,000 100,000 -
VEHICLE PURCHASING
Vehicle Purchases 242,500 - 242,500 90,000 (152,500)
 242,500 - 242,500 90,000 (152,500)
 
TOTAL SPEND 5,397,090 - 5,397,090 4,567,930 (829,160)

Page 196



APPENDIX B

2020/21

Second Quarter
 Procurement 

Review

Page 197



1. Introduction

1.1 A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from Procurement activity which was 
approved by Full Council in February 2017. 

1.2 The current Procurement Strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives 
linked closely with the Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives.  
The key actions included, delivery of cashable savings, development of a 
professional Procurement unit, updated Procurement Rules to support 
transparency and the implementation of electronic tendering processes and 
procurement systems.

1.3 The Procurement Strategy is now due for updating and is scheduled for 
presentation during 2020 initially as an Information Digest report to obtain Member 
feedback prior to final approval.  The revised strategy will focus on the following 
key objectives to support the aims of the Council’s Corporate plan:

 Delivering Value for Money
 Commercial focus and effective Contract Management
 Maintaining Transparency and Ethical practices through effective leadership
 Promoting Responsible and Sustainable Procurement 
 Supporting the Local Economy and Business Growth
 Delivering Social Value (CSR) through our Contracts

2. Second Quarter Completed Procurements

2.1 The activity supported by the procurement function for the second quarter July 
2020 to September 2020 is summarised below:

Second Quarter  
High Value 

(> £181,000)

Low Value

 (< £181,000)
Total

HPBC Only 7 11 18
JOINT (HP/SM) 1 5 6
TOTAL 8 16 24

2.2 Annex A provides details of the 24 procurement exercises completed during 
Quarter 2.  

3. 2020/21 Procurement Forward Plan 

3.1 The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or high 
value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for either completion or starting in 
2020/21.

Page 198



2020/21

Activity

High Value 

(> £181,000k)

 Low Value

 (< £181,000k)
Total

HPBC 8 29 37
JOINT (HP/SM) 5 19 24
TOTAL 13 48 61

In addition to the above, there are 128 listed entries brought forward from previous 
years (for review and completion for both HPBC and SMDC combined). 

3.2 Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is scheduled for 
delivery in 2020/21 includes:-

 IT Managed Service Support Contract 
 Glossop Halls project support appointments of consultants and main 

contractors
 Supporting delivery of the Fleet Replacement Strategy
 Facilities Management & Building Condition Surveys 
 Fairfield Roundabout main Contractor procurement
 Glossop Market Halls projects and Phase 2 Municipal Buildings Roofing and 

internal works – Main contractor procurement
 Accelerated Housing Delivery programme support 
 Construction Materials Supplies – Direct Services
 HRA minor works contracts – Electrical / Roofing / Bathrooms / Heating capital 

programmes

4. Procurement Performance

4.1 This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement activity 
and the payment of suppliers.

4.2 Performance for the second quarter is highlighted below:-

Performance Indicator Target Performance at 30th 
September 2020

% of Alliance Procurement 
Activity on Forward Plan 65% 76%

Annual contract spend as % 
of gross expenditure budget

85% 93%

% Of invoices paid within 30 
days 96% 94%

Performance Indicators – targets off track

4.3 Invoice payments made within 30 days for the second quarter did not achieve target, 
as a result of delayed goods receipting in key service areas which delayed the 
invoices being processed and matched for payment.  We continue to work with 
services to ensure that they have appropriate training and resources available to 
undertake this duty.

Page 199



4.4 For 2020/2021 additional new performance indicators have been introduced; these 
are currently being measured to establish targets to implement for 2021/2022.

 % of EOI (expressions of interest) that come from businesses within the local 
area (over £5,000)

 % of Contracts awarded to local suppliers following submission of EOI
        (over £5,000)
 Supplier (Creditor) spend within the local area as a % of total spend

Page 200



ANNEX A
Second Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – HPBC

Contract Title Brief contract description Recurring 
or One Off 

Service Area Procedure Award Detail Term / 
Duration

 Total 
Contract 
Value  £    

HRA – Windows 
and Doors 
Supply and 
installations
Framework 
Contract

Replacement capital and ad 
hoc repairs programmes for 
Council Housing : Windows 
and Doors 

Recurring Assets / Direct 
Services 
Repairs

Open Tender LOT 1: The 
Casey Group 

LOT 2 : Elite 
Windows & 
Doors 
             
Glossop Glass 
& Glazing 

LOT 3: 
Northern 
Glass Works

2 (1+1) 
yrs

£4.9M 

HRA – 
Bathroom 
Renewals 

Capital programme Council 
Housing - Bathroom 
upgrades

Recurring Assets Framework – 
Further 
Competition

Sovini Group 
Ltd

1 + 1 
yrs

936,000

HRA – Roofline 
and Roof Works 

Capital programme Council 
Housing – Roof 
replacements and 
associated works 

Recurring Assets Open Tender West 
Houghton 
Roofing and 
Property 
Services Ltd 
(WRPS Ltd)

1 + 1 
yrs

720,000

PIR Electrical 
testing and 
associated 
works – Council 
Housing Stock

Period testing and 
Compliance Inspection 
services.  Electrical 
installations and upgrades

Recurring Assets Framework
(Direct Award)

Electrical 
Compliance 
and Safety 
(ECS) Ltd

1 + 1 
yrs

700,000

Glossop Market 
Hall / Phase two 
Municipal 
Buildings Roofs 
and internal 
works (Market 
Hall)

Essential roof repair works to 
Market Hall Roof and second 
phase Municipal Buildings 
Roof repairs 

One Off Assets Open Tender Messenger 
Construction 
Ltd

6 
months 

(est)

629,343

HRA Aids and 
Adaptations Wet 
rooms and 
Bathrooms

HRA Capital – Aids and 
adaptation of bathrooms and 
full Wet room conversions 
(supply and installations)

Recurring Assets Framework – 
Further 
Competition

Sovini Group 
Ltd

1+ 1 
yrs

590,000

Gamesley 
Estate External 
Cladding and 
Soffitts Property 
upgrades 

HRA Capital programme – 
upgrades to external 
cladding and soffits to 
Council properties

One Off Assets Open Tender Whittle 
Programmed 
Maintenance 
(T/A 
Hankinson 
Whittle)

2 yrs 200,000

Gas 
Maintenance 
services 
Auditing HRA 

Inspection and auditing 
service Re:  Gas 
maintenance services 
provided by Liberty Gas 

Recurring Assets Framework ICON 2 + 2 
yrs

40,000

Page 201



Purchase of new 
Mower – 
Grounds 
Maintenance

Outright purchase of 
replacement mower for 
Grounds maintenance 
services 

One Off AES – 
Grounds

Framework 
Direct Award

Sharrocks Ltd n/a 
Supply 

34,997

Wooden Cabins 
for Glossop 
external market 
and Arcade 

Purchase of wooden cabins 
for relation of tenants of the 
Glossop Indoor market whilst 
essential works are 
completed

One Off Regeneration Single Source Churnet Valley 
Garden 
Furniture

n/a 
Supply

20,455

Development 
Plan update 
D2N2 Funding 
Glossop Halls

Consultancy support One Off Communities / 
Regeneration

Framework 
Direct Award 
Call off

Focus 
Consultants

6 – 12 
months

16,981

Greenbank Walk 
Way Housing 
Estate Minor 
Repairs

Minor repairs to walkway at 
Greenbank 

One off Assets Open - 
Request for 
Quotations 
(RFQ)

L C 
Construction 
ltd

4 wks 
(est)

12,125

Fairfield View 
Fire Alarm 
System Upgrade

Upgrade of fire alarm system 
at Fairfield view 

One Off Assets Single Source Fire City Fire 
and Security 
Ltd

4 wks 
(est)

10,769

Accelerated 
Housing 
Delivery PM 
support

Project Management support 
Site Surveys

One off Regeneration Single Source Curtins 
Consultancy 
Ltd

n/a 7,500

Ecological 
Survey – 
Glossop Market 
Hall 
refurbishment

Bat Survey for pre start of 
works at Glossop Market 
Hall

One Off Assets Single Source Apex Ecology 
Ltd

n/a 2,984

The following items were removed or deferred from the Procurement work plan for 20/21

Minor works at Manor park and Howard park Glossop
Operational Services 

Removed from workplan

Manor Park Pavilion Repairs
Assets 

Removed from workplan completed 
under existing contract

Cleaning Contract – Sheltered housing communal areas Removed from workplan – delivered 
in house

Page 202



Second Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – JOINT (HPBC & SMDC)

Contract Title Brief contract description Recurring 
or One Off 

Service Area Procedure Award Detail Term / 
Duration

 Total 
Contract 
Value £    

Arboricultural 
Works 
Framework

Provision of Tree works 
services across HPBC and 
SMDC – framework of 
multiple contractors

Recurring Planning & 
Development 
Control

Open 
Tender 
(OJEU)

Acorn 
Arboricultural 
Services
Ascent Tree 
Solutions
Bankswood 
Treecare Ltd
Hamps Valley 
Ltd
Idverde ltd
N&J Tree 
Services Ltd
P Storer Tree 
services
P M Training Ltd

2 + 2 
yrs

360,000

Revenues and 
Benefits System 
Civica Open 
Portal upgrade

System upgrade programme 
and additional functionality

One Off Revenues & 
Benefits

CCN 
(Existing 
Contract)

Civica n/a 189,900

Organisational 
Development 
Leadership
Consultancy

Consultancy Appointment One Off Transformation / 
HR 

Single 
Source – 
Direct 
Award 

Camburg 3 
months

33,000

Network Pan 
Testing – IT 
security

Security testing IT systems Recurring Transformation 
ICT

Open 
request for 
Quotations

MTI Technology 
Ltd

1 + 2 
yrs

15,000

Air Quality 
Analysis

Analysis and reporting on 
diffusion tube data from air 
quality monitoring sites

Recurring Env Health Single 
Source – 
Direct 
Award

Bureau Vertas 1 yr 2,500

The following items were removed or deferred from the Procurement work plan for 20/21

Seasonal Bedding Plants and Floral Displays 
Supply

Recurring Grounds 
Maintenance

n/a Alliance Environmental Services (AES) 
Contract novation

Page 203



This page is intentionally left blank



High Peak Performance and Customer Feedback Report: 2020/ 2021 (Q2)

P
age 205



77%

23%

On Track Off Track
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%               

46%
35%

19%

Better Weaker No Change
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%         

High Peak Q2 Summary 

The following report provides Councillors with an overview of performance at High Peak for the period April to September 2020 in relation to 
the Council’s corporate plan priorities and the associated performance targets and projects. The report also provides an overview of the 
results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of how we handle and learn from complaints, and the level of comments and 
compliments.      

Performance Overview 

There are 152 ‘monthly’, ‘quarterly’ and ‘annual only’ reported performance measures at High Peak (31 more than last year). The chart below 
shows the results for the first half of 2020/21 against the monthly and quarterly measures only, which make up approximately a third of the 
performance framework. The Q2 results reflect the revised performance framework that was agreed in response to the assessed impact of the 
pandemic on this year’s operational performance targets.  At 77% ‘on track’ the results are 20% higher than this point last year, and the trend 
shows that 65% of measures are performing in line with or better than last year. The actions being taken to address the ‘off track’ measures 
are detailed at the end of this report.

The report also provides an update on the progress of key projects that contribute to the priority actions outlined in the Corporate Plan. The 
table below right explains the colour coding used to describe the status of these actions / projects. 

Customer Feedback Overview 

The number of complaints closed during Quarter Two (31) was much lower than last year (74). There have been no repeat complaints and the 
council is on track for responding to complaints in 10 days. This report includes further details of the lessons learned from complaints and any 
repeat issues, where relevant.     

Off Track

In danger of going off Track

On Track

Not yet started / decision 
awaited

Complete / Closed

P
age 206



On Track Off Track
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

HP Aim 1: Sept Results 2020/21

Better Weaker No Change
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

HP Aim1 : Trends Sept 
2020/21

    Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work 

Overall performance is strong against aim one with only three ‘off track’ measures. Despite the reduction in the target for initial homelessness 
cases opened at the prevention stage, this remains ‘off track’ although settled accommodation outcomes are showing some improvement. The 
council is also ‘off track’ for right to buy applications processed within statutory timescales, with two delayed transactions due to wait times 
for property valuations. Environmental health inspections are now back on track having recommenced in July.        

Celebrating Success: 

At the end of Q2 the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets:

 external sports funding secured
 carelink response times
 processing benefit new claims and change of circs
 settled accommodation outcomes from homelessness prevention duty
  repairs performance 

P
age 207



2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Actions Status Commentary – September 
Complete the review of the CCTV system 
and implement the agreed 
recommendations

The upgrade of the control room has started. A progress meeting was arranged with the 
contractor at the end of September. Should start replacing the cameras this month.

Develop and implement an ongoing 
leisure facilities improvement plan 
focused on improving the health and 
well- being of residents  

Stage 2 project documentation supplied. Consultancy spec is out to tender, deadline is 
2.10.20. Evaluation and meetings scheduled to occur in October.

Implement the accelerated housing 
delivery programme

Consultants have been appointed to manage the procurement of phase 2 site surveys. 
Individual project updates within the programme:
3.1 Fairfield Roundabout: The advanced design works have provided a revised estimate for 
management and construction costs and reports will be provided for Executive and Economy 
& Growth in October. The report advises on updated costs and seeks approval to accept the 
Homes England grant advance to support the detailed roundabout design and golf course 
mitigation works. Homes England made proposals for a deed of variation to the Grant 
Funding Agreement- Freeths asked for a view on residual risks. The Hogshaw’s disposal report 
is going to Executive, Barratt’s have asked for a redesign of the scheme in line with members 
wishes: they have submitted new plans that remove some of the issues that have arisen, 
details are still being defined. 
3.2 Granby Road- CBRE sales brochure awaiting sign off, to be followed by 6-8 weeks of active 
marketing. Final site survey report will be available before the bid deadline. Phase 1 GI 
identified depressions/dolines, Phase 2 geo-physical works undertaken and will focus on the 
anomalies targeting key areas. Final GI report expected in November.

Develop a Private Sector Housing 
Strategy to improve conditions for 
private renters 

The strategy is being produced and will incorporate links with the Climate Change agenda

Review the Council’s community support 
arrangements in order to maintain 
strong partnerships with community 
groups 

1.1 review of community support arrangements- No update: will start looking at a grant 
review to support in 2021/2022.
1.2 Review community sports grants- To be moved to project 17 (review the Sport & Physical 
Activity Strategy).

P
age 208



Review the Community Safety Strategy 
to ensure that the Council is supportive 
in fighting crime and anti- social 
behaviour 

Review of CSS at both Councils to be completed by April 2021 along with proposals for the 
future. Initial discussions have taken place with partners at High Peak and a follow-up 
meeting is being arranged. A discussion is underway to split High Peak from Derbyshire Dales, 
a report will be produced.

Review the Sport and Physical Activity 
Strategy in order to integrate 
communities and sports clubs into the 
delivery of its objectives

Next steps: 
• Undertake scoping work including review of current data/statistics, review of Sport 
England, Active Derbyshire and SASSOT’s strategy position, engage stakeholders/partners
• Formulate draft strategy for circulation/comments
• Member review/approvals
Individual project updates within the action:
Active Communities Plan - This plan was ready to be launched in March 2020 but put on hold 
due to the closure of leisure centres. Parkwood's outreach staff not due to be brought back 
until the end of October so at present it is unclear when this will recommence and whether 
the focus of the plan is still appropriate/realistic.

Implement the Homelessness Strategy 
effectively to ensure that voluntary 
groups and social enterprises that work 
to tackle the issue are supported 
effectively 

The Homelessness Strategy Update is to be released as an 'Information Digest' report - ideally 
in September, we need to focus on current levels of funding / annual committed funding / 
how we are using this to meet Housing Strategy objectives.  We also now need reference to 
Covid impact / Next Steps Accommodation Programme.

Review the delivery of services to older 
persons to ensure that they are effective 

Head of Service writing a report about Carelink – this will need input from Finance. We also 
need to look at the wider provision of services to older people, the provision of designated 
accommodation and the equality element.

Continuing Influencing actions
Maintaining the provision of accessible 
health and social care 

High Peak:
Nothing to report in Q2 2020 in terms of health scrutiny.

New Influencing Actions – The following actions are new to the 2019-2023 Corporate Plans. The project delivery 
mechanism for each is being set up through the Transformation Board and updates will begin as each project launches. 
 Dealing with ASB 

P
age 209



Managing our strategic risks

The Council has identified, assessed, and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim One:

 Meeting the increased and changing demands on council services caused by demographic changes in the local population (including an 
aging population)

 The ability to effectively engage with our communities
 Safeguarding Children and Vulnerable Adults (meeting the legal duty)
 Influencing strategic relationships at county and regional level in support of local area objectives

P
age 210



On Track Off Track
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

HP Aim 2: Sept Results 2020/21

Better Weaker No Change
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

HP Aim 2: Trends Sept 2020/21

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money

The council remains ‘off track’ for sundry debt collection rates despite a reduction in the target. There has been a significant increase in audit 
recommendations implementation, but FOI response times remain down. High Peak’s performance in re-letting voids remains above its 
increased target of 30 days because of continuing Covid restrictions. The amended targets for council tax and business rates collection have 
brought the Q2 results back on track although weaker than last year.  

Celebrating Success:    

At the end of Q2, the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets:

 rent loss
 sickness absence
 IT systems and network availability
 repeat complaints, customer interactions and portal accounts
 social media followers
 procurement activity on the forward plan 

P
age 211



2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Actions Status Commentary – September
Provide advice and support for 
residents affected by the rollout of 
Universal Credit  

Firstly, we need to explore the Civica 'automation' for UC changes - this may reduce 
workload associated with current LCTR scheme.
Look into the LCT support scheme regarding banding arrangements etc.

Develop and implement a plan to 
identify new and innovative ways of 
generating income

Individual project updates within the action:
3.1 Advertising/Sponsorship- need to look at the work already done and review 
timescales. We are unlikely to be able to focus on this until later in the year.  Priority focus 
being to review current income levels / prospects for the MTFP period. On hold.
3.2 Fees & Charges- Work on 2021/22 fees and charges to commence Oct in preparation 
for formal presentation in Feb.
3.3 Empty properties- The Empty Property review commenced July 2020; we will review 
the actions during 2020/21. The team have been issuing letters to empty properties. 
3.4 Building Control- we are awaiting information back from the Derbyshire consortium 
(latest financials etc); a meeting will be arranged with finance to progress this.
3.5 Trade Waste - need to determine an approach with AES. Finance to pick this up in 
October after initial review of the MTFP.

Continue to embed good 
information management practices 
through the ASSURED framework

The IGG met on September 23rd, 2020 where the revised Terms of Reference for the 
Group were agreed. IAR challenge sessions were held with Assets and Democratic / 
Community Services and all IARs will now be stored centrally to facilitate shared access 
and a single master copy. A large proportion of the IGG action plan is now complete and 
will be refocused on the remaining actions

Refresh and implement the Asset 
Management Plan, including a 
review of public estate, and ensure 
adequate facilities management 
arrangements are in place

Individual project updates within the plan:
14.1 Asset Management Plan- Further training being undertaken with CIPFA to deliver 
AMP. Report to be created for corporate select (Incl. Asset management working group. 
Once the database is complete, a policy / strategy will be created.
14.2 Capital program- New R/A/G status programme in place to aid quick reporting 
14.3 HRA Capital program- New R/A/G status programme in place to aid quick reporting.
14.4 Land Disposal strategy- Programme reviewed as part of Aug MTFP reintegration. 
Hoghsaw report to Exec 8th October.
14.5 Norse Contract Options FMA – Norse to work up business case. Meeting undertaken 
22/23 September to set scene. Visits to Essex to be arranged. Potential scope of the 
project to be agreed
14.5.1 Facilities Management Arrangements- Awaiting budget review from Vertas. DCC 
still undertaking works.

P
age 212



Priority Actions Status Commentary – September
14.5.2 Housing Repair service delivery model- to be reviewed with Norse options

Develop an Access to Services 
Strategy to ensure that Council 
services are accessible to all

Process for the Access to Services Strategy completed and released to Information Digest.

Implement the Council’s Efficiency 
and Rationalisation Programme 
(This will focus on several projects 
including procurement, income 
generation, trading, advertising, 
and sponsorship, etc.)

To be reviewed in light of COVID-19 as part of the review of the MTFP – Will be reviewed 
every year. Individual project updates within the action: 
2.1 Parish Grants- Part of the 2021/22 MTFP update - to be discussed with Executive prior 
to first draft of MTFP (Nov) - schedule for October Exec ALT
2.2 Refresh Efficiency & Rationalisation programme- Within the medium-term financial 
plan. Possible upfront funding required to implement the programme. The initial review is 
to be presented in September 2020, the formal review as part of MTFP for March 2021. An 
early review will be undertaken as part of the MTFP update - to be presented to 
September Committee cycle
2.3 Hybrid mail- This will be complete once fully rolled out, SD and Rents now being picked 
up. We are now entering into a 2-year contract with PSL following roll out of the pilot in 
2017/18. ‘high volume’ Service Areas are now live on Hybrid Mail; this equates to approx. 
80% of our outgoing mail. 273,019 items of mail were posted in 2019/20. 30% posted via 
Hybrid Mail, making savings of £10,548. We predict the use of Hybrid Mail for 2020/21 
increases to 60%. We continue to roll this out across services, Customer Services training 
taking place, completion Oct 2020.

Develop a new Organisational 
Development Strategy to ensure 
workforce development and use of 
apprenticeships 

Information Digest has been completed and circulated to members. The strategy will 
identify several projects for delivery. Camburg have met with AMT and we are aiming to 
get this finalised for the next committee meeting.

Develop a new procurement 
strategy with a focus on spending 
money locally

New strategy to go to Cabinet/Exec/ALT, information digest report to go to all members.  
Formal strategy to be presented in the autumn, which will result in an action plan over the 
next 3 to 4 yrs.
Draft Procurement Strategy Discussion Paper presented to Executive ALT and feedback 
provided.  Based on this, there are some further amendments / information to include 
prior to release.  Executive ALT would like further sight of the paper before release.                                                    
HPBC Climate Change working group would also like this on the next agenda for 
discussion.

Develop a new ICT strategy to 
enhance and support the delivery 
of services

A report is going to ALT/Exec. Also, an information digest report will be sent to members. 
Socitim review commenced. Individual project updates within the strategy: 
2.1 Housing management -delayed due to Covid19 and will be picked up as soon as 
possible. 

P
age 213



Priority Actions Status Commentary – September
Feedback required around IT and Norse.

2.2 Meetings AV equipment- On hold due to Covid.
2.3 ILAP/Assure - reached testing stage but the software is not ready, on hold until IlAP is 
fit for purpose
2.4 Civica Pay- Project board has met, migration to commence May 2021. 
2.5 Civica Open Revenues- Executive approval granted, project board set up.
2.6 Env Health/Licencing- no roadmap for flare implementation, collective needs to be 
completed first.
2.7 Asset Management-Concerto: PC pilot study is up and running, timeline for completion 
is the end of this year. Training planned for the full team, go live is planned for Jan 2021.
2.8 Collective- delayed due to Covid 19, resources to be allocated and will get back on 
track as soon as possible. The data cleanse exercise has progressed slowly but should be 
signed off in the coming weeks. A test data migration exercise is complete, and this will be 
tested in September. We are aiming for a go live date in High Peak of end of Oct/Nov. 
Work is underway with the developers re the intuitive web forms and our web provider 
have developed a solution for displaying the calendars online- this will be ready for go live 
date for HP residents. Vehicle installs at HP have taken place and the training approach for 
users in the office and drivers has been agreed. Further work required on the trade 
collections; this has been agreed. A new timeline has been created and we await a 
response from Bartec. Current go live date is 10th November. 
2.9 Committee Management- looking at production of the forward plan and the quality of 
reports. Training to be implemented.
2.10 ICT upgrade- M365 is ongoing, Teams has been made a priority and is nearing 
completion, 131 users are now enabled on a corporate device.  RDSW10- super users are 
testing the main systems, live staff migrations will commence 24/08 and will be handled 
by the NPS onsite team. IT requirements are being evaluated to enable a more agile 
approach between home/office working. The intention is to evaluate our IT requirement 
needs using the outcomes of the staff IT / homeworking survey and the deliverables from 
PLA1  Reinstating Services work & Positive Legacy workstreams, where new ways of 
working are being considered, (e.g. laptops/docking stations etc). When Northgate have a 
clear idea what route we want to take with hardware, they will cost that solution for us.

Refresh the council's 
Communication Strategy in order to 
ensure there is a more effective 

A report is going to ALT/Exec/Cabinet. Also, an information digest report will be sent to 
members. A meeting has been held with comms to start on the corporate narrative and 
select key individuals to take part

P
age 214



Priority Actions Status Commentary – September
dialogue and engagement with 
residents

Conduct a review of democratic 
processes and scrutiny 
arrangements to make the Council 
as open and transparent as 
possible.

This will be reviewed before the next municipal year, project delayed due to COVID 19. 
Recording of meetings can be provided for review.

Review the council's Diversity 
Policies including working with faith 
and cultural groups to celebrate the 
traditions and diversity of our 
community

To be reviewed and refreshed in the next 12 months. Considering a survey for staff to 
support this review including housing tenants, external agency to be appointed.

Implement the agreed Housing 
Revenue Account Business Plan

Refreshed plan required, business plan to be updated before February. Individual project 
updates within the action:
4.1 Environmental Improvement Program-Funding for Energy efficiency in social housing 
needs to be reviewed. Assets to assist
4.2 Tenant Engagement Arrangements- Tenant engagement plan required
4.3 Review of HRA Business Plan-HRA business plan refresh require by Feb 2021.  Current 
action plan has a few outstanding issues, meeting arranged for November.

Managing our strategic risks

The Council has identified, assessed, and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Two:

 Delivery of MTFP through the Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy
 Staff resources and retention
 Effective contract management
 Effective Information Governance arrangements (breach of data protection regulations)
 Maintenance of Council's portfolio of public buildings assets 
 Investment into council assets and long-term planning
 Financial and Legislative impacts from world events e.g. Brexit 
 Cyber risk and IT Security

P
age 215



On Track Off Track
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%
HP Aim 3: Sept Results 2020/21 

Better Weaker No Change
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

HP Aim 3: Trends Sept 2020/21

Aim 3: Support economic development and regeneration 

High Peak currently has a perfect record under Aim Three with all targets ‘on track’ as at the end of September, including 100% of major 
planning applications determined on time.         

  

Celebrating Success:    

At the end of Q2 the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets:

 Major, Minor, and other planning applications processed on time
 major and minor developments allowed on appeal

Managing our strategic risks

The Council has identified, assessed, and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Three:

P
age 216



 External funding for growth / regeneration schemes

2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Actions Status Commentary – September 
Support the development of 
Glossop Halls

A business case is to be developed in September.  Individual project updates within the action:
6.1 Market hall tenant’s relocation- tenant relocation is underway. Trades to be moved on 1st 
Oct and can start trading 8th.
6.2 Market hall roof- completion expected within 12 months
6.3 Plan for new operating model for market/town hall complex- a new operating model will 
be produced after the roof has been completed
6.4 Plan for new operating model for Victoria Hall- a new operating model will be produced 
after the roof has been completed
6.5 Trust arrangements- Town Hall- work is in progress
6.6 Trust arrangements- Victoria Hall - work is in progress

Implement the accelerated business 
growth and employment 
programme

Review of projects has been undertaken in house to see what needs to be prioritised and 
ensure we are ready to proceed. Individual projects within the programme:
5.1 Chapel Masterplan: Ongoing- no specific update.
5.2 Dinting Employment Site-Ongoing, no specific update. Additional budget support required 
if this is to be considered a priority

Establish a developer open space 
contributions plan.

This will form part of the Developer Contributions SPD which is intended to incorporate 
guidance on all forms of contributions to be sought via S106. The SPD will be commissioned 
once the ongoing consideration of the viability and merits of the Community Infrastructure 
Levy has concluded. A Viability Study for CIL is due for completion in Summer 2020 (a further 
draft report is due in June). The Council is also reviewing the wider implications of adopting a 
levy such as back-office staffing and administration requirements. The Development Services 
and Service Commissioning teams will need to collaborate on the open space aspects of the 
SPD which is intended to be commissioned to provide sufficient resource to take it forward.
Update -Head of Development Services to advise Corporate Select committee

Develop a Cultural Strategy to 
support and celebrate the rich 
history and culture of the Borough

Strategy to be produced by December, work should progress from now to do a COVID Health 
Check to identify implications and produce a plan. Discussions have taken place on how to 
process this. A survey should be sent out soon.

Review the Council’s Growth 
strategy to ensure that it is focused 

Individual project updates within the strategy:
High Peak:
6.1 Buxton future high street fund-Await outcome of bid Autumn 2020

P
age 217



on the effective regeneration of our 
towns and rural
 communities 

6.2 Buxton HAZ- DCC agreed conservation advice staff time over 3 1/2 years in lieu of budget 
contribution.  Scheme re-profiled in line with HE guidelines. Appointment of full time Project 
Officer complete, post runs to March 2024. The initial role of the project officer is to focus on 
the cultural programme. Proposals for a cultural pilot project awarded grant funding. Delivery 
and timescales to be agreed. 
6.3 Buxton VES - Revised group structure circulated to VES board members for comment.
6.4 Buxton Crescent-Arrangements in hand for signing and sealing the head lease at the start 
of October. Release of 66 under croft car park spaces to Hotel, with separately metered supply 
for electric gate and CCTV. Approval of signage and barriers required. Anti-social behaviour to 
be addressed by enclosing entire under croft with security fencing. Agreement over Hotel 
managing locking and unlocking of public gate to be included in lease.
6.5 Glossop & Gamesley OPE- Issues have arisen around the bid-loan ratio. we have received 
interest from the police in GMB. OPE meeting with Members, DCC, Police, Fire, Ambulance 
and CCG to consider progress and next steps to be rearranged.
6.6 OPE depot review-Regen involvement complete, to be handed to Service Commissioning.
6.7 Refreshed growth strategy-Currently on hold.  

Review the implementation of the 
Local Plan to ensure that the 
requirements for affordable housing 
and developer contributions are 
being met

4.1 Internal consultation complete.  The Council will need to carefully consider the implications 
of the White Paper and timescales for its implementation when drawing conclusions on 
whether to update the Local Plan

Influencing Actions               
Work with the private sector on 
regeneration schemes including The 
Crescent and Torr Vale Mill   

The Crescent: The regeneration team are continuing to engage with the project via progress meetings and 
Buxton Crescent Communications plan

Ensure the best use of public assets 
across the borough by working via 
the One Public Estate project

OPE meeting with Members, DCC, Police, Fire, Ambulance and CCG to consider progress and next steps to 
be rearranged

New Influencing Actions – The following actions are new to the 2019-2023 Corporate Plans. The project delivery 
mechanism for each is being set up through the Transformation Board and updates will begin as each project launches.
 Pressing for more regular and faster rail links, public transport links and essential road infrastructure

 Work with regional partners to extend the Greater Manchester rail offer

 Completion of the off- road route for the Trans Pennine Trail and access to the Monsal and Tissington trails

 Bringing additional funding into the Borough

 Enabling high- speed internet across the Borough

P
age 218



On Track Off Track
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

HP Aim 4: Sept Results 2020/21 

Better Weaker No Change
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

HP Aim 4 : Trends Sept 2020/21

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment

At High Peak there is just one ‘off track’ measure under at the end of Q2: the kg of residual waste. We measure this quarterly using estimates 
until the tonnages are confirmed but the amounts collected during lockdown were higher than the previous year. Fly tipping is now a 
contextual measure but the 2020/21 data reveals significant increases compared to last year, which is believed to be a national issue and is 
being addressed through a comms strategy in addition to ongoing enforcement activity.             

Celebrating Success:    

At the end of Q2, the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets:

 missed bins
 reduced paper consumption
 estimated recycling rates

P
age 219



   

 2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Actions Status Commentary – September 
Successfully deliver Phase 3 of the 
transfer of services to Alliance 
Environmental Services Ltd, to 
deliver waste, streets and ground 
maintenance services on behalf of 
the Council in order to achieve 
improved performance and value for 
money outcomes.

COMPLETED
Phase 3 (streets and ground maintenance) transfer completed 1st April 2020.
Awaiting return of IT equipment. Closure/lessons learnt report has been provided. 
Project completed.

Develop a climate change strategy & 
an action plan of response to a 
declared climate emergency

Plans to be produced by the end of the year. Ongoing projects will come out of this piece 
of work. Meeting arranged with subgroups in September (HP).

Develop a Parks Development Plan to 
support the widest community use of 
parks and support 
community/friends’ groups

Stage 1 documents received – Next steps: 
• Finalise draft strategy and management plans for agreed parks 
• Plan and undertake consultation with stakeholders/community/friends 
groups/AES
• Finalise ready to obtain Member approval
Individual project updates within the plan:
12.1 Parks development plan-Team meeting due on 14.10.20 to determine progress and 
to plan next steps inc.
12.2 Whitfield Play area- Closure report being drafted. Play area had further ROSPA 
inspection on 24.9.20. Awaiting confirmation from Exec members re. revised grand 
opening media coverage.
12.3 Play Strategy- Assessment of play area quality will be undertaken by the SC team 
using the OSS 2017 study to provide a baseline. This assessment will feed into the wider 
parks strategy and set clear aspirational targets for play improvements in the coming yrs.

Review the Council's waste and 
recycling arrangements to increase 
recycling and to respond to the 
emerging national strategy

On hold- Await consultation and communications from the Government. Individual 
projects within the action:
14.1/14.2 Covid has delayed central Gov't progress, expectations not expected to be 
known until 2021 14.2 TEEP has not started. 

P
age 220



Priority Actions Status Commentary – September 
Review the Environmental 
Enforcement Policy in order to take 
steps to further reduce dog fouling 
and littering 

Policies to be reviewed and updated in the next 12 months 

New Influencing Actions - The following actions are new to the 2019-2023 Corporate Plans. The project delivery 
mechanism for each is being set up through the Transformation Board and updates will begin as each project launches.
 Develop more cycle routes whilst working with the County Council and residents to ensure harmony amongst road users
 Encourage local organisations and businesses to reduce their carbon footprint

Managing our strategic risks

The Council has identified, assessed, and is mitigating the following strategic risks under Aim Four:

 Meeting the environmental regulatory framework (e.g. air quality and waste regs)

 Energy supply (inc fuel)
 Our ability to protect Buxton's natural thermal spring water

P
age 221



P
age 222



P
age 223



P
age 224



Areas for Improvement: September 2020

Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2020/21

Result 
September 

2020  

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Head of Housing % of initial homelessness 
applications opened at the 
prevention and relief duty 

stages

60% 
prevention 

47% 
prevention 
53% relief

We are seeing a higher number of presentations 
at relief stage due to relationships and sofa 
surfing arrangements breaking down, however 
settled accommodation rates have improved 
significantly.

% of relief duty discharges 
resulting in a settled 

accommodation outcome

67% 45% Slower turnover of stock has led to this result; 
however, the result still exceeds the national 
average.

a) Number of RTB 
transactions (applications) 
& b) % completed within 

statutory timescales (RTB2)

Aim 1: Fit for purpose 
housing stock that meets 
the needs of tenants & 

residents

Head of Legal & 
Elections

95% a)20 
b) 18/20 

90%

2 accepted over the 28-day timescale due to 
delays with valuations.

FOI requests: % responded 
to within statutory time 

frame (include numbers in 
commentary)

Aim 2: Ensure our services 
are readily available to all 

our residents in the 
appropriate channels and 
provided 'right first time'

Head of Legal & 
Elections

95% 74.28% 
205/276

Response timescales have been affected by the 
impact of Covid 19.

Average time taken to re-let 
Council homes

Aim 2: More effective use 
of Council assets to 

benefit our communities

Head of Housing  30 days 36.5 days Average time excluding hard to let (inc properties 
affected by Covid restrictions) – 15.9 days (Apr -
Sep). This month we had four voids that were 
over target due to Covid 19 restrictions.  This 
resulted in an additional 34 weeks in total.  All 
other voids this month were delayed by 3 days 
due to Covid 19, as all voids are now left locked up 
for 72 hours before entering.  

P
age 225



Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2020/21

Result 
September 

2020  

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Collection rates: Rent (rent 
collected as a % of rent due)  

Head of Housing 
Services

98% 94.11% The ban on possession proceedings from 26/3/20 
to 20/9/20 has meant that discussion and 
negotiation have been the only method of 
recovering debt.  We have been unable to take 
formal possession proceedings against non-payers 
resulting in the reduction in collection rates 
compared with the same time last year.  We will 
continue to monitor rent arrears, as although the 
possession stay has been lifted on 20/9/20, we 
can no longer take proceedings on the same basis 
that we did previously due to coronavirus.  We 
have amended our arrears recovery procedures to 
reflect this and now include the use of formal 
mediation services as a recovery tool, until such 
time as possession proceedings are a viable 
option again.

Collection rates: Sundry 
Debt (value of SD over 60 

days)

Aim 2: Ensure our future 
financial resilience can be 

financially sustainable 
whilst offering value for 

money

Head of Revenues 
and Benefits

Match 
2019/20

£238,848.36 There is over £100k outstanding due to business 
rates on hold and many trade waste accounts 
which may be cancelled if the businesses were not 
trading due to the Covid 19 lockdown.

P
age 226



Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2020/21

Result 
September 

2020  

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

% Invoices paid in line with 
terms of contract

    
Head of Finance 96% 83%

We are currently working to bring this back on 
track and specifically supporting Operational 
Services Housing Repairs, through the wider 
Finance team to process invoices which there has 
been  a noticeable increase over the last few 
weeks due to COVID recovery of business.  In 
addition to this during this period key resources in 
the Housing repairs team responsible for goods 
receipting of orders was limited and therefore did 
affect the number of invoices that were paid over 
30 days.  Measures have been put in place 
through additional E-series training for support 
officers in the Service from Procurement to 
mitigate any future gaps in resource availability.

% of Internal Audit 
recommendations 

implemented within 
timescale (snapshot at end 

of each quarter)

Head of Internal 
Audit

92% 80.61%
The usual audit recommendation follow-up 
process was suspended during April-June but has 
been slowly reintroduced from July with 
performance improving.

KG’s residual waste per 
household

Aim 4: Effective recycling 
and waste management

Head of Service 
Commissioning

435kg 221.45kg

  (estimate)

Q2 results are estimated as disposal tonnage and 
green waste data is not yet available from DCC, 
similarly recycling tonnage data for September is 
awaited from our contractors. Tonnages collected 
during lockdown in quarter 1 were 368 tonnes 
higher than during the same months last year, this 
will have on our results in 2020-21.

 

 For a full list of all performance measures and the Q2 results please visit the Performance Management page on the Intranet or click on this link

P
age 227

https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/system/files/documents/attachments/high_peak_q2_2020-21.pdf


T
his page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

The Executive

3 December 2020

TITLE: Medium Term Financial Plan Update 2021/22 
– 2024/25

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: Keith Pointon – Interim Head of Finance

WARDS INVOLVED: All

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 This report presents the Council’s updated Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 
for the period 2021/22 – 2024/25. The MTFP presents the Council’s priorities in 
the context of the likely resources available, providing a financial context to 
future decision-making.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Executive approves the updated Medium Term Financial Plan.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 The medium term financial planning process provides the Council with the 
opportunity to plan its delivery of public services in accordance with local 
priorities. 

3.2 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is updated in accordance with the 
budget cycle.  This version of the MTFP presents the Council’s finances over a 
four-year period, namely 2021/22 to 2024/25.  It sets the context for the 
preparation of the 2021/22 budget which will be presented for approval by the 
Council in February 2021.  

3.3      The current Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which set out the Council’s 
finances over a four-year period, namely 2020/21 to 2023/24 was formally 
approved in February 2020.  

3.4 This resulted in a small surplus position of £127,080 on the General Fund by 
the end of 2023/24, with an overall contribution of £17,910 into reserves over 
the 4 year life of the plan.  There was also a forecast surplus position of 

Page 229

Agenda Item 9



£2,061,950 by the end of 2023/24 for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) with 
an overall contribution into reserves of £0.93million. 

3.5 However, since the MTFP was approved, the Coronavirus pandemic has had, 
and is likely to continue having an adverse impact on the Council’s financial 
position.  The financial impact is arising from additional expenditure in dealing 
with the crisis both externally and organisationally, lost income and savings 
targets that may not be met within the same timeframe due to resources being 
diverted elsewhere.

3.6 The 2020/21 projected General Fund outturn (as per the Quarter 2 financial 
report) is currently forecasting a £0.450 million deficit.  At the end of 2019/20, 
the Council established a Covid-19 earmarked reserve specifically to support 
with the financial impact of Covid-19 totalling £200,000 - utilising part of the 
2019/20 underspend generated.  Therefore, this earmarked reserve can be 
drawn to partially cover the projected 2020/21 deficit

3.7 The HRA is forecasting a £0.77million underspend against the 2020/21 budget 
as a result of delays in the delivery of the capital programme. 

3.8 The current four year MTFP was updated in September to reflect Covid-19 
related pressures and updated economic forecasts in order to begin to 
understand the medium term financial impact.  This update moves the MTFP 
on, adding an additional year, now focusing on the 4 year period 2021/22 – 
2024/25.

3.9 It is extremely difficult to forecast how long the recovery period will be and also 
what impact the economic recession will have.  The report details the 
assumptions that have been made at this point (as well as the risks), which will 
be continually under review as new information becomes available and the 
2020/21 position develops.   

3.10 At this stage, the updated MTFP highlights a General Fund deficit over the 4 
year period of £1.74million.  Utilising the Covid-19 recovery earmarked reserve 
and re-designating the pensions earmarked reserve, would result in a required 
drawdown from contingency reserves of £1,321,630, as shown below:

£
MTFP Four Year Use of Reserves requirement 1,741,630
Covid-19 Recovery earmarked Reserve (200,000)
Pensions Re-designated Reserve (220,000)
Balance to be funded 1,321,630
General Fund Contingency (1,321,630)
Balance to be funded 0
Estimated General Fund Contingency Balance 31st March 2021* 2,504,220
Drawdown over 2021/22 – 2024/25 (1,321,630)
Forecast General Fund Contingency Balance by 31st March 2025 1,182,590
Forecast General Fund Contingency Balance by 31st March 2024 as at Feb 2020 2,855,900

*includes estimated £336,780 use of reserves in 2020/21
3.11 Consequently, at the end of year 4 of the plan (2024/25) there would be an 

estimated balance of £1.183million in General Fund Contingency reserves – 

Page 230



£0.117 million under the required £1.3 million minimum required balance as set 
out by the Chief Finance Officer in the MTFP approved in February 2020.

3.12 The updated MTFP illustrates a requirement to draw from reserves in years 1-3 
of the plan. In year 4 there is an anticipated contribution into reserves of 
£84.660. Over the next few months the Plan’s position will be refined to 
incorporate amongst other things, the spending review announcement, which is 
expected to give details of any further Government support which will hopefully 
improve the position.

3.13 If reserves are utilised as forecast to fund the deficit position, a plan would need 
to be put into place in to rebuild reserves over the longer term.

3.14 In terms of the HRA, the financial impact of COVID-19 is expected to be less 
severe – with an overall contribution into reserves of £1.185million over the 4 
years.  The anticipated change in the reserves position as at the end of year 4 
of the Plan is illustrated below:

HRA £

HRA Reserves Balance at 31st March 2021
Net Movement Over 2021/22 – 2024/25
Forecast HRA Reserves Balance by 31st March 2025

Forecast HRA Reserves Balance by 31st March 2024 as at Feb 2020

(16,329,706)
  (1,184,600)
(17,514,306)

(17,310,904)

3.15 The updated HRA MTFP illustrates a surplus position of £0.822million by year 
4 (2024/25).

3.16 The final version of the Budget 2021/22 and updated MTFP will be presented 
for formal approval in February 2021.  Between now and mid-January, Heads 
of Service will be working with Finance to:

 Undertake a review of the Asset Management Plan capital programme 
forecast profile of spend  

 Undertake review of ‘other’ capital programme projects forecast profile of 
spend

 Refine capital programme forecasts for the new ‘year 4’ – 2024/25
 Review current fees and charges in year performance and update forecast 

level of recovery for 2021/22.  Commence the 2021/22 fees and charges 
exercise. 

 Update forecasted impact on major contracts (AES / Leisure / Facilities 
management) in 2021/22

 Identify any further increased / reduced budget demands for 2021/22 
 Review of the Efficiency programme
 Identify any other significant financial impact on the MTFP

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

Page 231



4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the effective 
management of financial resources, which is the subject of this report.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are no options to consider at this stage.

6.  Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
The COVID-19 pandemic has impacted significantly on the working
arrangements for the Council’s employees.
The response to the pandemic has seen the following changes in working
practices:

 Where possible staff are working from home;
 Frontline staff are working safely with the appropriate PPE;
 Staff have been redeployed from time to time in order to support the

additional demand created by several new service functions, e.g.
small business and discretionary grant processing; providing support
for vulnerable people etc.

The Council has established a recovery plan that ensures the safety of
staff as we look to reinstate services – although currently now back in 
‘response’ phase as part of the second lockdown.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and 
Diversity policies.

An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been undertaken on the 
Corporate Plan, which feeds into budget plans.

6.4 Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report.

6.5 Legal
There have been and continue to be a significant number of regulatory
changes during the response and recovery from the pandemic.

16.6 Climate Change
The COVID-19 response has resulted in some positive benefits in respect of
carbon reduction, including:

 Reduced employee travel during lockdown;
 Reduced energy consumption in public buildings due to building

closures and reduced use; and
 Improved air quality due to general reductions in travel.

It is important that these areas are reviewed to identify potential new ways of
working as part of the recovery process that will have a positive legacy on

6.4

Page 232



the climate change challenge.

6.7 Consultation
The Council’s annual budget plans are the subject of an annual public 
consultation exercise. 

6.8  Risk A Risk Assessment
Financial risks have been identified within the report. The pandemic has 
resulted in a number of risks that need to be assessed
and managed and may have a financial impact, these include:

 Inability to deliver critical services due to loss of staff,
 Inability to maintain the financial stability of the Council,
 Failure to deliver health and safety responsibilities,
 Safeguarding issues arise through the enhanced level of community

support,
 Staff are at increased risk of the disease in certain services,
 Increased risk of fraud and cyber security,
 Lack of PPE for key workers,
 Increase in community safety issues which are difficult to respond to

due to capacity,
 The economy is deflated post-recovery leading to ongoing economic

problems in town centres and the broader economy,
 Increased demand on certain services e.g. Benefits and economic

support.

Risk assessments have been completed for all services and mitigation 
measures have been built into the Council’s recovery plans.  

CLAIRE HAZELDENE
Acting Executive Director (Finance & Customer Services)

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Various background working papers Keith Pointon
Interim Head of Finance
01538 395400 Ext. 4193

7. Introduction

Page 233



7.1 The medium term financial planning process establishes how available 
resources will be allocated to services in line with Council priorities which have 
been determined following consultation with residents, councillors and other 
stakeholders. The process facilitates the Council in planning the prudent 
management of its finances, in building resilience and in providing for the needs 
of residents over the long term.  

7.2 The medium term financial planning process establishes how available 
resources will be allocated to services in line with Council priorities which have 
been determined following consultation with residents, councillors and other 
stakeholders. The process facilitates the Council in planning the prudent 
management of its finances, in building resilience and in providing for the needs 
of residents over the long term.  

7.3 The Medium Term Financial Plan is driven by local priorities. The Council’s 
spending strategy is set out in the Corporate Plan formally adopted by members 
of the Council.

7.4 Following the elections in May 2019, there was a fundamental review of the 
Corporate Plan focussing on the period 2019-2023 (up to the end of the current 
political administration).  The Corporate Plan was agreed by Council on 15th 
October 2019 with 2020/21 representing the first full year of the new Corporate 
Plan.

7.5 The Corporate Plan establishes the Council’s vision, corporate objectives and 
key priorities for the medium term.  It in effect establishes the Council’s 
commitment in the delivery of service and community leadership to the residents 
of the High Peak. 

7.6 The Coronavirus pandemic has had and is likely to continue having an adverse 
impact on the Council’s financial position.  The financial impact is arising from 
additional expenditure in dealing with the crisis both externally and 
organisationally, lost income and savings targets that may not be met within the 
same timeframe due to resources being diverted elsewhere.

7.7 There is concern about the longer-term financial impact this will have on the 
delivery of corporate plan objectives.  Therefore, to attempt to understand and 
forecast this and to allow more time to effectively plan the longer term response, 
an early review of the MTFP was undertaken and this was presented to 
Members in September 2020. 

7.8 The September update focused on updating the MTFP as approved in February 
2020 - therefore no additional financial years were added and no additional 
budget demand items were included.  The review simply updated the current 
MTFP in light of the estimated financial impact of Covid-19.

7.9 This update moves the MTFP on, adding an additional year, now focusing on 
the 4 year period 2021/22 – 2024/25.

8. Current Approved Medium Term Financial Plan

Page 234



8.1 The Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) which set out the Council’s finances 
over a four-year period, namely 2020/21 to 2023/24 was formally approved in 
February 2020.  A balanced budget for 2020/21 was presented, providing for a 
net general fund budget of £10,902,470 and a net HRA budget of £15,000,350

8.2 A new financial year (2023/24) was added to the MTFP and the overall financial 
assumptions were updated for the four years. This resulted in a small surplus 
position of £127,080 on the General Fund by the end of 2023/24. An overall 
contribution of £17,910 into reserves was forecast during the 4 year life of the 
plan.

8.3 There was also a forecast surplus position of £2,061,950 by the end of 2023/24 
for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and a £0.93million contribution into 
reserves over the 4 years.  The financial forecasts for the 30-year business plan 
continued to show a significant surplus. 

8.4 The MTFP also included an updated General Fund Capital Programme of 
£19,401,020 and HRA Capital Programme of £20,295,620 over the period 
2019/20 – 2023/24.

8.5 The report did flag the risks around the outcomes of national funding reviews 
(i.e. fair funding; business rates retention; and new homes bonus) which may 
have a detrimental impact on the future financial position.   

8.6 The forecast general fund reserves position over the life of the approved MTFP 
is shown below:-

Contingency 
Reserves

2019/20 
(£)

2020/21 
(£)

2021/22 
(£)

2022/23 
(£)

2023/24 
(£)

Balance at Year End 2,837,990 2,976,280 2,798,700 2,728,820 2,855,900
Minimum Requirement 1.203,000 1,332,000 1,332,000 1,332,000 1,332,000
Headroom 1,634,990 1,644,280 1,466,700 1,396,820 1,523,900

8.7 HRA balances were forecast to total 16.3million at the end of 2019/20.

8.8 A summary of the approved four year revenue position for the General Fund 
and HRA is shown in ANNEX A.

9. Coronavirus Pandemic – 2020/21 (Current Year) Impact

9.1 As a priority, the financial impact that Covid-19 would potentially have on the 
current financial year (2020/21) was reviewed in June 2020.  This was updated 
as part of the Quarter 1 Financial Report in September and has now been 
updated again within the Quarter 2 Financial Report, which also takes account 
of the confirmed and estimated future Government funding.

Quarter 2 Financial Update

Page 235



9.2 The 2020/21 forecast has been updated as part of the Quarter 2 financial update 
(see separate report on this agenda).  

9.3 In summary, the Quarter 2 financial update forecasts a £451,070 General Fund 
deficit for 2020/21 after taking into account Covid-19 related funding.  The deficit 
is mainly due to the impact from losses in fees and charges income, additional 
costs in supporting the operation of the leisure centres, waste collection, 
additional cleaning and a potential shortfall in realising efficiency savings.

9.4 When establishing the 2020/21 budget, it included a contribution into general 
fund contingency reserves of £0.114million.  Therefore, the forecast deficit 
position results in a variance to this assumption of £0.451million – with an overall 
£0.337million use of reserves. 

9.5 However, at the end of 2019/20, the Council established a Covid-19 earmarked 
reserve specifically to support with the financial impact of Covid-19 totalling 
£200,000 - utilising part of the 2019/20 underspend generated.

9.6 Therefore, this reserve will be used first to fund any 2020/21 in year deficit.  
Based on the quarter 2 projection, the full £200,000 would be drawn.

9.7 The Quarter 2 financial update projects a £0.772million underspend against the 
2020/21 HRA budget (largely as a result of a delay in the delivery of the capital 
programme), and is showing no significant adverse financial impact of Covid-19 
in terms of loss of income/additional costs as yet.

9.8 The 2020/21 financial position will be monitored and updated throughout the 
year taking into account the actual recovery of income levels and services and 
any further updates on Government funding.

Government Covid-19 Funding

9.9 Following on from two allocations of non-ring fenced grant to Local Authorities, 
on 2nd July 2020, the Secretary of State for the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) announced a package of 
financial support for local government, providing three central pillars of support:

COVID-19 related expenditure
- An overall £4.3 billion non ring-fenced allocation.  The Council had received 

three allocations of non-ringfenced funding from Government totalling 
£1,096,350.  The allocations reflect the factors from which the MHCLG 
monthly data returns (as completed by each Local Authority) correlate most 
closely with expenditure.  The allocations also take account of population, 
deprivation and the way that service costs vary across the country.

- At the time of writing a fourth tranche of funding has been announced by 
Government of which £160,642 is allocated to HPBC.

Irrecoverable income loss
- Recognises that Councils have lost a great deal of income from sales, fees 

and charges (SFC) since the start of the pandemic.

Page 236



- Reimbursements of lost income where these losses are more than 5% of 
planned income - Government will fund 75p in every pound.  The income 
scheme will cover transactional income from the delivery of services which 
is unavoidably irrecoverable – this will be the net loss. The 5% deductible 
will be based on total SFC’s budgets - it is not a line by line analysis. No 
forms of commercial income will be covered by this scheme.  

Losses in tax revenue
- Tax deficits can be repaid over three years rather than the usual one
- There is uncertainty at this point how much tax loss will materialise, so the 

government will agree a fair apportionment of irrecoverable council tax and 
business rates losses, between central and local government, for 2020 to 
2021.

9.10 In addition, Government has provided financial support to Councils to:
 administer the business grants and self isolation payment process
 support homelessness activity
 support the reopening of high streets
 support with the cost of compliance and enforcement of Covid restrictions

9.11 The Council has also received funding from Derbyshire County Council to 
support track and trace compliance and enforcement duties and a contribution 
towards temporary accommodation costs.

9.12 The table below provides a summary of Government and County funding 
(confirmed and estimated) 

Covid Grant Support HPBC
  £ 
Covid 19 General Support- Phases 1 to 4 1,256,991 
Covid 19 Grants Admin Support        194,762 
Covid 19 Income Loss Support (est) 345,640

General Support     1,797,393 
Covid 19 Track & Trace (via County) 50,000 
Covid 19 Temporary Accommodation (via County) 18,132
Covid 19 Compliance Enforcement 38,818
Covid 19 Rough Sleepers Initiative           1,650 

Service Specific Support 108,600
Total  1,905,993

Tier Classifications / Second National Lockdown 

9.13 In an attempt to contain localised increases in Covid-19 cases, the Government 
introduced a 3-tiered system at the end of September 2020.  The three tiers – 
medium, high and very high – represented various restrictions dependent on the 
classification.

9.14 The northern part of High Peak (Glossopdale area) was placed in ‘tier 2’ from 
14th October, with the rest of High Peak placed in the ‘tier 2 – high’ category 
from 31st October 2020 – which introduced restrictions on household mixing 
indoors.  

Page 237



9.15 However, on 31st October, the Prime Minister announced a second national 
lockdown in England from 5th November to 2nd December.  Similar to the first 
national lockdown, all non essential shops, leisure and hospitality businesses 
are required to close, but education facilities will this time remain open.  

9.16 There will no doubt be an impact on the provision of Council services and 
consequential increased costs / reduced income.  This impact will be estimated 
within the report and assumptions made in respect of further Government 
funding as a result of the national lockdown.

9.14 The 2020/21 position will be monitored regularly and formally reported to 
Members as part of the usual quarterly financial reporting process.   Finance 
will be working with Services on a monthly basis to assess the 2020/21 position.

10. Medium Term Financial Plan Impact

10.1 Whilst the Council appears to be in a position to offset the majority of the impact 
of COVID-19 on the 2020/21 budget via Government funding and use of 
reserves, there is concern about the longer-term financial impact this will have 
on the delivery of corporate plan objectives.  

September 2020 Update

10.2 Therefore, an initial review of the MTFP was undertaken and presented to 
members in September 2020

10.3 The September update focused on updating the MTFP as approved in February 
2020 - therefore no additional financial years were added and no additional 
budget demand items were included.  The review simply updated the current 
MTFP in light of the estimated financial impact of Covid-19.

10.4 In summary, the updated MTFP estimated a 4 year revenue position of:-
 

2020/21  
Projection

2021/22  
Projection

2022/23  
Projection

2023/24  
Projection

 £ £ £ £
Deficit / (Surplus)     459,480      830,390     258,910     161,130
     Cumulative Deficit (call on reserves)     459,480   1,289,870   1,548,780  1,709,910
     

10.5 The MTFP approved in February 2020 included an assumed £17,910 
contribution into reserves over the four year life of the Plan.  The September 
update showed that in order to balance the updated MTFP position, there would 
now need to be an overall £1,709,910 use of reserves.

10.6   In terms of the HRA, the updated MTFP estimated a 4 year revenue position of:

2020/21  
Projection

2021/22  
Projection

2022/23  
Projection

2023/24  
Projection

 £ £ £ £
Deficit / (Surplus) 193,740 1,083,100 646,770 (2,078,800)
     Cumulative Deficit (call on reserves) 193,740 1,276,840 1,923,610 (155,190)
     

Page 238



10.7 The MTFP approved in February 2020 included an assumed £932,620 
contribution into HRA reserves over the four year life of the Plan.  The 
September update showed that in order to balance the updated MTFP position, 
there would now be a reduced contribution into reserves of £155,190

November 2020 Update

10.8 This MTFP update report now focuses on the 4 year period 2021/22 – 2024/25 
– adding an additional financial year and including any new budget demand 
items.

10.9 The following sections of this report will focus on the four key areas which form 
part of the MTFP:

 Transformation Programme
 Financial Forecasts
 Funding & Income Generation
 Risks, Contingencies & Reserves

11. Transformation Programme

11.1 The Council’s ‘transformation programme’ incorporates all major projects which 
meet the strategic priorities of the authority and have significant financial 
implications, including:-

 The Capital Programme (General Fund & HRA)
 Treasury management implications of capital programme and economic 

changes
 The Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme (General Fund & HRA)
 The Council’s major contracts 
 Member Priority Projects

11.2 The delivery of transformation programme projects is monitored by the 
Transformation Board made up of Directors, along with key Heads of Service 
and officers.  A Director is allocated as ‘project executive’ and a full business 
case appraisal is completed for each project.

11.3 The table below details the proposed budget for each area of the 
Transformation programme, changes made compared to the February 
approved MTFP, assumptions that have been taken in making those changes 
and any further work required to identify the financial implications of the 
programme are discussed and will feed into future MTFP updates.

Transformation 
Programme

 Assumptions Proposed Budget  / 
Changes to Feb 

Approved position (£)
Capital Programme – 
General Fund

The Capital Programme presented to Members 
in February 2020 has been reviewed, re-profiled 
and updated to reflect the latest position in 
terms of capital projections to 31st March 2025.

Capital Programme Budget:

2020/21 £3,394,230
2021/22 £3,263,160
2022/23 £4,056,910
2023/24 £2,733,910

Page 239



The review also estimates the impact Covid-19 
has had on delivery of the approved 
programme.  Some projects have inevitably 
been delayed due to the lockdown period (and 
potentially during the second lockdown period), 
social distancing measures and contractor 
availability.

New approved projects include:-
 Civica Digital Transformation Suite - 

£68,450
Consequently the five year capital programme 
(including 2020/21) is forecast at £16,324,760

Other Potential Capital Commitments  
Details and estimated costs of any new capital 
schemes which the Council is aiming to 
progress during the 4-year MTFP period will be 
included in a future update of the MTFP:

Glossop Halls - £2million funding secured from 
the D2N2 Getting Building Fund, subject to 
approval of business case. Latest project 
costings indicate potential further funding to 
support delivery of the project from the Council 
in addition to the current capital budget of 
£1.3m. 

Future High Street Funding (FHSF) – The 
Council is awaiting notification from 
Government on whether the FHSF bid for the 
regeneration of Buxton town centre has been 
successful.  If so, there is a potential significant 
investment into this project required from the 
Council – subject to the full business case being 
completed and approved. 

ICT – Evaluation of the most efficient way to 
fund investment into laptops required to 
facilitate the new ways of home working is 
currently being undertaken.

The updated general fund capital programme is 
detailed in ANNEX B
In accordance with the requirements of the 
2017 edition of the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential 
Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities, a 
Capital Strategy was produced and approved 
alongside the MTFP in February 2020.
The Strategy, which will be updated and 
presented to members alongside the MTFP 

2024/25 £2,876,550
TOTAL £16,324,760

Changes to Feb 2020 
position:

2020/21decrease 
(£1,652,190)
2021/22 decrease 
(£1,102,370)
2022/23 Increase £2,253,080
2023/24 decrease (£518,480)
2024/25 increase £2,876,550  

Page 240



report in February 2021, explains how capital 
expenditure and investment decisions are taken 
in line with the Council’s Corporate Plan and 
service objectives, taking account of 
stewardship, value for money, prudence, risk 
management, sustainability and affordability. 

Capital Programme - 
HRA

The Capital Programme presented to Members 
in February 2020 has been reviewed, re-profiled 
and updated to reflect the latest position in 
terms of capital projections to 31st March 2025.
The review also estimates the impact Covid-19 
has had on delivery of the approved 
programme.  Some projects have inevitably 
been delayed due to the lockdown period (and 
potentially during the second lockdown period), 
social distancing measures and contractor 
availability.

New proposed projects include:-
 Upgrade of Fire Alarm Systems at various 

Sheltered Blocks £280,000 over 3 financial 
years

Consequently the five year capital programme 
(including 2020/21) is forecast at £22,312,940.

The updated HRA capital programme is 
detailed in ANNEX B

Capital Programme Budget:

2020/21 £ 4,567,930
2021/22 £ 5,673,210
2022/23 £ 5,351,600
2023/24 £ 2,765,060
2024/25 £ 4,599,130
TOTAL £22,956,930

Changes to Feb 2020 
position:

2021/22 decrease £829,160
2022/23 increase £1,278,150
2023/24 increase £195,000
2024/25     -

Capital 
Programme 
Funding – 
Borrowing 
Requirement 

The capital programme can be funded from a 
number of options which include external grants 
and contributions from third parties comprising 
of Government and lottery funding; capital 
receipts from asset sales as part of the asset 
management plan; earmarked revenue 
reserves and borrowing.
The main element of spending within the current 
General Fund programme which is expected to 
be funded from external resources is support 
towards Disabled Facilities Grants. Estimated 
capital receipts from land sales of £4,409,270 
will be available over the next five years subject 
to a review of surplus assets. Revenue and 
capital reserves of £164,450 are forecast (at 
this stage) to be applied over the period. 
Borrowing is therefore the main funding option 
for the programme. The Treasury Management 
Strategy then considers whether this is funded 
externally or internally - both options have a 
consequence on revenue either through 
reduced investment income or increased 
external interest liability.

Borrowing Requirement:

2020/21 £1,951,890
2021/22 £2,150,050
2022/23 £2,526,300
2023/24 nil
2024/25 nil

Changes to Feb 2020 
position:
2020/21 decrease (£912,290)
2021/22 increase £1,191,380
2022/23 increase £2,526,300
2023/24 decrease (£21,250)
2024/25     -

Page 241



The HRA capital programme is fully funded from 
reserves.
As a result of the reprofiling of the capital 
programme, the funding position has 
consequently changed between years.  
The impact on the Council’s borrowing 
requirement to fund any unfinanced capital 
expenditure is shown.

Treasury 
Management 
implications of 
capital programme 
changes 

The treasury management implications 
(borrowing costs associated with the estimated 
borrowing requirement) have been updated to 
take account of both the re-profiled capital 
programme and capital funding programme.

Borrowing Costs Budget 
(Total):
2021/22 £1,810,800
2022/23 £1,845,820
2023/24 £1,859,010
2024/25 £1,842,200
Changes to Feb 2020 position 
(implications of capital spend):

2021/22 £41,710
2022/23 £49,020
2023/24 £56,540
2024/25     -

Efficiency 
Programme 
Review

The current Efficiency and Rationalisation 
Strategy was approved by Members in 
February 2017, which identified a programme of 
£2.1 million in savings to be made over the 
period 2017/18 – 2020/21.  
When setting the MTFP in February, there 
remained a £0.505 million savings target to be 
achieved in 2020/21.  Following additional 
savings that were realised in quarter 4 of 
2019/20, the overall target remaining has been 
reduced to £352,000 (£257,000 targeted in 
2020/21, £95,000 targeted in 2021/22)
At quarter 2 stage, it assumed that there will be 
a £171,000 shortfall against the 2020/21 target 
of £257,000 due to Covid-19 pressures (this will 
be monitored during the year) – which is built 
into the £450,000 deficit projected at Quarter 2.  

At this stage it is proposed that the actual year-
end shortfall on the 2020/21 saving target 
(currently forecast at £171,000) is rolled forward 
into 2021/22 to be offset by the significant fleet 
procurement savings due to be realised in that 
year.
The Council also has an earmarked reserve 
established to support with any re-profiling 
requirements of the efficiency programme with 
£200,000 currently set aside.  Therefore, if there 
was a shortfall in achieving savings in 2021/22, 
this reserve could be drawn.

Efficiency Programme 
targets:

2021/22 £95,000
2022/23  -
2023/24  -
2024/25  -
*plus an estimated additional £171,000 
in unachieved savings rolled forward 
from 2020/21

Changes to Feb 2020 
position:

2021/22  -
2022/23  -
2023/24  -
2024/25  -

Page 242



No assumptions in respect of any ‘new’ 
efficiency programme have been incorporated 
into this iteration of the plan.
Similarly, there are no further efficiency savings 
for the HRA within the current plan.

Major Contracts One of the major cost pressures as a result of 
Covid-19 has been the impact on some of the 
Council’s major contracts.  However, there are 
also other potential pressures, as well as 
potential savings that need to be reflected in the 
MTFP forecast.
Leisure Centres & Pavilion Gardens
Financial support has been provided in regard 
to the Council’s leisure centres and Pavilion 
Gardens operation during the lockdown and 
recovery period – which is being rolled on a 
monthly basis.  The leisure centre operation has 
seen income receipts wiped out during the 
period the centres were closed and is 
forecasting slow recovery phase as footfall is 
reduced in the early stages of recovery to 
maintain social distancing and facilities are 
opened on a phased basis. The second 
lockdown means that the facilities will once 
again close during this period. 
An estimated £1,203,000 spend pressure is 
currently assumed in 2020/21, which is in part 
offset by Government COVID-19 support 
grants. 
Recognising that recovery may be prolonged 
and income levels may not reach pre-Covid 
levels in the near future, a £350,000 growth item 
has been built into the MTFP in 2021/22 – but 
then removed from 2022/23 on the working 
assumption of a return to pre COVID-19 levels.
At this stage, it is not assumed that the recently 
announced Government funding to support 
externalised Leisure contracts will extend into 
2021/22.
Alliance Environmental Services
Alliance Environmental Services (AES) delivers 
waste, fleet, street cleansing and grounds 
maintenance services to the High Peak 
Borough and Staffordshire Moorlands District 
Councils. The Councils are shareholders of the 
company along with Ansa, which is a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Cheshire East Council. 
The company has experienced additional cost 
pressures as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic 
in regard to additional agency and overtime 
costs to enable social distancing and additional 

Changes to Feb 2020 
position:

2021/22  £350,000
2022/23  -
2023/24  -
2024/25  -

Changes to Feb 2020 
position (Change demand 
items):

2021/22 £188,610
2022/23   (£1,950)
2023/24  £47,670
2024/25     -

Page 243



cleaning and personal protective equipment – 
the amount apportioned to HPBC is forecast at 
£158,720 in 2020/21.
Change demand items flagged by AES which 
will affect the management fee from 2021/22 
include: Round Growth; Melandra Depot (one 
year only); increased waste tonnage costs 
(ongoing covid effect); Recycling contracts 
decline in market, impact on income, offset 
partially by an increase in recycling credits from 
increased tonnage (covid effect).
Facilities Management
In 20/21 the Cleaning & Caretaking Contract 
was taken over by Vertas, the Council are 
currently working with Vertas to mitigate the 
overspend in the 20/21 to a balanced budget in 
2021/22 – pending any new ongoing 
arrangement.  

Member Priority 
Projects 

During the development of the Corporate Plan 
a number of priority actions have been identified 
and prioritised by members.
Any costs or revenue associated with these 
actions will need to be included in the MTFP. 
The impact of a number of them is already 
included in this iteration of the plan but 
additional work will need to be undertaken to 
develop a number of the actions further and at 
the same time identify any financial 
implications.  
More detail on this will provide in the February 
iteration of the MTFP.

12. Financial Forecasts

12.1 A review of financial forecasts includes:-
 Updated interest rate forecasts
 Updated inflationary projections
 Any pensions impact relating to economic changes
 Estimation of any additional medium term costs of COVID recovery:

- Reinstating Services
- Economic recovery
- Community recovery

 Potential financial savings developing from new ways of working in 
accordance with recovery plan stream:-
- Taking advantage of the positive legacy

Page 244



12.2 The table below details the proposed budget for each area of review, changes 
made compared to the February approved MTFP and assumptions that have 
been taken in making those changes:-

Financial 
Forecasts

Assumptions Proposed Budget  / 
Changes to Feb 

Approved position (£)
Interest 
Rates

Following the decrease in the Bank of England base 
rate to 0.10% in March 2020, and the context of the 
impact of the coronavirus pandemic, the expectation 
is that interest rates will continue at current low 
levels throughout the period of the MTFP, with only 
a small potential increase in the 4th year. 
The Council’s advisors Link do not include negative 
interest rates in their forecast, but their average 
earning forecast shows an expectation of near 0% 
return.
The forecast of borrowing interest rates similarly 
remains at current levels, although the outcome of 
the recent PWLB consultation may impact this. 
Consequently, the cost of borrowing and the return 
on cash investments has reduced compared to the 
previous MTFP iteration.

GENERAL FUND 
REVENUE Net impact of 
reduced interest rates (interest 
income and borrowing costs):

2021/22 £52,850
2022/23 (£5,010)
2023/24 (£31,980)
2024/25 (£23,680)

HRA IMPACT
Year 1  (£35,570)
Year 2  (£94,760)
Year 3  (£93,420)
Year 4  £4,840

Inflation The Retail Price Index (RPI) and Consumer Price 
Index (CPI) 12 month rate, as at October 2020, 
stood at 1.3% and 0.9% respectively.  Inflation 
forecasts are made reflecting the composition of the 
Council’s expenditure, resulting in an inflation rate 
specific to the Council.
This includes the impact on staff pay, supplies and 
services, premises related costs and transport. 
The inflationary effects of Covid-safe working 
arrangements will feed through the system as 
increased supplies and service costs as contracts 
are renewed and uplifted.

Based on the recent Government announcement 
concerning Public Sector pay, the assumptions on 
pay award have been revised 0% in 2021/22 and 
1% pa thereafter. This will be further refined as more 
details emerge.

Inflationary Uplift (Total):

2021/22  £175,000
2022/23  £229,400
2023/24  £230,130
2024/25  £228,630

Net changes to Feb 2020 
position:

2021/22  (£103,130)
2022/23  (£55,310)
2023/24  (£56,660)
2024/25     -

Page 245



Pensions The Pension Fund triennial valuation, which took 
place in 2019, fixed the Council’s contributions for 
the first 2 years of this plan. A further valuation is to 
take place in 2022, which will set the contributions 
payable up until 2025/26.
At this stage the plan assumes no further increase 
in contributions will be necessary arising out of the 
2022 valuation. 
At the 2019 valuation the High Peak portion of the 
Pension Fund had a funding level of 90%.
The impacts of Covid19 are not expected to have an 
effect on pension contribution rates at this stage. 
The long term nature of Pension Fund forecasting 
means the impacts of short term financial shocks 
are mitigated. This situation will continue to be 
monitored following the outcome of this next 
valuation.
The Council carries an earmarked reserve for 
Pension purposes, which was originally set up to 
meet extraordinary pension costs outside of the 
actuarial valuation process. It has become obsolete 
having never been used for this purpose and is 
potentially available for re-designation. This will be 
reviewed alongside all other earmarked reserves 
and Third Party funds.

No impact assumed

13. Funding & Income Generation

13.1 The key areas of funding and income generation include:
 Council Tax, Business Rates and Housing Rents collection 
 Impact on the Collection Fund
 Income from Government Grants
 Longer term impact on fees and charges income

13.2 The table below details the proposed budget for each area of review, changes 
made compared to the February approved MTFP and assumptions that have 
been taken in making those changes:-

Funding & 
Income 

Generation

Assumptions Proposed Budget  / 
Changes to Feb 

Approved position (£)
Council Tax The Council has the capacity to vary Council Tax 

levels, following the abolition of capping.  However the 
Council Tax Income Budget 
(inc. impact of Council tax 

Page 246



Council’s ability to increase Council Tax by more than 
a certain percentage is subject to referendum. 
Government consultation is currently on-going 
regarding the level of this percentage.
In line with the consultation, this iteration of the MTFP 
assumes that a 1.9% Council Tax increase will be 
implemented throughout the 4 year life of this Plan.

Provision for tax base growth remains unchanged from 
the levels assumed in February. A provisional figure 
has been included for Year 4. Further work will be 
carried out in the course of the next few months to 
recalculate likely changes in the tax base. 

There is also a risk associated with non-payment, with 
some households potentially struggling to meet 
instalments. Collection Rates for 2020/21 are behind 
what they normally are, however this is currently 
largely distorted by deferred payment plans and stalled 
recovery.  
Having said that, it is recognised that there will be an 
impact on collection rates in 2020/21.  However, the 
financial impact will only be realised if outstanding 
debts are not collected in the near term and are 
subsequently written off.  

increase and tax base 
changes):

2021/22  £6,230,240
2022/23  £6,409,480
2023/24  £6,595,350
2024/25  £6,784,750

Net changes to Feb 2020 
position:

2021/22  -
2022/23  -
2023/24  -
2024/25  -

Business 
Rates

Under the 50% Business Rates Retention system, the 
Authority retains 40% of Business Rates less a tariff 
that is payable into a pool of Derbyshire Authorities. 
This amount is then compared to a Funding Baseline 
(estimated at £2,406,290 for 2021/22): any amount in 
excess of this Baseline is subject to levy, or conversely 
if the amount of retained Business Rates is below this 
Baseline, the loss is capped by a safety net payment. 
The MTFP does not anticipate the Council falling below 
the Baseline.
As part of the Derbyshire Pool, the levy or the safety 
net payment is made to or from the Pool instead of 
Central Government. If the Council was not in the 
Staffordshire Pool it would have to pay 50p in the £1 to 
the Government as a levy, effectively limiting the 
income the Council can gain from business rates 
growth. However, as part of the Pool, the Council 
retains c.60% of this levy based on past performance. 
The benefit to the Council of being part of the Pool 
arrangement is estimated to be £409,550 in 2021/22.

Extended Retail Relief was announced by Government 
in March 2020 which awarded full Business Rates 
relief to all retail, hospitality and leisure related 
businesses. 

Business Rates Income 
Budget:

2021/22 (£3,649,580)
2022/23 (£3,780,120)
2023/24 (£4,050,700)
2024/25 (£4,319,010)

Net changes to Feb 2020 
position:

2021/22 £222,290
2022/23 £210,090
2023/24 £86,510
2024/25     -

Page 247



It is unknown at this stage if the extended Retail Relief 
will continue into 2021/22.  

Either way, the Council would either be reimbursed via 
Government grant or the amount would be collectable 
from businesses.
However, as a result of Covid-19 and the impact 
recession and social distancing measures are having 
on businesses, there is a risk that the District may see 
a reduction in the business tax base and therefore 
business rates retention. The MTFP includes a 
reduction of 1% in year 1; and a recovery of 0.75% in 
year 2, leaving a permanent depression of 0.25% 
resulting from the current situation. However, growth in 
the business rates base is included at 1.5% in years 3 
and 4 on the basis of a general stimulation in the 
economy by this point and more particularly the 
potential positive effects of the Crescent development.  
This will be reviewed at the next iteration.

There is also a risk associated with non-payment, with 
businesses potentially struggling to meet instalments.  
Collection Rates for 2020/21 are behind the normal 
trend, however this is currently largely distorted by 
deferred / changed payments plans. A financial impact 
of lower collection rates will only be realised if 
outstanding debts are not collected in the near term 
and are subsequently written off.  Prior to the Covid-19 
climate an annual provision for bad debts of 0.6% was 
usually included in the budget. This has been 
increased to 1% for 2021/22; 0.8% in 2022/23; 
returning to 0.6% in 2023/24 and 2024/25.

Collection 
Fund 
Impact

The Government announced that it will extend the 
period over which Councils must manage exceptional 
deficits on the collection fund relating to 2020/21 owing 
to the Covid-19 situation, from the usual one year to 
three years.  This is intended to ease immediate 
pressures on Councils when budget setting for 
2021/22, protecting their ability to deliver essential 
local services.

The hardship element of the Local Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme; and the Extended Retail Relief 
and Nursery Discount on Business Rates are all 
funded by grants, therefore do not impact on the 
exceptional deficit.

Distribution of 2020-21 
exceptional deficit (Council 
share):

2021/22 to 2023/24:

Council Tax £24,000 per 
annum
Business Rates No impact (a 
small surplus is forecast which 
will be distributed in 2021/22 
under normal rules)

Page 248



Housing 
Rent

The four year 1% rent reduction ended in 2019/20, allowing 
Authorities to increase rents by CPI +1% from 2020/21.  
This led to an increase in rents by 2.7% in 2020/21.
The current HRA Plan projects a 1.5% increase from 
2021/22.  It also assumes that ‘Other Charges’, including 
garages and service charges, will increase in 2021/221 – 
2024/25 by a maximum of 5% per annum.

Housing Rent & Service 
Charges Budget:
2021/22  (£15,154,770) 
2022/23  (£15,440,190)
2023/24  (£15,730,830)
2024/25  (£16,322,050)

REVENUE INCOME IMPACT 
Year 1  £112,200 increase
Year 2  £285,420 increase
Year 3  £290,640 increase
Year 4  £591,220 increase (53 
week year)

New Homes 
Bonus

The replacement for the New Homes Bonus scheme 
(the intended subject of consultation in Spring 2020) 
has been delayed by Covid19.

The February 2020 iteration of the MTFP assumed that 
any replacement scheme would be as beneficial to the 
Council as the former scheme. In the absence of 
detailed guidance this assumption remains in place. As 
was the case in February; this remains a significant 
risk.

This assumption will be revised in December when the 
provisional Local Government financial settlement is 
released. Any changes will be incorporated into the 
February 2021 MTFP update

New Homes Bonus Budget:
2021/22  £647,250 
2022/23  £647,250
2023/24  £647,250
2024/25  £647,250

Net changes to Feb 2020 
position:

2021/22  £0
2022/23  £0
2023/24  £0
2024/25     -

Government 
Grants – 
Covid-19

The Council has received Government funding 
towards Covid-19 pressures during 2020/21.  This has 
included non-ringfenced grants, specific grants (for 
additional services provided such as the administration 
of the grants process and compliance and 
enforcement of restrictions) and partial reimbursement 
of irrecoverable fees and charges income.
It is assumed at this stage that this funding will not 
continue into future years.

Government Grants:

2021/22   -
2022/23   -
2023/24   -
2024/25   -

Net changes to Feb 2020 
position:

2021/22   -
2022/23   -
2023/24   -
2024/25   -

Fees & 
Charges

The assumed annual increase in base income has 
been suspended for years 1 and 2 of the plan, whilst 
fees and charges income levels recover from the 
Covid19 shock.

The MTFP assumes that income losses suffered in 
2020/21 arising out of the Covid19 outbreak have 
substantially recovered by 2021/22. This working 
assumption will be kept under review over the next few 
months as the formal fees and charges process is 
completed before the budget is set in February

F&C Total Budget (inc 
inflation):

2021/22   £7,230,790
2022/23   £7,213,290
2023/24   £7,253,290
2024/25   £7,293,290

Net changes to Feb 2020 
position:

2021/22   £40,000
2022/23   £80,000
2023/24   £80,000
2024/25   £0

14. Updated Revenue Position

Page 249



14.1 Based on the above updated forecasts, the updated revenue forecast for both 
the general fund and HRA is summarised below.

General Fund Revenue Summary

Budget Heading
2021/22  

Projection
2022/23  

Projection
2023/24  

Projection
2024/25  

Projection
 £ £ £ £
Employees 10,467,850 10,579,300 10,688,700 10,797,020
Premises 4,295,740 4,400,560 4,466,570 4,533,210
Transport 401,560 406,660 411,820 416,980
Supplies & Services 9,774,240 9,471,170 9,665,800 9,815,260
Benefits          82,460          82,460          82,460         82,460
Borrowing 1,810,800 1,845,820 1,859,010 1,842,200
Parish Grant re Council Tax Support 51,320 51,320 51,320 51,320
Financing Costs 22,130 22,130 22,130 22,130
     
Total Expenditure 26,906,100 26,859,420 27,247,810 27,560,580

Fees and Charges / Other Income
     

(7,192,490)   (7,271,690)
   

(7,311,690)   (7,351,690)

Interest Receipts 
         

(45,720)        (45,140)        (43,390)       (65,760)

HRA Recharges
     

(7,863,390)   (8,022,750)
   

(8,143,650)   (8,266,600)

Capital Recharges
        

(231,240)      (231,240)
      

(231,240)      (231,240)
     
Net Expenditure 11,573,260 11,288,600 11,517,840 11,645,290

Council Tax
     

(6,230,240)   (6,409,480)
   

(6,595,350)   (6,784,750)

Business Rates Retention
     

(3,649,580)   (3,780,120)
   

(4,050,700)   (4,319,010)

New Homes Bonus
        

(647,250)      (647,250)
      

(647,250)      (647,250)

Contribution to / (use of) Reserves
     

(3,420,530)          (1,640)          (1,640)         (1,640)

Contingency Balances
                   

0                  0                  0                 0

Collection Fund
       

3,522,590        (37,080)        (36,390)       (35,700)

Total Financing
   

(10,425,010)
 

(10,875,570)
 

(11,331,330) (11,788,350)

Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus)
       

1,148,250        413,030
        

186,510      (143,060)

Efficiency Requirement (cumulative)
         

(38,300)          58,400          58,400         58,400

Deficit / (Surplus)
       

1,109,950        471,430
        

244,910       (84,660)
     

Cumulative Deficit (call on reserves)
       

1,109,950     1,581,380
     

1,826,290     1,741,630
     

14.2 In order to balance the updated MTFP position, there would need to be a 
forecast overall £1,741,630 use of reserves up to the end of 2024/25.

Page 250



Housing Revenue Account Summary

HRA 2021/22 
Projection

2022/23 
Projection

2023/24 
Projection

2024/25 
Projection

 £ £ £ £
Repairs & Maintenance 4,393,640 4,501,460 4,570,430 4,640,240
Supervision & Management 2,673,380 2,703,920 2,734,850 2,765,990
Rent, Rates, Taxes & Other Charges 109,130 109,130 109,130 109,130
Other Operating Expenditure 782,430 806,290 830,190 858,100
Depreciation & Impairment Charges 2,099,030 2,099,030 2,099,030 2,099,030
Interest & Debt Management Charges 2,710,770 2,616,010 2,522,590 2,527,430
HRA Contribution to Capital Programme 3,574,180 3,252,570 666,030 2,500,100
Total Expenditure 16,342,560 16,088,410 13,532,250 15,500,020

Dwelling Rents (14,483,110) (14,768,530) (15,059,170) (15,650,390)
Non-Dwelling Rents & Other Income (671,660) (671,660) (671,660) (671,660)
Total Income (15,154,770) (15,440,190) (15,730,830) (16,322,050)

(Surplus) / Deficit for year 1,187,790 648,220 (2,198,580) (822,030)

Cumulative (contribution to) / use of reserves 1,187,790 1,836,010 (362,570) (1,184,600)

14.3   In order to balance the updated MTFP HRA position, there would be a forecast 
contribution into reserves of £1,184,600 up to the end of 2024/25.

15. Risks, Contingencies & Use of Reserves

15.1 When setting the Budget and Medium Term Financial Plan in February 2020, 
the general fund contingency reserves balance as at 31st March 2020 was 
estimated to total £2.838 million.

15.2 The 2019/20 provisional outturn position highlighted a £295,000 surplus – of 
which £200,000 was set aside specifically to fund COVID-19 recovery activities.  
After other earmarked reserves movements, the general fund contingency 
balance as at 31st March 2020 was £2.841million (just slightly higher than 
forecast in the MTFP presented in February).  

15.3 The Council carries reserves as a contingency for situations where risks cannot 
be fully mitigated. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the 
Chief Finance Officer (CFO) to report on the robustness of the estimates 
included in the budget and the adequacy of the reserves that the budget 
provides.

15.4 While there is no detailed guidance on calculating the level of general reserves, 
the Council is encouraged to take into account the strategic, operational and 
financial risks facing the Council. These amounts are then moderated to 
acknowledge the likelihood of all risk events occurring together.  When setting 
the Budget in February, the minimum level of general fund contingency reserves 
required was set at £1,332,000

Page 251



15.5 In addition to utilising the £0.2million COVID-19 earmarked reserve (and 
proposed re-designation of the £0.220million Pensions earmarked reserve) in 
offsetting the impact in the current financial year, the Council could utilise 
contingency reserves of approximately £1.5 million, which would leave the 
contingency balance just above the minimum required amount of £1.3 million 
over the life of the current MTFP (including the current year).   

15.6 The updated MTFP currently shows a forecast cumulative deficit position of 
£1.742million over the four years – which represents the required use of 
reserves in order to balance the 4 year plan.    Utilising the Covid-19 recovery 
reserve and potential re-designation of the Pension reserves (as discussed in 
para. 12.2) would leave £1.321million to be funded from General Fund 
Contingency reserves:

£
MTFP Four Year Use of Reserves requirement 1,741,630
Covid-19 Recovery earmarked Reserve (200,000)
Pensions Re-designated Reserve (220,000)
Balance to be funded 1,321,630
General Fund Contingency (1,321,630)
Balance to be funded 0
Estimated General Fund Contingency Balance 31st March 2021* 2,504,220
Drawdown over 2021/22 – 2024/25 (1,321,630)
Forecast General Fund Contingency Balance by 31st March 2025 1,182,590
Forecast General Fund Contingency Balance by 31st March 2024 as at Feb 2020 2,855,900

  *includes estimated £336,780 use of reserves in 2020/21

15.7 At the end of year 4 of the plan (2024/25) there would be an estimated balance 
of £1.183million in General Fund Contingency reserves – which would be 
£0.117 million under the required £1.3 million minimum balance.  However, the 
updated MTFP illustrates an anticipated surplus of £84,660 in year 4 of the plan 
(2024/25). 

15.8 Over the next few months, prior to formal approval in February 2021, the Plan’s 
position will be refined to incorporate amongst other things, the spending review 
announcement, which is expected to give details of any further Government 
support which will hopefully improve the forecast position.

15.9 If reserves are utilised as forecast to fund the deficit position, a plan would need 
to be put into place in to rebuild reserves over the longer term.  A review of 
earmarked reserves will also take place prior to February 2021 in an attempt to 
boost contingency reserves.

15.10 In terms of the HRA, the financial impact of COVID-19 is expected to be less 
severe, and the HRA has sufficient reserves to cover this certainly in the 
medium term. There may be a longer term impact on the HRA business plan 
which will be considered as part of the MTFP update to be presented in 
February 2021.  The anticipated change in the reserves position as at the end 
of year 4 of the Plan is illustrated below:

HRA £

Page 252



HRA Reserves Balance as at 31st March 2021
Net Movement Over 2021/22 – 2024/25
Forecast HRA Reserves Balance by 31st March 2025

Forecast HRA Reserves Balance by 31st March 2024 as at Feb 2020

(16,329,706)
  (1,184,600)
(17,514,306)

(17,310,904)

15.11 The updated HRA MTFP illustrates a surplus position of £0.822million by year 
4.

15.12 All of the above is subject to the assumptions as detailed in sections 11-13 
which is extremely difficult to forecast – and does not assume any further 
Government support.  These assumptions will be continually monitored.

Risk Identification and Management

15.13 The early identification and management of risks is critical to the Medium Term 
Financial Planning process. Risks are assessed, mitigated and actively 
managed to ensure that the Council delivers its services effectively within the 
funding at its disposal. The principal risks to the Medium Term Financial Plan 
are summarised in ANNEX C.

15.14 Risk areas will be closely monitored and reviewed on an on-going basis and 
remedial action taken as appropriate.  Risks associated with specific projects 
will be identified within the project methodology documents and reviewed 
monthly by the Transformation Board.

15.15 The table below highlights specific financial risks that are embedded within the 
Medium Term Financial Plan: 

15.16 In addition, there are a number of Covid-19 related financial risks to the MTFP 
to be regularly reviewed and considered:-

 The impact that a recession may have on Council Tax, Business Rates 
and Housing Rent collection and increased risk of non-payment which is 
not subsequently collected

Revenue Risks Capital Risks
 Inflationary assumptions
 Interest rates
 Revenue consequences of capital
 Housing benefits
 Fees and charges
 Universal Credit
 Business Rates Retention scheme
 Council Tax collection
 New Homes Bonus
 Financial benefits from partnerships / 

shared services
 Pension costs
 Insurance costs
 Waste management costs
 Brexit implications

 Interest rates 
 External funding
 Capital receipts
 Capacity to deliver capital 

programme
 Project overspend
 Project overrun
 External factors (e.g. planning 

objections, judicial reviews etc. 
leading to project delay)

 Housing Joint Venture
 Suppliers / Contractors / Contract 

Management
 Weather 
 Brexit implications

Page 253



 The period of recovery is prolonged which has further cost pressure 
consequences for the Council – especially in regard to the operation of 
leisure centres

 Fees and Charges income levels do not return to pre-Covid levels as 
forecast

 The economy is deflated post-recovery leading to ongoing economic 
problems in town centres and the broader economy, as well as 
community safety issues, which lead to increased cost pressures

 Increased demand on certain services e.g. Benefits and economic 
support.

 Further national lockdown/strict tiered system is imposed which leads to 
further pressures on businesses and households and additional costs to 
the Council in providing support

16. Future MTFP Updates

16.1 The next iteration of the MTFP is due towards the end of the calendar year and 
then again alongside the presentation and setting of the Budget 2021/22 in 
February 2021.

16.2 The forecasts will be updated to reflect latest information, intelligence and 
monthly in year actuals and an additional year will be added to the plan.  In year 
financial performance will be closely monitored within the quarterly financial 
reports.

Page 254



ANNEX A

Approved General Fund Revenue Budget (approved February 2020)

Budget Heading
2020/21  

Projection
2021/22  

Projection
2022/23  

Projection
2023/24  

Projection
 £ £ £ £
Employees 10,599,460 10,784,110 11,010,610 11,234,790
Premises 4,274,230 4,322,520 4,388,380 4,455,340
Transport 404,900 408,120 413,220 418,380
Supplies & Services 9,412,780 9,516,280 9,665,170 9,812,130
Benefits            82,460          82,460          82,460         82,460
Borrowing 1,837,940 1,905,240 1,900,580 1,860,010
Parish Grant re Council Tax Support 51,320 51,320 51,320 51,320
Financing Costs 22,130 22,130 22,130 22,130
     
Total Expenditure 26,685,220 27,092,180 27,533,870 27,936,560
     
Fees and Charges / Other Income      (6,964,110)   (7,048,810)    (7,168,010)   (7,208,010)
Interest Receipts         (160,000)      (207,500)       (255,000)      (302,500)
HRA Recharges      (8,027,720)   (8,202,660)    (8,382,800)   (8,562,770)
Capital Recharges         (231,240)      (231,240)       (231,240)      (231,240)
     
Net Expenditure 11,302,150 11,401,970 11,496,820 11,632,040
     
Council Tax      (6,051,540)   (6,230,240)    (6,409,480)   (6,595,350)
Revenue Support Grant                    0                  0                  0                 0
Business Rates Retention      (3,797,710)   (3,871,870)    (3,990,210)   (4,137,210)
New Homes Bonus         (647,250)      (647,250)       (647,250)      (647,250)
Contribution to / (use of) Reserves          (88,940)          (1,640)          (1,640)         (1,640)
Contribution to / (use of) Balances           138,290      (177,580)        (69,880)        127,080
Collection Fund         (455,320)        (35,410)        (37,080)       (36,390)
     

Total Financing    (10,902,470)
 

(10,963,990)  (11,155,540) (11,290,760)
     
Cumulative Deficit / (Surplus)           399,680        437,980         341,280        341,280
     
Efficiency Requirement (cumulative)         (399,680)      (437,980)       (341,280)      (341,280)
     
Deficit / (Surplus)                    0                  0                  0                 0
     

Page 255



Approved Housing Revenue Budget (approved February 2020)

2020/21 
Projection

2021/22 
Projection

2022/23 
Projection

2023/24 
Projection

 £ £ £ £
Repairs &  Maintenance 4,299,300 4,395,830 4,494,570 4,593,550
Supervision & Management 2,618,150 2,676,560 2,736,960 2,796,950
Rent, Rates, Taxes & Other 
Charges 113,030 113,030 113,030 113,030
Other Operating Expenditure 761,310 784,150 808,040 831,980
Depreciation & Impairment 
Charges 2,099,030 2,099,030 2,099,030 2,099,030
Interest & Debt Management 
Charges 2,746,340 2,739,520 2,758,630 2,705,150
HRA Contribution to Capital 
Programme 3,178,060 2,296,030 3,057,570 666,030
Total Expenditure 15,815,220 15,104,150 16,067,830 13,805,720

Dwelling Rents (14,370,910) (14,654,780) (14,943,860) (15,238,230)
Non-Dwelling Rents & Other 
Income (629,440) (629,440) (629,440) (629,440)
Total Income (15,000,350) (15,284,220) (15,573,300) (15,867,670)

(Surplus) / Deficit for year 814,870 (180,070) 494,530 (2,061,950)

Page 256



ANNEX B
Updated General Fund Capital Programme

Service Area 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Total 
 £ £ £ £ £ £
Housing 667,000 374,000 504,000 504,000   504,000 2,553,000
Asset Management 1,806,510 1,640,960 2,238,020 1,518,800   880,250 8,084,540
Housing Grants 519,110 489,110 489,110 489,110   489,110 2,475,550
ICT Strategy 188,360 67,050 50,000 50,000     50,000 405,410
Fleet Management             -   633,000 725,780 172,000   953,190 2,483,970
Other Schemes 213,250 59,040 50,000             -               -   322,290
Total Revised Programme 3,394,230 3,263,160 4,056,910 2,733,910 2,876,550 16,324,760
Original Programme 5,046,420 4,365,530 1,803,830 3,252,390  14,468,170
Change increase (decrease) (1,652,190) (1,102,370) 2,253,080 (518,480) 2,876,550 1,856,590
Financed by:-       

External Contributions 519,110 489,110 489,110 489,110
    

489,110 2,475,550
Planning Obligations 43,000             -               -               -               -   43,000
Capital Receipts(Land)       48,780 250,000 505,000 1,722,050 1,883,440 4,409,270
Capital Receipts( one for one) 667,000 374,000 504,000 504,000   504,000 2,553,000
Capital Receipts (Vehicles)             -               -   32,500     18,750             -   51,250
Capital Reserves 100,000             -               -               -               -   100,000
Earmarked Reserves 64,450             -               -               -               -   64,450
Borrowing 1,951,890 2,150,050 2,526,300             -               -   6,628,240
Total   Revised Financing 3,394,230 3,263,160 4,056,910 2,733,910 2,876,550 16,324,760
Original Programme 5,046,420 4,365,530 1,803,830 3,252,390             -   14,468,170
Change Increase (decrease) (1,652,190) (1,102,370) 2,253,080 (518,480) 2,876,550 1,856,590

Comparison with February 2020 increase (decrease)
Service Area 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Total 
 £ £ £ £  £
Housing - - - - 504,000 504,000
Asset Management (732,360) (1,035,680) 1,649,300 (37,050) 880,250 724,460
Housing Grants (31,180) - - - 489,110 457,930
ICT Strategy 53,150 17,050 - - 50,000 120,200
Fleet Management (932,760) (92,780) 553,780 (481,430) 953,190 -
Other Schemes (9,040) 9,040 50,000 - - 50,000
Total Programme (1,652,190) (1,102,370) 2,253,080 (518,480) 2,876,550 1,856,590
Financed by:-     -  
External Contributions (31,180) - - - 489,110 457,930
Planning Obligations - - - - - -
Capital Receipts(Land) (676,220) (2,275,000) (305,720) (497,230) 1,883,440 (1,870,730)
Capital Receipts( one for one) - - - - 504,000 504,000
Capital Receipts (Vehicles) (32,500) (18,750) 32,500 - - (18,750)
Capital Reserves - - - - - -
Earmarked Reserves - - - - - -
Borrowing (912,290) 1,191,380 2,526,300 (21,250) - 2,784,140
Total  Financing (1,652,190) (1,102,370) 2,253,080 (518,480) 2,876,550 1,856,590

Page 257



Updated Housing Revenue Account Capital Programme 

Service Area 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Total
 £ £ £ £ £ £
Asset Management Works 4,187,610 4,835,710 4,536,600 2,370,060 4,204,130 20,134,110

Repairs Team Capital Works 190,320 295,000 295,000 295,000 295,000 1,370,320
Professional & Commissioning 
Fees 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

100,000
500,000

Vehicle Purchasing 90,000 242,500 420,000 - - 752,500
Housing IT System - 200,000 - - - 200,000

Total Revised Programme 4,567,930 5,673,210 5,351,600 2,765,060 4,599,130 22,956,930
Original Programme* 5,397,090 4,395,060 5,156,600 2,765,060 4,599,130 22,312,940

Change increase (decrease) (829,160) 1,278,150 195,000 - - 643,990
      
Financed by:      
HRA Contribution 2,468,900 3,574,180 3,252,570 666,030 2,500,100 12,461,780

Major Repairs Reserve 2,099,030 2,099,030 2,099,030 2,099,030 2,099,030 10,495,150

Total Revised Financing 4,567,930 5,673,210 5,351,600 2,765,060 4,599,130 22,956,930
Original Programme* 5,397,090 4,395,060 5,156,600 2,765,060 4,599,130 22,312,940

Change increase (decrease) (829,160) 1,278,150 195,000 - - 643,990
* 2020/21 original programme includes £120,000 approved carry forwards from 2019/20

Comparison with February 2020 increase (decrease)

Service Area 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 Total
 £ £ £ £ £ £
Asset Management Works (571,980) 1,035,650 195,000 - - 658,670
Repairs Team Capital Works (104,680) - - - - (104,680)
Professional & Commissioning 
Fees - - - - - -
Vehicle Purchasing (152,500) 242,500 - - - 90,000
Housing IT System - - - - - -
Total  Programme (829,160) 1,278,150 195,000 - - 643,990
       
Financed by:       
HRA Contribution (829,160) 1,278,150 195,000 - - 643,990
Major Repairs Reserve - - - - - -
Total Financing (829,160) 1,278,150 195,000 - - 643,990

Page 258



ANNEX C

Medium Term Financial Plan – Principal Risks

Risk Category Risk Mitigation and Controls

Financial 
Implications

Robustness of financial 
assumptions within 
Efficiency and 
Rationalisation Strategy

Structured project management 
arrangements have been put in place 
with detailed business cases for each 
initiative – these will be strengthened in 
the service review process

Financial 
Implications

Additional financial 
pressures emerge – cost & 
income 

The strategy is kept under constant 
review and adjustments will be made 
where necessary

Service 
Continuity

Interruptions to key services 
or performance standards

Resource implications and impact are 
identified as part of the business case 
process. Service continuity and 
maintenance of standards of service are 
key requirements of any new proposals

Corporate 
Governance

Maintaining stakeholder 
confidence; lack of clarity on 
accountability

Ongoing review of standards of internal 
control (e.g. Financial Procedure Rules 
reviewed and updated). Internal Audit 
Plan will be reviewed to account for the 
new approach proposed in the efficiency 
& Rationalisation Strategy

Management of 
Change

Management of corporate 
and local, cultural change; 
behavioural risks; residual 
effects of aggregation; 
proposed changes to 
organisational structure, 
roles & responsibilities

Progress with achievement of aims will 
be monitored through an effective 
performance management structure. 
Investment has been made in a new 
approach to Organisational 
Development.

People Risks Impact of cultural changes;
assessment of skills; 
recruitment & retention;
capacity issues

Continuing communications process for 
the delivery of transformation 
programme

Key Projects & 
Partnerships

Managing changes to 
shared service delivery 
arrangements

The project management methodology 
provides for an adequate transition 

Page 259



Risk Category Risk Mitigation and Controls
where there are changes in service 
delivery
  

Performance 
Management

Adequacy of framework to 
monitor transition

Risk management processes are 
embedded

Reputation and 
Relationship 
Risks

Maintaining existing partner 
confidence

Continuing communications process for 
the delivery of transformation 
programme

Programme 
Delivery

Delays in implementation of 
efficiency savings

Effective governance arrangements in 
place to monitor plans. 

Executive Directors and Senior 
Managers own delivery of efficiencies. 

Programme 
Delivery

A number of the efficiency / 
rationalisation initiatives are 
not achieved

Structured project management 
approach is in place for delivery 
including effective exception reporting

The strategy is kept under constant 
review

Identification of further efficiency / 
rationalisation opportunities through 
benchmarking / effective member 
working groups
  

Political Support Lack of Members support 
for Plan.

Regular reporting and member briefings 
including effective scrutiny 
arrangements

5.41

Page 260



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

The Executive

3 December 2020

TITLE: Information Governance Update

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Alan Barrow - Executive 
Councillor for Corporate Services and 
Finance

CONTACT OFFICER: Vanessa Higgins – Information Business 
Partner

WARDS INVOLVED: All

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 To provide an Information Governance update which details how the Council 
continues to embed good information management practices through its 
ASSURED framework.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Executive notes the contents of this update.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 Good information management practices are the responsibility of everyone 
within the Council. To promote these good practices and to oversee the 
Council’s approach to good information governance is the role of the 
Information Governance Group (IGG).

3.2 The Council has developed a suite of policies and guidance documents as 
part of its ASSURED framework, which are accessible to all employees and 
councillors through the intranet.

3.3 The Council has made significant progress in its approach to information 
governance including the use of asset registers, impact assessments, breach 
reporting, and an ongoing action plan that ensures training is at the heart of 
this approach.

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

Page 261

Agenda Item 10

https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/assured


4.1 Information Governance contributes to Aim Two of the Corporate Plan – to use 
resources effectively and provide value for money.   

5. Alternative Options

5.1 This report is for information only and no decision is required.

Mark Trillo
Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Contact details

Information Governance Action Plan
Information Governance Group papers
ASSURED framework policies

Vanessa Higgins
Information Business Partner
vanessa.higgins@highpeak.gov.uk

6. ASSURED in our approach

6.1 The Council’s approach to good information management is encapsulated in 
the word ASSURED, which refers to the desired lifecycle of data within the 
organisation (Alliance, Sources, Stores, Uses, Retains, Erases, Data). The 
council has developed a suite of policies and 
guidance documents as part of its ASSURED 
framework, which are accessible to all 
employees and councillors through the intranet 
page of the same name and includes:

 Data Protection Policy
 Document Retention Schedule
 ICT Use and Information Security Policy
 Councillor ICT Equipment and Information Security Agreement
 Email Guidance
 Information Protective Marking Guidance
 Data Breach Reporting Portal

6.2 A review programme is in place for each of the council’s key information 
governance related policies. In 2020 the ICT Use and Information Security 
Policy was reviewed and is in the process of being rolled out to all employees 
via the Council’s online training platform, Alliance e-ssentials. Next year will 
see the document retention schedule and information governance policy 
reviewed and refreshed. 

7. Information Governance

7.1 Good information management practices are the responsibility of everyone 
within the Council. To promote these good practices and to oversee the 
Council’s approach to good information governance is the role of the Information 

Page 262

https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/assured


Governance Group (IGG). The group was first formed in 2015 and is led by the 
Senior Information Risk Officer – Executive Director (People) & Monitoring 
Officer – supported by the Information Business Partner and focuses on:

 Policy development and dissemination
 Compliance monitoring and assurance against the Council’s policy
 The need to ensure good information governance compliance by third 

parties working with the Council
 Improving efficiency in the use of technology
 The technology and infrastructure to support good information governance

7.2 The IGG meets quarterly and considers set items such as data breaches, data 
protection impact assessments, information asset registers and progress 
against the information governance action plan at each meeting:

 Data breaches: the Council developed a new automated breach reporting 
portal, similar to the complaints portal, earlier this year. This enables 
potential breaches, however small, to be logged via the intranet or website. 
All breaches are considered by the data protection officer in the first instance 
before being reported to the IGG, and the ICO if required. Improvements to 
processes and additional training, if needed, are put in place to reduce 
further risks of breaches occurring.

 Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIAs): every project entered into by 
the council and managed through the Transformation Board has to complete 
a stage one DPIA to assess the potential impacts of the project on personal 
data. If required, the project then proceeds to a stage two DPIA, with risk 
mitigation action required and regular updates back to the IGG.

 Information Asset Registers (IARs): during 2019 the Council made 
considerable progress in developing a suite of IARs across all of its service 
areas, which map out the key data assets used by the service. These are 
comprehensive registers which have a central role in the ASSURED 
framework in helping to ensure that data is sourced legitimately, stored 
safely, used correctly, retained for a limited period, and erased when no 
longer required. The IGG oversees a programme of challenge sessions 
whereby Heads of Service present their IARs to a critical friend challenge by 
the group to ensure the data practices within the service meet the standards 
required by the Council.

 Information Governance Action Plan: the council has made good progress 
against the action plan, the main areas of focus now being a review of 
Privacy Notices; ongoing and bespoke training; preparing for the EU 
transition and its impact for GDPR; and 3rd party data assurance. Some of 
the council’s more recently completed projects are outlined below. 

8. Information Protective Marking   

8.1 The Council worked with its strategic risk partner, Zurich, in 2018 to develop 
an approach to protectively marking documents and information being shared 
internally with colleagues and externally with partners. An information guide 

Page 263



was produced and rolled out to all employees through Alliance e-ssentials with 
face to face training sessions for teams handling bulk personal data.

8.2 The move to Microsoft 365 will bring additional protective marking and data 
protection benefits, as the improved functionality will allow greater control over 
data protection and retention policies within the platform itself.

9. Privacy Notices

9.1 As part of the GDPR preparations, the Council ensured that it had a 
comprehensive privacy notice on the website as well as tailored notices within 
individual service areas where this was required. 

9.2 Since then we have also created specific pages on the website for councillor 
privacy notices that include all aspects of the member role. In the last 12 
months we have also developed an animated privacy notice deployed through 
the website to give users an immediate, visual message about why and how 
their data is used when accessing our services.  

10. Training

10.1 Relevant training for employees and councillors on information management is 
key to the success of the Council’s approach. In the run up to GDPR 
implementation a programme of externally facilitated training was devised and 
delivered. 

10.2 This has been followed up by largely in-house tailored training linked to new 
developments and new working practices such as revisions to the ICT Use 
and Information Security Policy, Protective Marking, team specific training and 
councillor data protection training as part of the induction programme following 
last year’s elections. Maintaining a programme of information governance 
related training will remain one of the IGG’s continuing actions.      

Page 264

https://www.highpeak.gov.uk/YourData


HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

The Executive

3 December 2020

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A – Vision Derbyshire – Proposition to Government

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of the report is to consider: 

 The work that has been taking place with Derbyshire councils on the 
development of a new collaborative approach to deliver non-structural 
reform across Derbyshire; and

 An update on the progress with the proposed publication of the 
Government’s Devolution and Recovery White Paper and the potential for 
local government reorganisation.

2. Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that the Executive:

 Note the progress with the work that has taken place with Derbyshire 
Councils on the development of Vision Derbyshire – a new collaborative 
approach to deliver non-structural reform across Derbyshire.

 Note the intended publication of the Government’s Devolution and Local 
Recovery White Paper and the potential implications in relation to local 
government reform.

 Approve Vision Derbyshire as the Council’s preferred option of local 
government reform in Derbyshire at this current time subject to further 
reports on confirmed proposals.

 Endorse the District Councils’ Network’s call for proposals in the 
Government’s white paper to back the success of district councils in 
delivery and not distract from the local recovery effort or reduce delivery 
capacity through forcing local government reorganisation.

 That the committee receive further reports on any confirmed proposals 
from Vision Derbyshire when available.

TITLE: Vision Derbyshire

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR Cllr Anthony McKeown – Leader

CONTACT OFFICERS: Andrew Stokes – Chief Executive

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 265

Agenda Item 11



3. Executive Summary

3.1 In early 2019 the leaders of the county, city, borough, and district councils 
began to explore the potential of non-structural reform in Derbyshire. 
Consequently, the Council embarked on a programme of work with all 
Derbyshire Councils to explore the appetite for future collaborative working. 
This was fuelled by a desire to secure better outcomes and achieve the 
greatest public value for local people and communities across Derbyshire, 

3.2 After a tender exercise in April 2019, Price Waterhouse Coopers (PwC) were 
commissioned to support the development of the approach and a programme 
of work which has been undertaken in two phases over the last eighteen 
months.

3.3 The first phase aimed to identify and explore the existing level of ambition and 
appetite of stakeholders to progress non-structural reform in Derbyshire and 
resulted in the development and agreement of:

 Principles for collaboration;
 Potential areas for future collaboration; and
 Critical success factors

3.4 Phase 2 of the programme, which commenced in March 2020, has 
subsequently resulted in the development of an ambitious approach to non-
structural reform – Vision Derbyshire - and the development of a case for 
change and a proposition to central government. Derby City Council, who 
participated in Phase 1 of the approach, declined to participate in Phase 2, 
although the opportunity to work collaboratively on the further development of 
the approach has remained open to them.

3.5 Due to the increasing speculation that the Government would set out 
proposals for local government reform in their Devolution and Recovery White 
Paper, prior to the completion of the development of the case for change, a 
letter, signed by all Derbyshire Councils, requesting a meeting to discuss the 
approach was sent to the Secretary of State on 4th September 2020. 

3.6 The Vision Derbyshire case for change was finalised in October. The 
proposition to Government is attached at Appendix A.

3.7 Vision Derbyshire is focused around four key ambitions as follows:

 Seize innovation - pioneering skills and technologies for a sustainable 
future economy

 Establish relentless ambition - creating opportunities for everyone in 
Derbyshire and making these visible:

 Build proactive communities - harnessing the energy in Derbyshire’s 
communities and empowering people to make change:

Page 266



 Live and work sustainably - committing to a zero-carbon footprint in our 
tourism, wider economy and ways of working:

3.8 The case for change identifies potential organisational benefits of £20 million 
to £66 million and wider system benefits of approximately £1.1 billion that 
could be achieved if the new approach were to be taken forward and 
supported by Government.  It reinforces the Derbyshire councils’ commitment 
to working together differently. It is recognised that working together through 
Vision Derbyshire will enable the councils to have a much bigger impact on 
the lives of Derbyshire’s people and places. 

3.9 A new formal governance model to support effective decision making has also 
been identified as being crucial in taking the approach forward. The new 
governance model would see the creation of a new Joint Committee for Vision 
Derbyshire. The format of this will depend on the areas of work chosen for 
collaboration. Proposals for a Joint Committee will emerge as the programme 
of work is established and will be subject to further reports and full Council 
approval. 

3.10 The Derbyshire leaders are in the process of identifying priority areas to 
accelerate delivery and take forward the case for change. There have been 
three pilot projects that have been implemented over the last few months in 
line with the COVID-19 pandemic response which cover communication & 
engagement and community and economic recovery. The case for change 
also includes a number of flagship projects and 2 year road map/10 year 
milestones for each ambition. Consideration is also being given to the 
identification of a small number of areas to start accelerated delivery. There 
are a number of asks and offers to central Government to support the 
realisation of the ambitions that have been identified. 

3.11 The Vision Derbyshire case for change involves HPBC committing to 
collaboration with the other Derbyshire authorities. It is accepted that this will 
take a number of forms. The early work proposed in the Vision Derbyshire 
programme will centred on strategic collaboration which in essence will 
involve active borough and district participation in shaping county wide 
strategies on challenges such as economic growth, improvement of skills etc. 
The achievement of the ambitions of Vision Derbyshire will also require 
successful administrative and policy collaboration with other public sector 
providers throughout the county and region. 

3.12 The Council’s strategic alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands is very much 
focussed on service collaboration where services provided to residents and 
businesses are delivered by one structure across the two districts. Vision 
Derbyshire does not in any way commit High Peak to move away from the 
strategic alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands. It may even provide for 
opportunities in the appropriate circumstances for both councils to further 
benefit from economies of scale in the future.  

3.13 In the October 2019 Queen’s Speech, the government pledged to publish a 
white paper setting out how it would ‘unleash regional potential’ in England. 

Page 267



The government had previously promised that the English devolution white 
paper would be published in September 2020. 

3.14 Over recent weeks it has been widely reported that the white paper has been 
shelved until next year as the government prioritises battling COVID-19. On 
12th October in a Written Ministerial Statement, the Secretary of State for 
Housing, Communities and Local Government formally issued invitations to 
principal councils in Cumbria, North Yorkshire and Somerset, including 
associated existing unitary councils, to submit proposals for moving to unitary 
local government. In the statement he also confirmed that the Government will 
not impose top-down restructuring of local government and will continue to 
follow a locally-led approach for unitarisation where councils can develop 
proposals which have strong local support. 

3.15 In September the District Councils Network (DCN) published “Power in Place, 
devolution and districts driving our recovery”, which is the first in a series of 
reports that they will publish before the Devolution and Local Recovery White 
Paper. The paper puts a number of proposals to government and had two 
accompanying messages: 

 Devolution should back the success of districts in delivery. It should not 
distract from the local recovery effort or reduce delivery capacity through 
forcing reorganisation into a less local, less agile, less responsive local 
government pushed by interests wanting county unitary councils 
everywhere; and

 Local governance is a local matter, places must be free to decide how to 
organise services and to progress any kind of reform only where there is 
significant local agreement.

3.16 A key principle which has emerged through work on Vision Derbyshire is the 
recognition that the current two-tier structure of local government across the 
county can be strengthened to significantly improve outcomes for 
communities. It is considered that Vision Derbyshire will provide a credible 
alternative to structural reform. It is therefore recommended that Executive 
approve Vision Derbyshire as the Council’s preferred option for local 
government reform at the current time.   

3.17 It is also proposed that the Executive endorse the DCN’s call for proposals in 
the impending government white paper to back the success of district councils 
in delivery and not distract from the local recovery effort or reduce delivery 
capacity through forcing reorganisation.

4.      How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The Vision Derbyshire approach will potentially have a significant impact on 
the achievement of a number of the Council’s corporate priorities

5.      Options and Analysis

Page 268



5.1 There are no detailed options to consider at this stage – these will need to be 
evaluated fully as the programme of work begins to emerge 

6.  Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
None

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
None

6.4 Financial Considerations
There are no direct financial implications at this stage

6.5 Legal
The establishment of joint committee arrangements will need to considered 
and approved at full Council 

16.6 Climate Change
Collaboration on climate change has been identified as one of the key areas 
for potential future focus for Vision Derbyshire 

6.7 External Consultation
None at this stage

6.8  Risk Assessment
The emerging programme of projects that emerges from Vision Derbyshire 
will be subject to a full risk analysis
 

ANDREW P STOKES
Chief Executive

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

“Power in Place, devolution and 
districts driving our recovery” -
District Councils Network (DCN) – 
September 2020

‘Bigger is not better: the evidenced 
case for keeping ‘local’ government’ – 
DCN October 2020

Andrew P Stokes
Chief Executive

6.4

Page 269



7 Introduction and Background

7.1 The main focus of this report is to consider the Council’s commitment to 
Vision Derbyshire, which is an ambitious proposal for non-structural reform 
that has been developed over the last eighteen months by the leaders of the 
local authorities across Derbyshire.  

7.2 Local authorities across England are awaiting the publication of the 
Government’s Devolution and Recovery White Paper. It is anticipated that this 
potentially will bring significant benefits to areas of the country, including the 
East Midlands, through the Government’s commitment to the ‘levelling up’ 
agenda.  

7.3 There has been lots of debate about contents of the white paper and the 
required structures to secure devolution deals in individual areas. In the 
summer the Government were indicating that the most beneficial devolution 
deals would be given to areas that collaborated through combined authorities 
with an elected mayor. They also stated their preference for structural reform 
of local authorities through the creation of smaller numbers of unitary 
authorities to create a foundation for the creation of combined authorities. 

7.4 This report also sets out the latest position with regard the publication of the 
white paper.

8 Vision Derbyshire

8.1 In early 2019 the leaders of the county, city, borough and district councils 
began to explore the potential of non-structural reform in Derbyshire. It was 
agreed that that a new approach should look beyond traditional partnerships, 
towards a new collective and ambitious vision and model of collaboration, 
integration and shared leadership.

8.2 It was accepted that moving to a more collaborative approach could take a 
number of forms and would potentially include the delegation of powers and / 
or shared governance arrangements as a key mechanism for taking this work 
forward where appropriate. Collaboration could result in the improvement 
of outcomes and operating efficiencies in a number of ways: 

 Service Collaboration - Functions delivered by a service on behalf of 
multiple authorities;

 Strategic Collaboration - Active district participation in shaping county 
wide strategies. External incentives (growth, skills money, devolution); and

 Wider Public Sector Reform - Successful administrative and policy 
collaboration will provide a strong platform for local government to lead 
wider local public sector reform including deeper health and social care 
integration and cross public sector asset and workforce planning

Page 270



8.3 Consequently, the Council embarked on a programme of work with all 
Derbyshire councils to explore the appetite for future collaborative working. 
This was fuelled by a desire to secure better outcomes and achieve the 
greatest public value for local people and communities across Derbyshire, 

8.4 After a tender exercise in April 2019, Price Waterhouse Coopers (PwC), were 
commissioned to support the development of the approach and a programme 
of work which has been undertaken in two phases over the last eighteen 
months.

Phase 1 

8.5 All ten Councils in Derbyshire – Derbyshire County Council, Derby City 
Council and the eight district and borough councils – worked together during 
the first phase to identify shared priorities and agree to strategically 
collaborate on the improvement of outcomes for people and places. This 
phase aimed to identify and explore the existing level of ambition and appetite 
of stakeholders to progress non-structural reform in Derbyshire and resulted in 
the development and agreement of:

 Principles for collaboration - to guide future working such as improve 
outcomes, speak with one voice, better coordination, provide a visible 
alternative to unitarisation and deliver to be sustainable 

 Areas for future collaboration - to provide a potential focus for future 
working such as climate change, tourism, skills and employment, social 
mobility, economic prosperity

 Critical success factors - to drive a step change in approach/ways of 
working to accelerate a truly different model of local government in 
Derbyshire, including working at pace and building on momentum, working 
as a collective in a different physical and mental space from business as 
usual and strengthening and role modelling collaborative and collective 
leadership behaviours.

8.6 The work undertaken as part of the first phase marked a statement to develop 
a fundamentally new way of working together and to deliver differently for the 
people of Derbyshire. Following successful completion of Phase 1 the 
councils leaders agreed that further work to turn the vision and ambition into a 
viable alternative to structural reform through a second phase was required. 

8.7 Derby City Council, who participated in Phase 1 of the approach, declined to 
participate in Phase 2, although the opportunity to work collaboratively on the 
further development of the approach has remained open to them.

Phase 2 

8.8 Phase 2 of the programme, which commenced in March 2020, has 
subsequently resulted in the development of an ambitious approach to non-
structural reform – Vision Derbyshire - and the development of a case for 
change and proposition to central government. This phase of the programme 
has coincided with the onset of the recent coronavirus pandemic which has 

Page 271



provided even greater incentives for the local authorities to work 
collaboratively to support recovery and renewal activity across the county. 

8.9 A high-level proposition to Government has also been developed alongside 
the case for change as a statement of intent from Councils for Minsters and 
senior officers at the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG). This statement of intent is a key step in the engagement process 
with Government in respect of the Derbyshire councils’ wish to take Vision 
Derbyshire forward.

8.10 Due to the increasing speculation that the Government would set out 
proposals for local government reform in their Devolution and Recovery White 
Paper, prior to the completion of the development of the case for change, a 
letter, signed by all Derbyshire Councils requesting a meeting to discuss the 
approach, was sent to the Secretary of State on 4th September 2020. 

8.11 The letter states the leaders’ belief that Vision Derbyshire provides a viable 
alternative to unitarisation and that, with additional powers, resources, 
freedoms and flexibilities, the authorities will be able to implement plans at 
speed, focussing on outcomes for residents, businesses and communities 
rather than costly and time consuming structural reform.  It also confirms that 
approach proposed will strongly support the regional ambitions for a 
streamlined and coherent East Midlands and align to the imminent Devolution 
and Recovery White Paper.  

8.12 The Vision Derbyshire case for change was finalised in October. The 
proposition to Government is attached at Appendix A.

8.13 Vision Derbyshire is focused around four key ambitions as follows:

 Seize innovation - pioneering skills and technologies for a sustainable 
future economy

 Establish relentless ambition - creating opportunities for everyone in 
Derbyshire and making these visible:

 Build proactive communities - harnessing the energy in Derbyshire’s 
communities and empowering people to make change:

 Live and work sustainably - committing to a zero-carbon footprint in our 
tourism, wider economy and ways of working:

8.14 The case for change is a compelling, shared argument that a collective 
commitment to strategic collaboration across the councils which will realise 
significant benefits and is the most effective way to improve outcomes for 
Derbyshire people and places. At this stage it is not a detailed business case 
or delivery plan.

8.15 A number of enablers to support and embed collaboration, such as 
leadership, culture, technology, workforce, customers, and assets have been 
identified as key components of the approach. These will underpin the 
potential organisational (£20 million to £66 million) and wider system (£1.08 

Page 272



billion) benefits that could be achieved if the new approach were to be taken 
forward and supported by Government.  

8.16 The case for change reinforces the Derbyshire councils’ commitment to 
working together differently. It is recognised that working together through 
Vision Derbyshire will enable the councils to have a much bigger impact on 
the lives of Derbyshire’s people and places. The ambition cannot be achieved 
by individual organisations working in silos. There is a commitment to 
consider the whole place and all tiers of government when addressing 
systemic challenges, collaborating by default to:

 Be outcomes-focused in all collaboration, maintaining focus on people and 
places, not organisational boundaries;

 Collaborate on a regional, county-wide and local footprint, blending 
approaches to achieve outcomes in a multi-faceted way, and balancing 
local delivery with delivery at scale;

 Not simply do the same activities together but will innovate actively 
considering the role of the individual council in relation to partners and 
communities in delivering outcomes;

 Allow the councils to speak with one voice as Derbyshire in all forums, 
making the offer clear;

 Share resources, responsibility and decision making, and delivery of 
services; and

 Prioritise choices consistently, making better use of our scarce resources.

8.17 The approach confirms that the councils must transform how they work both 
as individual organisations and as a collective and commits to a fundamental 
transformation of ways of working to enable effective strategic collaboration. 
This will involve:

 Developing an organisational culture where everyone collaborates by 
default across all councils;

 Unifying the approach to customer service and experience across all 
councils in Derbyshire ensuring a consistent experience for all residents;

 Aligning technological and physical assets to enhance efficiency and make 
best use of scarce resources;

 Integrating business insight and performance measurement information to 
develop a shared basis for decisions and evaluation;

 Sharing career and training opportunities across the workforce of all 
councils, and aligning incentives;

 Taking advantage of economies of scale in commissioning and 
procurement, sharing negotiation and contracts to get best value for 
money for people in Derbyshire;

 Developing strategy and policy collaboratively, recognising there will be 
instances where a localised approach is needed; and

 Viewing organisational transformation as a means to an end in achieving 
better outcomes for people and places in Derbyshire.

Page 273



8.18 A new formal governance model to support effective decision making has also 
been identified as being crucial in taking the approach forward. The new 
governance model would see the creation of a new Joint Committee for Vision 
Derbyshire. The format of this committee will depend on the areas chosen for 
collaboration. This will emerge as the programme of work is established. 

8.19 The leaders are in the process of identifying priority areas to accelerate 
delivery and take forward case for change. There have been three pilot 
projects that have been implemented over the last few months in line with the 
COVID-19 pandemic response. These provide for examples of how issues 
can be tackled collaboratively moving forward. The pilots are as follows:  

 Communication / Engagement
 Community Recovery
 Economic Recovery

8.20 The case for change includes flagship projects and 2 year road map/10 year 
milestones for each ambition. The flagship projects are detailed below:

Seize innovation
 Partnerships in-place with education institutions to develop knowledge-

based innovation, support new industries, and raise skill levels, and with 
businesses to incubate and harness SME innovation.  

 Agreement with our regional counterparts on the key future industries for 
our place, and a corresponding Derbyshire economic strategy that attracts 
inward investment in key technologies and innovation.  

Establish relentless ambition
 Partnerships with academic institutions, and have mapped innovative 

career pathways for young people in Derbyshire.  
 A Social Mobility Commission, with agreed county-wide initiatives to work 

on with partners, aimed at raising young people’s aspirations.  

Build proactive communities
 A joint framework for how councils and communities work together, and 

will have key community assets mapped across the whole county. 
 A framework for learning setup at the local, county and regional levels to 

adopt best-practices and share successes.  
 County-wide strategy to support community-led adult education  

Live and work sustainably
 Joint strategic housing plan across the county based on modelling of future 

population demand and industries.  
 Green public transport gateways developed to access the national park.  
 Jointly prioritised procurement of green technologies.  
 A regional forum set up to understand how to tackle climate change across 

the regions.  
 Incubation spaces for green entrepreneurs to help them obtain 

grants/funding. 

Page 274



8.21 Consideration is also being made to identify a small number of areas to 
commence accelerated delivery. The overall approach will move Vision 
Derbyshire into implementation phase, support the development of a team 
and develop future governance arrangements

8.22 A number of ‘asks’ and offers to central Government to support the realisation 
of ambitions have been identified. The ‘asks’ request specific freedoms, 
flexibilities and resources to deliver identified priorities, whilst the offers outline 
the role the partnership will play in delivering better, more ambitious outcomes 
for less resource.

8.23 With a shared commitment and strong governance across all Derbyshire 
councils, the case for change argues that, collectively, the councils can rapidly 
transform the way they work together and what they offer to local people.  At 
the heart of the case for change is the belief that strong commitment to 
strategic collaboration can improve outcomes and realise financial 
efficiencies, delivering the benefits of reorganisation without the administrative 
burden, financial cost, time delays and political upheaval.

8.24 As the Vision Derbyshire programme of work develops there will be the need 
for the Council to consider all of the proposals in some detail. This will include 
the consideration of any proposed joint committee arrangements, which would 
also require approval by a full council meeting. 

9 Impact of Vision Derbyshire on the Strategic Alliance with Staffordshire 
Moorlands DC 

9.1 The Vision Derbyshire case for change involves HPBC committing to 
collaboration with the other Derbyshire authorities. It is accepted that this will 
take a number of forms. 

9.2 The strategic alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands is very much focussed on 
service collaboration where services provided to residents and businesses are 
delivered by one structure across the two districts.

9.3 The early work proposed in the Vision Derbyshire programme will not be 
focussed on service collaboration. The initial focus and flagship projects are 
centred on strategic collaboration which in essence will involve active district 
participation in shaping county wide strategies on challenges such as 
economic growth, improvement of skills etc.

9.4 The achievement of the ambitions of Vision Derbyshire will also require 
successful administrative and policy collaboration with other public sector 
providers throughout the county and region. If successful this will lead to 
deeper health and social care integration, joined up education and skills 
provision, and cross public sector asset and workforce planning which in turn 
will result in enhanced outcomes and significant financial benefits.

Page 275



9.5 Staffordshire Moorlands has arrangements in its own county and region for 
strategic collaboration and wider cross public sector working in this form which 
will not be impacted by Vision Derbyshire.

9.6 Vision Derbyshire may result in service collaboration amongst the districts and 
boroughs although it is accepted that this will more than likely occur in clusters 
as opposed to being pan-county. There are already examples where districts 
in Derbyshire collaborate in this way including in North East Derbyshire and 
Bolsover where there is already a strategic alliance with significant shared 
service arrangements.

9.7 Vision Derbyshire does not in any way commit High Peak to move away from 
the strategic alliance with Staffordshire Moorlands. It may even provide for 
opportunities in the appropriate circumstances for both councils to further 
benefit from economies of scale in the future through service collaboration.  

9.8 The existence of the strategic alliance has been factored into the assessment 
of the organisational savings made in the Vision Derbyshire case for change. 
For example, the assessment of potential financial benefits from future shared 
management of services amongst Derbyshire districts and boroughs excludes 
High Peak’s costs in order to recognise that these have already been 
significantly reduced through the shared arrangements with Staffordshire 
Moorlands.         

10 Devolution and Local Recovery White Paper / Local Government 
Reorganisation 

10.1 In the October 2019 Queen’s Speech, the government pledged to publish a 
white paper setting out how it would ‘unleash regional potential’ in England. In 
the 2019 Conservative election manifesto, this commitment was reiterated, 
alongside a commitment to deliver “full devolution across England…so that 
every part of our country has the power to shape its own destiny.”

10.2 The government subsequently promised that the English devolution white 
paper would be published in September 2020. Speaking at the LGA annual 
conference in July, Simon Clarke MP, the then Minister for Regional Growth 
and Local Government, confirmed the Government’s intention to press ahead 
with the publication of their white paper on devolution and local recovery this 
autumn. He stated that ‘the white paper will connect local recovery with 
levelling up which will encompass a much wider and more radical re-think of 
the way that communities are supported at a local level’. Their intention is to 
reduce regional inequalities.

10.3 Whilst the formal content of the White Paper is still not yet known, there was 
widespread speculation that the Government would set out its proposals for 
local government structural reform in England along with setting out the role 
which greater devolution will play in national recovery. 

Page 276



10.4 More recently it has been widely reported that the white paper on devolution 
and local recovery has been shelved until next year as the government 
prioritises battling COVID-19. 

10.5 In October in a Written Ministerial Statement, the Secretary of State for 
Housing, Communities and Local Government formally issued invitations to 
principal councils in Cumbria, North Yorkshire and Somerset, including 
associated existing unitary councils, to submit proposals for moving to unitary 
local government. 

10.6 In the statement, the Government’s policy position on the issue of local 
government reorganisation was reconfirmed. It was highlighted that the 
government accepts that locally-led changes to the structure of local 
government, whether in the form of unitarisation or district mergers, can be an 
appropriate means of improving local service delivery, saving taxpayers’ 
money and improving local accountability. The Secretary of State confirmed 
that restructuring is only one of the different ways that councils can streamline 
and make savings. Joint working with other councils and partners can take a 
variety of forms ranging from adopting joint plans, setting up joint committees, 
sharing back office services or special purpose vehicles to promote 
regeneration. Such joint working may extend across county boundaries. 
Councils’ general power of competence under the Localism Act 2011 makes it 
easier for councils to get on with sharing services.

10.7 The Secretary of State also confirmed that the Government will not impose 
top-down restructuring of local government and will continue to follow a 
locally-led approach for unitarisation where councils can develop proposals 
which have strong local support. He reiterated that this has been the 
Government’s consistent approach since 2010, when top-down restructuring 
was stopped through the Local Government Act 2010. When considering 
reform, those in an area will know what is best – the very essence of localism 
to which the Government remains committed. 

11 District Councils Network’s Position

11.1 Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, HPBC has been working closely with 
other district councils through the District Council Network (DCN) to share 
experiences and to obtain support in the challenges faced in respect of the 
required response and the preparations for recovery.

11.2 These networking events have also provided the opportunity to discuss a 
number of significant policy changes that have been proposed by the 
Government throughout the pandemic period e.g. the changes made to the 
local planning process and the consultations that have taken place.

11.3 The Government’s emerging position on the impending white paper and the 
announcements in July of its intension to link the devolution proposals to the 
recovery from COVID-19 focused the attention of the network to establish a 
position on the issue.   

Page 277



11.4 Consequently on 1st September the DCN published “Power in Place, 
devolution and districts driving our recovery”, which is the first in a series of 
reports that they will publish before the Devolution and Local Recovery White 
Paper. In publishing the paper the DCN issued two accompanying messages: 

 Devolution should back the success of districts in delivery. It should not 
distract from the local recovery effort or reduce delivery capacity through 
forcing reorganisation into a less local, less agile, less responsive local 
government pushed by interests wanting county unitary councils 
everywhere; and

 Local governance is a local matter, places must be free to decide how to 
organise services and to progress any kind of reform only where there is 
significant local agreement.

11.5 The paper makes 7 recommendations to Government calling for the White 
Paper to:  

 
 Deliver genuine devolution that moves quickly to drive local growth; 
 Retain and build on the local capacity to deliver;
 Empower real-world economies;
 Continue to anchor local government in local communities;
 Reject false arguments that bigger local government is better or cheaper 

local government;
 Support strategic leadership across wider functional economic areas; and
 Introduce an upper limit for the size of new unitary councils, in line with the 

principle of electoral equality.
 
11.6 On 15th October the DCN published a second report on devolution and local 

government reorganisation, ‘Bigger is not better: the evidenced case for 
keeping ‘local’ government’. 

11.7 The report from Professor Colin Copus, Professor Steve Leach, and 
Associate Professor Alistair Jones at De Montfort University provides a 
rigorous assessment of over 300 pieces of independent research from around 
the world, which is concludes that:

 
 Size of councils does not make a difference in quality or efficiency of 

services; and
 Increases in the scale of councils does generally lead to falling public trust, 

falling engagement, and a reduced sense of belonging to their local area 
and council;

 
11.8 The report looks at a range of other issues, including a response to the 

County Council Network’s position by summarising 10 misconceptions pushed 
by voices wanting to create county unitary councils everywhere.

Page 278



12 Proposed Way Forward

12.1 A key principle which has emerged through work on Vision Derbyshire is the 
recognition that the current two-tier structure of local government across the 
county can be strengthened to significantly improve outcomes for 
communities. Given the national focus on the ‘levelling up’ agenda, there is a 
pressing need to develop a new model of local government for Derbyshire 
that could meet all of the requirements to provide a platform for the planned 
devolution of powers from central government.

12.2 It is considered that Vision Derbyshire will provide a credible alternative to 
structural reform. It is believed that this approach would provide significant 
improvements in outcomes and will result in large scale system and 
organisational benefits without the cost and major disruption of reorganisation 
of the local authorities in Derbyshire.   

12.3 The latest statement made by the Secretary State has made it clear that 
restructuring is only one of the different ways that councils can streamline and 
make savings. It is therefore expected that the Vision Derbyshire approach 
will be welcomed as a credible way forward. 

12.4 It is therefore recommended that Executive approve Vision Derbyshire as its 
preferred option for local government reform at the current time.   

12.5 Once a programme of work for Vision Derbyshire has been developed more 
detailed reports will need to be considered by the Council to assess the 
implications.

12.6 It is also important that the Council recognises the work undertaken by the 
District Councils Network (DCN) in the production of its report ‘Power in Place, 
devolution and districts driving our recovery’. It is therefore proposed that the 
Executive endorse the network’s call for proposals in the impending 
government white paper to back the success of district councils in delivery 
and not distract from the local recovery effort or reduce delivery capacity 
through forcing reorganisation.

Page 279



This page is intentionally left blank



Vision Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

Vision 
Derbyshire

1

A united commitment to strategic collaboration 

between Vision Derbyshire councils to improve 

outcomes for people and places.

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

Page 281



Vision Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

Vision
Derbyshire

A new model for local government

Vision Derbyshire provides an alternative to 

unitarisation. Local government structural reform can 

be a disruptive and lengthy process, requiring upfront 

investment of time and resources to agree and build 

new organisational structures. We believe we can 

achieve better outcomes for people and places in 

Derbyshire via this alternative, non-structural reform 

route.  We have the political commitment from our 

Leaders across both political parties to make this new 

model a reality.

An ambitious opportunity to improve 

outcomes

Our ambition for Derbyshire, based on extensive 

research, provides an opportunity to fundamentally 

change the lives and outcomes for people and places 

in Derbyshire.

An ability to speak with one voice

We recognise the importance of us being able to 

speak with one voice to our residents in order to 

provide them a clear and consistent customer 

experience. Vision Derbyshire will also enable us to 

speak with one shared voice regionally and 

nationally, and have greater impact in these forums.

A sustainable model for the future

Vision Derbyshire will make our councils more 

sustainable with an estimated financial benefit to 

Vision Derbyshire councils in the region of £20.0-

65.9m. The model will also impact the wider system 

(Derbyshire’s economy, public sector and 

communities) in the region of an estimated £1.08bn.

2

Vision Derbyshire is our shared commitment across nine 

county, district and borough councils*, to strategically 

collaborate to improve outcomes for people and places, speak 

with one voice as a county, and coordinate our resources better 

and more sustainably.

*Amber Valley Borough Council, Bolsover District Council, Chesterfield 

Borough Council, Derbyshire County Council, Derbyshire Dales District 

Council, Erewash Borough Council, High Peak Borough Council, North East 

Derbyshire District Council, South Derbyshire District Council.

Page 282



Vision Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

Vision 
Derbyshire’s impact

We will enable efficiencies and improved 

effectiveness for Vision Derbyshire councils 

including:

● Enabling a simpler and more coherent 

experience for customers; 

● Improving staff satisfaction through removing 

barriers for staff which will enable 

collaboration, efficiency and effectiveness; 

● Increasing service performance through a 

transformed culture; 

● Enabling a stronger local government voice 

across the county and at a national scale. 

3

Through fulfilling the ambition of Vision Derbyshire, and 

transforming our ways of working together, we will have a 

significant impact on people, places and our organisations.

3Vision Derbyshire

£1.08bn
in wider system benefits for 

Derbyshire

£20-66m
in estimated financial benefits for 

Vision Derbyshire councils

For people and places, Vision Derbyshire will: 

1. Create a fair society for Derbyshire where 

everyone has opportunities

2. Enable people to better manage their quality 

of life, health and wellbeing

1. Exceed climate change targets for people 

…..

2. Develop an inclusive and diverse economy 

for Derbyshire

1. Empower communities to drive sustainable 

change

Page 283



Vision Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION
DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

Page 284



Vision Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

A catalyst 
for change

We have conducted extensive data analysis to identify our current strengths and weaknesses, alongside 

opportunities and threats. This has enabled us to understand our own Derbyshire Context.

We recognise that as Vision Derbyshire councils we 

share a responsibility to the residents of Derbyshire, 

and to each other. Across the nine councils in 

Derbyshire we have a track record of collaborating to 

improve outcomes for people and help to make our 

councils more sustainable. We are committed to 

building on these foundations, including creating 

shared services for our residents and shared 

resources for our organisations, in order to further 

improve outcomes for people and place. 

This commitment has fuelled our Vision 

Derbyshire ambition.

5

We know where we deliver positive outcomes, but we also 

recognise where we could do more for people and places.

33.6m
Derbyshire has a large Visitor 

Economy welcoming 33.6m visitors 

and generating £1.7bn in 2017.

13%
A total of 13% of LSOAs 

in Derbyshire fall within 

the most deprived 20% 

nationally.

Reflecting the national picture

These outcomes need to be understood alongside the wider national picture. For 

example, we recognise that Covid has the potential to widen the inequalities in 

terms of deprivation. However, Covid has also highlighted the power of our 

communities, as they have rallied to support one another during the pandemic. We 

also recognise the potential impact of Brexit, and what this may mean for the future 

of Derbyshire's economy. Furthermore, we understand the current climate crisis, 

and how we in Derbyshire need to demonstrate our councils’, businesses’ and 

residents’ commitment to tackling this. We have built this context into our 

understanding of the lives of people in Derbyshire.

73% of people in 

Derbyshire feel ‘very safe’ 

or ‘fairly safe’.

Houses are 19% 

more affordable in 

Derbyshire than 

nationally.

Derbyshire has strong business 

survival rates of 64% of firms in 

existence after 3 years compared 

with 61.4% for England.

The manufacturing 

industry accounts for 

18.9% of employment 

in Derbyshire.

Page 285



Vision Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

Building Vision 
Derbyshire

Since Summer 2019, we have been collectively 

building a shared commitment whilst designing a new 

model of local government for Derbyshire. We 

believe we can achieve more effectively and 

efficiently together, rather than apart, and we have 

already begun working in this way. The recent 

coronavirus crisis has further strengthened our view 

to change and demonstrated the effectiveness of our 

model.

We have:

● Designed an aspirational ambition for 

Derbyshire based on analysis of current 

state and future trends which sets out the 

outcomes we want to achieve for people and 

places

● Made a shared commitment to 

fundamentally transform our ways of 

working including designing a new model of 

governance

● Designed a series of flagship priorities to 

demonstrate the immediate value of Vision 

Derbyshire

● Demonstrated the potential success of 

Vision Derbyshire through applying our new 

ethos and way of working to tackling the 

homeless challenge as a collective during 

Covid. We also have launched 3 cross-

council pilots to demonstrate Vision 

Derbyshire’s impact across key areas of: 

economic recovery, community recovery and 

engagement and communications.

6

We have taken time to build a strong commitment to Vision 

Derbyshire. This provides a once in a lifetime opportunity to 

transform outcomes for people and places of Derbyshire.

6Vision Derbyshire

Page 286



Vision Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

An alternative
to unitarisation

Other councils aim to achieve holistic place-based 

working, financial efficiencies and improved 

outcomes through local government reorganisation. 

We believe that by focusing on strategic 

collaboration, Derbyshire can improve outcomes and 

realise financial efficiencies, delivering the benefits of 

reorganisation without the administrative burden, 

financial cost, time delays and political upheaval of 

structural reorganisation. 

Vision Derbyshire can demonstrate a compelling 

case against the government requirements for 

structural reorganisation:

● Improved outcomes and services

Our ambition sets out 5 key outcomes which we 

will relentlessly work to achieve:

○ A fair society where everyone has 

opportunities

○ Climate change targets exceeded

○ An inclusive and diverse economy

○ People can manage their quality of life, 

health and wellbeing

○ Committees drive sustainable change

We will make progress against these outcomes in 

the immediate, medium and long term.

● Value for money and efficiency

We are committed to transforming how our 

organisations operate, including our service 

delivery and enablers, in order to create 

efficiencies and better value for money, whilst also 

improving outcomes.

● Stronger and more accountable leadership

We are developing new governance processes to 

ensure we are collectively accountable. We will 

also enable stronger strategic and local leadership 

which we can flex between dependent on the 

outcomes we are looking to address.

● Delivery financial savings

We will save our councils an estimated £20-65m 

by creating a more efficient and sustainable model 

for the future.

● Broad stakeholder support

We have strong commitment from across the both 

sides of our political leadership to make Vision 

Derbyshire a reality.

● Immediate and long-term sustainability

Vision Derbyshire’s more efficient model will 

provide us sustainability in the immediate and 

long term with benefits being released throughout 

the next 5 years.

7

Vision Derbyshire is a viable alternative to structural 

reorganisation in local government.

Page 287



Vision Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

Our ambition 
for Derbyshire

Seize innovation

● Derbyshire will seize 

innovation to pioneer the skills 

and technologies of the future.

● The economy is diverse and 

supports ambitions regionally, 

county-wide and locally.

● People seek out and create 

innovative opportunities.

● Derbyshire pioneers new 

industries of the future and 

grows the skills to support 

them.

● Businesses in Derbyshire are 

at the forefront of decisions, 

and are aligned to our 

outcomes. 

Establish relentless ambition

● Derbyshire will be the home to 

ambitious and empowered 

communities.

● Every young person in Derbyshire has 

opportunities which inspire them.

● People in Derbyshire have relevant, 

future-proofed expertise and skills.

● All children in Derbyshire start school 

with a good level of development.

● Derbyshire is a high-knowledge 

economy with plenty of quaternary job 

opportunities.

● Businesses want to invest, innovate 

and grow in Derbyshire first. 

8

A fair society 

where 

everyone has 

opportunities

Climate 

change 

targets 

exceeded

An inclusive 

and diverse 

economy

Vision Derbyshire is about going 

beyond organisational boundaries to 

work for Derbyshire as a whole.

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

Page 288



Vision Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

9

Build proactive communities

● The energy and proactivity that 

exists in Derbyshire is seized and 

emulated in future initiatives.

● Derbyshire's communities are 

self-sufficient and take on 

responsibility for change.

● All voices in Derbyshire are heard 

equally.

● Derbyshire has rich, shared 

insight into its communities which 

inform decisions.

● People are informed and able to 

make positive lifestyle choices. 

Live and work sustainably

● Embedding balance and 

sustainability in it approaches, 

allowing Derbyshire to 

withstand future challenges 

and create room to grow.

● Derbyshire's housing drives 

good wellbeing and prosperity 

in communities.

● Everyone in Derbyshire 

makes conscious choices to 

live and work sustainably.

● Everything we do aligns with 

our climate change agenda.

● Derbyshire is a destination for 

net zero tourism which has a 

positive impact on 

communities.

People can manage 

their quality of life, 

health and wellbeing

Communities drive 

sustainable change 

The Vision Derbyshire ambition sets out a stretching, future-focused, 

holistic commitment to improve key aspects of life for people in 

Derbyshire. Our ambition takes into account Derbyshire’s unique 

features as a place, the strengths of our local people, and combines 

this with our understanding of the key opportunities and threats we 

face externally.  

Page 289



Vision Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

BREAK SLIDE- Photograph of Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

10

Page 290



Vision Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

We know that to make Vision 

Derbyshire a reality we will need 

to commit to working 

differently. Our ambition cannot 

be achieved in siloes. We will 

fundamentally transform our 

ways of working to enable 

effective strategic collaboration 

by default.

11

Page 291



Vision Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

Delivering Vision Derbyshire-
A new model

Our model allows us to blend working at a hyper local level with a large strategic level. We will collaborate at three 

levels: regional/national, county-wide or local place level, depending on the nature of the outcome we are looking to 

improve. 

In adopting this way of working, Derbyshire can blend strategic, county-wide and local approaches to tackle 

outcomes in a multi-faceted way, and maintain focus on people and places, not organisational boundaries. 

12

Vision Derbyshire councils are committed to collaborating at all 

levels in order to most effectively improve outcomes for people 

and place.

Vision Derbyshire

Regional and national 

collaboration:

County-wide collaboration: Local place collaboration:

This level of collaboration is 

where outcomes will be 

addressed which impact people 

across the wider region or 

nationally, and there is a need for 

collective regional/national activity 

and effort in responding to this. 

This level provides an opportunity 

for Derbyshire to have a collective 

clear voice and stand point in 

regional decisions, and in national 

forums.

This level of collaboration is 

where Derbyshire benefits from 

shared effort across the county, 

district and borough councils. This 

includes a majority of districts 

collaborating, sometimes with the 

County Council, to tackle 

outcomes affecting residents 

Derbyshire-wide. This level 

provides an opportunity for 

Derbyshire to adopt a 

coordinated, strategic response to 

county-wide outcomes.

This level of collaboration entails 

activity delivered at a local level 

directly with and for residents. 

This includes collaboration across 

3 or fewer district/borough 

councils, potentially involving the 

County Council on specific place-

based issues, as well as activity 

specific to a single 

district/borough such as the local 

application of a county-wide 

initiative.

Page 292



Vision Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

Image

13

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

13

Page 293



Vision Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

14

Delivering Vision Derbyshire-
Our flagship priorities

Whilst Vision Derbyshire’s ambition is long term, we will seek to 

have immediate impact with our flagship priorities. 

Seize innovation

Laying the foundations to future-proof Derbyshire's 

economy, recognising the changing local and 

national context:

● Work with businesses and educational 

institutions to identify the priority industries 

for Derbyshire aligned to government 

agendas. We will also align our agenda for 

adults skills to these industries

● Make strategic investment in new 

technologies and industries.

● Closer working with partners, including the 

LEP, on our mutually beneficial priorities

● A consortium to provide a source of all 

knowledge for potential inward investments.

Build proactive communities

Building a framework for a different relationship with 

communities in Derbyshire by:

● Mapping assets in communities county-wide.

● Creating a framework through which decision 

making and budgets can be devolved.

● Building on the foundations of Thriving 

Communities to tell the ‘story’ of communities

● Create a new truly participative model for 

working with the communities

● Getting support from a wider group of 

partners in the place, recognising shared 

benefit across multiple organisations.

Live and work sustainably

Sustainable and green strategic spatial planning 

Derbyshire-wide, including housing and transport:

● Develop a sustainable spatial vision for 

Derbyshire which incorporates housing and 

transport and minimises the carbon impact.

● Opportunity for a single public transport 

system in Derbyshire which maximises 

sustainable travel means

● Aligning the spatial plan to the priority 

industries, offer to young people and 

community assets/needs, encouraging 

people to stay in Derbyshire to live and work.

● Aligning council planning functions.

Establish relentless ambition

Raising aspirations by transforming the offer for 

young people in Derbyshire through: 

● A new social mobility commission with 

partners from across the county

● A reimagined county-wide apprenticeship 

scheme.

● Partnerships with businesses which align to 

the Derbyshire’s future industries

● Targeted support to people who have less 

access and visibility of opportunities, 

including those impacted by Covid.

● Aligning to the priority industries identified 

through ‘seize innovation’.

Page 294



Vision Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

Live and work sustainably

● Strategic planning powers for spatial planning on 

a Derbyshire-wide footprint, including housing 

development and transport

● Power over transport franchises to introduce 

smart ticketing and sustainable options on a 

Derbyshire-wide footprint 

● Direct investment in housing development

● Powers to raise capital through investment loans 

to support development.

Establish relentless ambition

● Power over criteria for apprenticeship 

schemes to reflect the businesses we have 

and the diversity we want to achieve in our 

economy

● Flexibility in use of education/skills funding to 

subsidise courses and increase uptake in 

innovative courses - area based review for 

Derbyshire.

Seize innovation

● Devolved powers for post-16 skills agenda

● 5G connectivity investment

● Resources, funding and expertise from 

Government to guide and support strategic 

investment in key new industries.

Delivering Vision Derbyshire-
Our asks 

15

In order to deliver Vision Derbyshire we will need support from 

Central Government. The nature of this support will evolve as 

Vision Derbyshire progresses so it is important we maintain an 

open dialogue.

Build proactive communities

● Greater devolution of Public Health responsibilities 

at the local level and devolution of all public health 

functions including those under section 7A of the 

Health and Social Care Act 2012.

● Additional investment to pump prime public health 

aspirations, building on our successful localities 

programme and Thriving Communities approach, 

to reduce health inequalities.

● Assurances around EU prosperity funding

Overarching asks:

● Support for Vision Derbyshire from Government - As Vision Derbyshire is a new model, and a alternative to 

unitarisation we are asking the government to recognise this and support us in achieving our ambitions.

● An opportunity to continue a dialogue around our asks as Vision Derbyshire evolves - As we continue to 

progress Vision Derbyshire’s flagship priorities and the wider ambition, there may be further asks in terms of 

finances, support or power. We would value the opportunity to keep an open dialogue with government for 

when these discussions are needed.

Our asks relating to our flagship priorities:

Page 295



Vision Derbyshire

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

Vision Derbyshire is
transformative

Vision Derbyshire is truly transformative because:

It puts people at the heart of ambition

Vision Derbyshire’s ambition brings together 

components across organisational or departmental 

boundaries as we recognise their collective impact on 

people and places.

There is power in numbers

This ambition could not be achieved by one organisation 

alone. Having this ambition shared across all 9 councils 

means Vision Derbyshire will have a much bigger 

impact on changing the lives of Derbyshire’s people.

A clear focus for long term effort and innovation 

Achieving Vision Derbyshire’s ambition will not be easy, 

but it sets a clear long term focus for councils to work 

towards as a collective. The ambition will stand for years 

to come meaning that Derbyshire can dedicate 

consistent effort and innovation to progress towards it, 

and have a real impact on the lives of people.

16

Vision Derbyshire whilst building on the foundation of strong 

partnership working, is a truly transformative change for 

Derbyshire’s councils, people and places.

We will transform our ways of working, including:

● Developing an organisational culture where 

everyone collaborates by default

● Unifying our approach to customer service and 

experience across all councils

● Aligning our technological and physical assets to 

enhance our efficiency and make best use of 

scarce resources

● Integrating our business insight and performance 

measurement information to develop a shared 

basis for decisions and evaluation

● Developing a formal, clear and committed 

governance approach, with a joint committee

● Taking advantage of economies of scale in our 

commissioning and procurement, sharing 

negotiation and contracts to get best value for 

money for people in Derbyshire.

16

Page 296



SS0619

Thank you

DRAFT FOR 

DISCUSSION

Page 297



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 299

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 301

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Wildfire Public Spaces Protection Order
	Appendix

	5 Community Trigger
	Appendix A

	6 Trans Pennine Upgrade A57 Link Road
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	The A57 Link Roads Scheme
	The project and why we’re consulting 
	Key dates 
	The scheme and what’s changed since 2018 
	The scheme and what’s changed since 2018 
	The scheme and what’s changed since 2018 
	The scheme and what’s changed since 2018 
	The scheme and what’s changed since 2018 


	7 Annual Report 2019/20
	Appendix A
	Contents
	Chapter 1: Profile of the Borough
	Chapter 2: Our Financial Context
	Chapter 3: Our Vision
	Chapter 4: Demonstrating value for money - our performance and how we compare
	Chapter 5: Our Future Priorities 2020-2021
	APPENDICES
	Aim 1: a healthier, safer, cleaner High Peak
	Aim 2: responsive, smart, financially resilient and forward thinking
	Aim 3: supporting economic growth, development and regeneration
	Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment including respondingto the climate emergency



	8 Second Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 2020/21
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	9 Medium Term Financial Plan Update
	10 Information Governance Update
	11 Vision Derbyshire
	Appendix A

	13 To approve the exempt minutes of the previous meeting
	14 Application for write off of non-recoverable debts

